ORANGEYILLE HYDRO

August 27, 2009

Board Secretary
Ontario Energy Board
P.O. Box 2319

27" Floor

2300 Yonge Street
Toronto ON M4P 1E4

Re: Orangeville Hydro Limited
2010 Rate Application EB-2009-0272

Dear Ms. Walli:

Orangeville Hydro Limited (OHL) is submitting its’ 2010 Cost of Service Rate Application, in
compliance with the OEB Filing Requirements for Transmission and Distribution Applications.
The components for the application are as follows:

Exhibit 1 — Administration

Exhibit 2 — Rate Base

Exhibit 3 — Operating Revenue

Exhibit 5 — Cost of Capital and Capital Structure

Exhibit 6 — Calculation of Revenue Deficiency or Surplus
Exhibit 7 — Cost Allocation

Exhibit 8 — Rate Design

Exhibit 9 — Deferral and Variance Accounts

Addendum — OHL Green Energy Plan

LR RE

OHL is also pleased to submit in an Addendum to our cost of service filing, a copy of our Green
Energy plan for approval.

Further to the Board’s RESS filing guidelines, an electronic copy of our full application will be
submitted through the OEB e-Filing Services. Two hard copies of the application are being sent
by courier. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at 519-942-8000 or
jhoward@orangevillehydro.on.ca.

Orangeville Hydro Limited

Jan Howard
Manager of Finance & Rates

400 C Line, Orangeville ON L9W 2Z7 519-942-8000
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IN THE MATTER OF the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998,
being Schedule B to the Energy Competition Act, 1998, S.O.

1998, c.15;

AND IN THE MATTER OF an Application by Orangeville
Hydro Limited to the Ontario Energy Board for an Order or
Orders approving or fixing just and reasonable rates and other
service charges for the distribution of electricity as of May 1,

2010.

Title of Proceeding:

Applicant’s Name:

Applicant’s Address for Service:

An application by Orangeville Hydro Limited for an Order
or Orders approving or fixing just and reasonable
distribution rates and other charges, effective May 1, 2010.

Orangeville Hydro Limited

PO Box 400

400 C Line
Orangeville, Ontario
LowW 277

Attention: Mr. George Dick, President

Telephone: 519-942-8000
Fax: 519-941-6061
E-mail: gdick@orangevillehydro.on.ca



~N o o1 A W

oo

10
11

12
13
14
15

16

17
18
19
20

21

22
23

24

Orangeville Hydro Limited
EB-2009-0272

Exhibit 1

Tab 1l

Schedule 2

Page 2 of 4

Filed: August 28, 2009

APPLICATION

Introduction

@ The Applicant is Orangeville Hydro Limited (referred to in this Application as the
“Applicant” or “OHL”). The Applicant is a corporation incorporated pursuant to
the Ontario Business Corporations Act with its head office in the Town of
Orangeville. The Applicant carries on the business of distributing electricity

within the Town of Orangeville and the former Village of Grand Valley.

(b) The Applicant hereby applies to the Ontario Energy Board (the “OEB”) pursuant
to Section 78 of the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998 (the “OEB Act) for
approval of its proposed distribution rates and other charges, effective May 1,

2010. A list of requested approvals is set out in Exhibit 1, Tab 1, and Schedule 5.

(©) Except where specifically identified in the Application, the Applicant followed
Chapter 2 of the OEB’s Filing Requirements for Transmission and Distribution
Applications dated November 14, 2006 (the “Filing Requirements”) in order to

prepare this application.
Proposed Distribution Rates and Other Charges

@ The Schedule of Rates and Charges proposed in this Application is identified in
Appendix A attached to this application and Exhibit 8, Tab 1, and Schedule 6,
and the material being filed in support of this Application sets out OHL’s
approach to its distribution rates and charges.

Proposed Effective Date of Rate Order

The Applicant requests that the OEB make its Rate Order effective May 1, 2010

in accordance with the Filing Requirements.

The Proposed Distribution Rates and Other Charges are Just and Reasonable
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The Applicant submits the proposed distribution rates contained in this

Application are just and reasonable on the following grounds:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

the proposed rates for the distribution of electricity have been prepared in
accordance with the Filing Requirements and reflect traditional rate

making and cost of service principles;

the proposed adjusted rates are necessary to meet the Applicant’s Market
Based Rate of Return (“MBRR”) and Payments in Lieu of Taxes (“PILs”)

requirements;

there are no impacts to any of the customer classes or consumption level
subgroups that are so significant as to warrant the deferral of any
adjustments being requested by the Applicant or the implementation of

any other mitigation measures;

the other service charges with exception of the temporary service charges
proposed by the Applicant are the same as those previously approved by
the OEB; and

such other grounds as may be set out in the material accompanying this

Application Summary.
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5. Relief Sought

@) The Applicant applies for an Order or Orders approving the proposed distribution
rates and other charges set out in Exhibit 1, Tab 1, and Schedule 2, Appendix A to
this Application as just and reasonable rates and charges pursuant to Section 78 of

the OEB Act, to be effective May 1, 2010, or as soon as possible thereafter; and
6. Form of Hearing Requested

@ The Applicant requests that this Application be disposed of by way of a written
hearing.

DATED at Toronto, Ontario, this 15th day of August, 2009.

All of which is respectfully submitted,
ORANGEVILLE HYDRO LIMITED

George Dick
President
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APPENDIX A
SCHEDULE OF PROPOSED RATES AND CHARGES



Residential

Service Charge

Smart Meter Rate Adder

Distribution Volumetric Rate

LV Charges

Rate Rider

Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate

Retail Transmission Rate — Line and Transformation Connection Service Rate
Wholesale Market Service Rate

Rural Rate Protection Charge

Standard Supply Service — Administrative Charge (if applicable)

General Service Less Than 50 kW

Service Charge

Smart Meter Rate Adder

Distribution Volumetric Rate

LV Charges

Rate Rider

Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate

Retail Transmission Rate — Line and Transformation Connection Service Rate
Wholesale Market Service Rate

Rural Rate Protection Charge

Standard Supply Service — Administrative Charge (if applicable)

General Service 50 to 4,999 kW

Service Charge

Smart Meter Rate Adder

Distribution Volumetric Rate

LV Charges

Rate Rider

Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate

Retail Transmission Rate — Line and Transformation Connection Service Rate
Wholesale Market Service Rate

Rural Rate Protection Charge

Standard Supply Service — Administrative Charge (if applicable)

Orangeville Hydro Limited
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$/kWh
$/kWh
$/kKWh
$/kWh
$/kWh
$/kWh
$/KWh

$/kWh
$/kWh
$/kWh
$/kWh
$/KWh
$/kWh
$/KWh

$/kW
$/kwW
$/kW
$/kwW
$/kW
$/kWh
$/kWh

17.46
1.00
0.0134
0.0009
(0.0013)
0.0052
0.0030
0.0052
0.0013
0.25

3352
1.00
0.0103
0.0008
(0.0013)
0.0048
0.0027
0.0052
0.0013
0.25

264.94
1.00
1.8345
0.3149
(0.5080)
1.9365
1.0761
0.0052
0.0013
0.25



Unmetered Scattered Load

Service Charge (per connection)

Distribution Volumetric Rate

LV Charges

Rate Rider

Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate

Retail Transmission Rate — Line and Transformation Connection Service Rate
Wholesale Market Service Rate

Rural Rate Protection Charge

Standard Supply Service — Administrative Charge (if applicable)

Sentinel Lighting

Service Charge (per connection)

Distribution Volumetric Rate

LV Charges

Rate Rider

Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate

Retail Transmission Rate — Line and Transformation Connection Service Rate
Wholesale Market Service Rate

Rural Rate Protection Charge

Standard Supply Service — Administrative Charge (if applicable)

Street Lighting

Service Charge (per connection)

Distribution Volumetric Rate

LV Charges

Rate Rider

Retail Transmission Rate — Network Service Rate

Retail Transmission Rate — Line and Transformation Connection Service Rate
Wholesale Market Service Rate

Rural Rate Protection Charge

Standard Supply Service — Administrative Charge (if applicable)
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$/kWh
$/kWh
$/kWh
$/kWh
$/kWh
$/kWh
$/kWh

$/kw
$/kwW
$/kw
$/kwW
$/kw
$/kWh
$/kWh

$/kwW
$/kw
$/kwW
$/kw
$/kwW
$/kwh
$/kWh

6.40
0.0091
0.0008

(0.0010)
0.0048
0.0027
0.0052
0.0013

0.25

1.91
7.4165
0.2485

(0.4868)
1.4678
0.8493
0.0052
0.0013

0.25

0.81
4.4557
0.2485

(0.4520)
1.4605
0.8318
0.0052
0.0013

0.25
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Specific Service Charges
Customer Administration

Arrears certificate $ 15.00
Statement of account $ 15.00
Request for other billing information $ 15.00
Income tax letter $ 15.00
Returned cheque charge (plus bank charges) $ 15.00
Legal letter charge $ 15.00
Account set up charge/change of occupancy charge (plus credit agency costs if applicable) $ 30.00
Special meter reads $ 30.00
Non-Payment of Account
Late Payment - per month % 1.50
Late Payment - per annum % 19.56
Collection of account charge - no disconnection $ 30.00
Collection of account charge - no disconnection - after regular hours $ 165.00
Disconnect/Reconnect at meter - during regular hours $ 65.00
Disconnect/Reconnect at meter - after regular hours $ 185.00
Disconnect/Reconnect at pole - during regular hours $ 185.00
Disconnect/Reconnect at pole - after regular hours $ 415.00
Temporary service install & remove - overhead - no transformer $ 500.00
Install/Remove load control device - during regular hours $ 65.00
Install/Remove load control device - after regular hours $ 185.00
Specific Charge for Access to the Power Poles $/pole/year $ 22.35
Allowances
Transformer Allowance for Ownership - per kW of billing demand/month $/kW (0.60)
Primary Metering Allowance for transformer losses — applied to measured demand and energy % (1.00)
$IkwW 0.00
$/kw 0.00
LOSS FACTORS
Total Loss Factor — Secondary Metered Customer < 5,000 kW 1.0468
Total Loss Factor — Secondary Metered Customer > 5,000 kW 0.0000
Total Loss Factor — Primary Metered Customer < 5,000 kW 1.0363

Total Loss Factor — Primary Metered Customer > 5,000 kW 1.0134
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1 DISTRIBUTOR LICENCE:

2  Per the Draft Filing Requirements, the Orangeville Hydro Limited Distribution License ED-
3 2000-0500 is no longer required.
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CONTACT INFORMATION:

ORANGEVILLE HYDRO LIMITED
P.O. Box 400

400 C LINE

ORANGEVILLE, ON

L9W 277

PRESIDENT:

Mr. George Dick

Telephone: 519-942-8000

Facsimile: 519-941-6061

E-mail:  gdick@orangevillehydro.on.ca
MANAGER OF FINANCE & RATES:

Mrs. Jan Howard

Telephone: 519-942-8000

Facsimile: 519-941-6061

E-mail:  jhoward@orangevillehydro.on.ca
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SPECIFIC APPROVALS REQUESTED:

In this proceeding, OHL is requesting the following approvals:

> Approval to charge rates effective May 1, 2010 to recover a revenue requirement of
$5,362,234 which includes a revenue deficiency of $631,388

> as set out in Exhibit 1, Tab 2, Schedule 4 and Exhibit 7, Tab 1, Schedule 1. The schedule
of proposed rates is set out in Exhibit 1, Tab 1, Schedule 2 Appendix A and Exhibit 8 Tab
1 Schedule 6;

> Approval of the harmonization of OHL’s distribution rates across two geographical areas
served by OHL. The amalgamation of Orangeville Hydro Limited and Grand Valley
Energy Inc., EB-2008-0053 was approved by the OEB on July 14, 2008. In the
application OHL had indicated that it would file with the OEB an application to

harmonize the rates of the two entities in a 2010 cost of service rate filing.

> Approval of the Applicant’s proposed change in capital structure, decreasing the
Applicant’s deemed common equity component from 43.3% to 40.0% and increasing the
deemed debt component from 56.7% to 60.0%, as set out in Exhibit 5, Tab 1, Schedule 2,
consistent with Report of the Board on Cost of Capital and 2nd Generation Incentive

Regulation for Ontario’s Electricity Distributors dated December 20, 2006;

> Approval of the proposed loss factor as set out in Exhibit 4, Tab 2, Schedule 8;

> Approval of revised low voltage rates to be included in the standard distribution rates as
proposed and described in Exhibit 8, Tab 1, Schedule 1;

> Approval to continue to charge Wholesale Market and Rural Rate Protection Charges
approved in the OEB Decision and Order in the matter of OHL’s 2009 Distribution Rates
(EB-2008-0204). Approval of the Retail Transmission-Network Service and Retail
Transmission-Connection rates subject to the Guideline Electricity Distribution Retail
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Transmission Service (G-2008-0001) issued October 22, 2008, Revision 1.0 issued July
22, 2009;

Any modifications as a result of the OEB’s decision on Hydro One Networks’ 2010
Uniform Transmission Rate Adjustment Application (OEB File EB-2008-072) effective
January 1, 2010;

Approval to continue the Specific Service Charges and Transformer Allowance approved
in the OEB Decision and Order in the matter of OHL’s 2009 Distribution Rates (EB-
2008-0204) and

Approval to dispose of the following Deferral and Variance Account Balances audited
December 31, 2008 with carrying charges calculated as at April 30, 2010 over a four-
year period instead of the one-year period described in the Report of the Board dated July
31, 2009 (EB-2008-0046) using the method of recovery described in Exhibit 9, Tab 1,
Schedule 3:

1508 Other Regulatory Assets-OMERS
1508 Other Regulatory Assets - Sub-account OEB Cost Assessments

1518 Retail Cost Variance Account

1548 Retail Cost Variance Account (STR)

1550 Low Voltage Variance

1570 Transition Costs Variance

1590 Regulatory Asset Recovery

1580 Wholesale Market Service Charges Variance
1582 One-Time Charges Variance

1584 Transmission Network Variance

1586 Transmission Connection Variance

1588 Power Variance
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DRAFT ISSUES LIST:

The Applicant would expect, based on previous regulatory experience and other hearings, that

the following matters pertaining to the 2010 Test Year may constitute issues in this Application:

YV V V V

A\

The amount of OHL’s proposed revenue requirement; and

The reasonableness of the 2010 capital program and the 2010; and

The reasonableness of the 2010 operating, maintenance and administration budget; and
The reasonableness of the 2010 weather-normalized forecast; and

The reasonableness of the proposed harmonized electricity distribution rates; and

The appropriateness of OHL’s proposed cost allocation-related adjustments to class-
specific revenue requirements, reflected in the proposed distribution rates; and

The appropriateness of OHL’s harmonization of Low Voltage charges
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PROCEDURAL ORDERS/MOTIONS/NOTICES:

On February 8, 2008, OHL filed a self-nomination request for rebasing in 2010. Subsequently,
in Board File No. EB-2006-0330, the OEB issued its list of distributors that will be rebased in
2010. OHL was included on that list.
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ACCOUNTING ORDERS REQUESTED:

OHL is not requesting Accounting Orders in this proceeding.
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COMPLIANCE WITH UNIFORM SYSTEM OF ACCOUNTS:

OHL has followed the accounting principles and main categories of accounts as stated in the
OEB’s Accounting Procedures Handbook (the “APH”) and the Uniform System of Accounts
(“USoA”) in the preparation of this Application.
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DISTRIBUTION SERVICE TERRITORY AND DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM:

Description of Distributor:

COMMUNITY SERVED: Town of Orangeville,

Former Village of Grand Valley
TOTAL SERVICE AREA: 17 sq km
RURAL SERVICE AREA: 0sq km
DISTRIBUTION TYPE: Electricity distribution
SERVICE AREA POPULATION: 29,829
MUNICIPAL POPULATION: 29,829

A map of the OHL’s Distribution Service Territory accompanies this Schedule as Appendix B.

A schematic diagram of OHL’s distribution system is attached in Appendix C.
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APPENDIX B
MAP OF DISTRIBUTION SERVICE TERRITORY
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1 MAP OF DISTRIBUTION SERVICE TERRITORY

2  The outlined area represents the Town of Orangeville and the Village of Grand Valley.
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LIST OF NEIGHBOURING UTILITIES:

OHL is bounded by : Hydro One
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1 EXPLANATION OF HOST AND EMBEDDED UTILITIES:

2  There are no embedded utilities within OHL’s distribution service territory nor is OHL a host

3 utility to other distributors.
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UTILITY ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE:

OHL is 94.5% owned by the Town of Orangeville and 5.5% owned by the Township of East
Luther-Grand Valley. A chart illustrating OHL’s corporate family is provided at Exhibit 1, Tab
1, Schedule 14.
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CORPORATE ENTITIES RELATIONSHIP CHART

Municipal Shareholders / Owner
Town of Orangeville
Township of East Luther Grand Valley

Shareholders Agreement

[}
1}
[}
1
\
1
\
1
1

ORANGEVILLE HYDRO SERVICES INC. (OHSI)
nonactive - Separate Director and Officer -
J.Thornton

ORANGEVILLE HYDRO LIMITED
Board of Directors

Green Pathways Inc. Ownership
66 2/3-OHSI

33 1/3-PURE
Group - Separate Board (3)
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PLANNED CHANGES IN CORPORATE AND OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE:

No changes to OHL’s corporate and operational structures are planned at the present time.
However, OHL is reviewing recent changes to the Affiliate Relationships Code to determine if
any changes to the corporate and operational structures are required.
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1 STATUS OF BOARD DIRECTIVES FROM PREVIOUS BOARD DECISIONS:

2  Atthis time there are no Board Directives from previous Board decisions.



aa B~ W DN

Orangeville Hydro Limited
EB-2009-0272

Exhibit 1

Tab 1l

Schedule 17

Page 1of1

Filed: August 28, 2009

CONDITIONS OF SERVICE:

A copy of OHL’s revised Conditions of Service was filed separately with the OEB on August 11,
2008. Per the draft filing requirements, the Conditions of Service are no longer required to be
included in this document. A copy of the Conditions of Service is available on OHL’s website

www.orangevillehydro.on.ca.
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RECENT CHANGES IN CONDITIONS OF SERVICE:

A copy of the notice printed in the May 30, 2008 issue of the Orangeville Banner advising customers
regarding planned changes to OHL’s Conditions of Service for August 11, 2008 implementation is set out
in Appendix D to this Schedule.
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PRELIMINARY LIST OF WITNESSES:

While OHL requests that this Application be disposed of by way of a written hearing, should a
technical conference or an oral hearing be necessary OHL will provide a list of potential

witnesses as required.
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SUMMARY OF THE APPLICATION:
Preamble

OHL has submitted this Application in order to meet its Corporate Mission and Corporate Goals
as outlined below. Current rates will result in actual Return on Equity in 2009 and 2010 well

below levels currently approved by the OEB. The increased rates are required to:

1) Maintain current capital investment levels in infrastructure to ensure a safe, reliable

distribution system.

2) Continue with training programs for line staff needed to meet future staffing requirements
and prepare for succession planning.

3) Manage staffing levels and skills to ensure regulatory compliance, ESA compliance,
promote conservation programs along with the introduction of smart meters, and
implement reporting changes resulting from the adoption of International Financial

Reporting Standards.

4) To provide a reasonable rate of return to the Shareholder.

OHL'’s Mission Statement is:

To provide safe, reliable, efficient delivery of electrical energy within the Town of
Orangeville while being accountable to our shareholders....the citizens of Orangeville.

OHL’s Vision Statement is:

To be acknowledged as a leader among electric utilities in the areas of safety, reliability,
customer service, financials and performance.
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OHL ’s priorities are defined in its Corporate Goals:

To form partnerships and alliances with other local distribution companies. This will be
accomplished through participating in the “Cornerstone Hydro-Electric Concepts™
group.

To invest heavily in our staff and rely on them to help us accomplish our goals by keeping
staff informed, understand their expectations and their importance to the organization
providing them with the tools, equipment and training.

To stay current with industry, sector and regulatory changes.

Orangeville Hydro has won 3 safety awards in the past and we will seek new ways to
further enhance the safety of our employees, our customers and community.

To pursue new business opportunities, partnerships and best management practices in
our quest to meet or exceed financial expectations of our community by cost sharing,
efficiency gains and cost savings.

To investigate roles and opportunities that Orangeville Hydro Limited can pursue in
generation and through conservation and demand management initiatives.

In keeping with this vision to pursue health and safety as its top priority, OHL was recently
awarded by the Electrical & Utilities Safety Association (“E&USA”) the safety Bronze Award

pursuit of ZeroQuest which represents zero injuries and illnesses.

Within its service territory, OHL has partnered with local agencies and businesses to deliver

innovative conservation and demand management programs.

OHL has consistently exceeded the OEB’s Service Quality Indicators and, as set out in Table 1
below, has targeted to maintain its performance at levels equal to or above the OEB’s standards
in 2009 and 2010.
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Table 1
OHL’s SERVICE QUALITY INDICATORS
AVERAGE PERFORMANCE FOR 2007

Orangeville Hydro Limited
EB-2009-0272
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Tab 2

Schedule 1

Page 3 of 9

Date Filed: August 28, 2009

Appointments Met — at the appointed time

SQI Standard: 90% of the time

2008 Actual 2009 Target 2010 Target

100.00% 95.00% 95.00%

Telephone Accessibility — answered in person within 30 seconds

SQI Standard: 65% of the time

2008 Actual 2009 Target 2010 Target

100.00% 80.00% 80.00%

Underground Cable Locates — within 5 working days

SQI Standard: 90% of the time

2008 Actual 2009 Target 2010 Target

100.00% 90.00% 90.00%

Connection of New Services —within 5 working days

SQI Standard: 90% of the time

2008 Actual 2009 Target 2010 Target

100.00% 95.00% 95.00%

Emergency Response — Urban within 60 minutes and Rural within 120 minutes

SQI Standard: 90% of the time

2008 Actual 2009 Target 2010 Target

100.00% 95.00% 95.00%

Written Responses to Inquiries — within 10 working days

SQI Standard: 80% of the time

2008 Actual 2009 Target 2010 Target

100.0% 90.00% 95.00%
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Purpose and Need

OHL’s requested revenue requirement for 2010 in the amount of $5,362,234 includes the
recovery of its costs to provide distribution services, its permitted Return on Equity [“ROE”]
and the funds necessary to service its debt as it transitions to a 60%/40% debt equity ratio by
2010.

When forecasted energy and demand levels for 2010 are considered, OHL estimates that its
present rates will produce a deficiency in gross distribution revenue of $631,388 for the 2010
Test Year. Should this revenue deficiency continue, OHL will not be able to sustain the current
capital investment and lineperson training programs required to ensure a safe and reliable

distribution system.

Therefore, OHL seeks the OEB’s approval to revise its electricity distribution rates. The rates
proposed to recover its projected revenue requirement and other relief sought are set out in
Exhibit 1, Tab 1, Schedule 2, Appendix A and Exhibit 8, Tab 1, Schedule 6 to this Application.

The information presented in this Application is OHL’s forecasted results for its 2010 Test Year.
OHL is also presenting the historical actual information for fiscal 2006, OEB-Approved data for
2006, actual information for fiscal 2007, actual information for fiscal 2008, and forecast results
for the 2009 Bridge Year.

Timing
The financial information supporting the Test Year for this Application will be OHL’s fiscal year

ending December 31, 2010 (the “2010 Test Year”). However, this information will be used to
set rates for the period May 1, 2010 to April 30, 2011.

Customer Impact

In preparing this application, OHL has considered the impacts on its customers, with a goal of

minimizing those impacts. With respect to cost allocation, OHL notes that for the majority of its
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customers, the current revenue to cost ratio of each rate class does fall within the applicable
threshold defined by the OEB in the November 28, 2007, Report on Application of Cost
Allocation for Electricity Distributors. OHL has updated the Cost Allocation model for the 2010
forecast year. As a result, adjustments have been made in this Application to bring all but Street
Light and Sentinel Light classes within the allowed ranges of the revenue-to-cost ratios. Street
Light and Sentinel Light classes are being increased by approximately 50% of the difference
between their current levels and the bottom of the OEB’s ranges, and OHL will further adjust the
revenue-to-cost ratios in 2011 to bring them to the bottom of the approved ranges. Increased
distribution revenue from these two classes in 2010 and 2011 will be offset by reductions in
distribution revenue from the Residential class. Although this class is currently within the
targeted revenue-to-cost ratio, the reductions in 2010 and 2011 will move the revenue-to-cost

ratio closer to 100%.

Customer impacts including the percentage average Total Bill Impact and Average Dollar
Impact, which include revised distribution rates [monthly service charge and volumetric rates],
revised low voltage rates, the impact of harmonization of the rates of the two service areas
revised loss factors, and regulatory asset rate riders to dispose of the balances in the Deferral and
Variance Accounts requested in this Application over a four-year period are set out in Table 2

below.
Smart Meters:

OHL is not requesting any revisions to the Smart Meter Rate Adder in this application.
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Table 2

TOTAL BILL IMPACT - PERCENT & DOLLAR

Orangeville Service Area

Average Monthly Total Bill Impact - Percentage & Dollar

Comparison 2009

Class Average Monthly Total | Average Total Bill

Average Dollar

Bill Impact Impact Impact
Residential
100 kWh 5.20%| S 1.45
250 kWh 3.20%| S 1.37
500 kWh 2.10%| $ 1.43
600 kWh 3.43%| S 1.46
800 kWh 1.45%| S 1.46
1,000 kWh 1.19%| S 1.45
1,500 kWh 0.82%] S 1.45
General Service < 50 kW
2,000 kWh 1.78%| S 4.23
4,000 kWh 1.01%| $ 4,53
10,000 kWh 0.50%| S 5.42
12,500 kWh 0.43%| S 5.80
15,000 kWh 0.38%| S 6.17
General Service > 50 kW
11,000 kWh, 50 kW 5.62%| $ 75.68
100,000 kWh, 250 kW 0.87%| S 83.94
210,000 kWh, 360 kW 0.60%]| S 114.87
400,000 kWh, 800 kW 0.32%| S 118.61
855,000 kWh, 1755 kW 0.19%] S 147.19
Street Lighting
141,912 kWh, 379 kW 26.44%| S 3,607.13
54 kWh, .15 kW 28.33%| S 1.40
Sentinal Lighting
12,062 kWh, 32 kW 38.52%| $ 461.84
68 kWh, .18 kW 38.48%| S 2.60
Unmetered Scattered Load
32,685 kWh 9.92%| S 327.41
214 kWh -47.32%| S (24.92)

Orangeville Hydro Limited
EB-2009-0272

Exhibit 1

Tab 2

Schedule 1

Page 6 of 9

Date Filed: August 28, 2009



Grand Valley Service Area
Average Monthly Total Bill Impact - Percentage & Dollar

Com

arison 2009

Class Average Monthly Total

Average Total Bill

Average Dollar

Bill Impact Impact Impact
Residential
100 kWh 15.23%| S 3.89
250 kWh 7.30%| $ 3.01
500 kWh 2.90%| S 1.96
600 kWh 3.28%| S 1.39
800 kWh 0.40%| S 0.40
1,000 kWh -0.47%| S (0.59)
1,500 kWh -1.68%| $ (3.06)
General Service < 50 kW
2,000 kWh 1.97%| $ 4.65
4,000 kWh -0.76%| S (3.46)
10,000 kWh -2.49%| S (27.81)
12,500 kWh -2.73%| $ (37.95)
15,000 kWh -2.89%| S (48.09)
General Service > 50 kW
2,175 kWh, 60 kW -12.89%| S (110.97)
6,450 kWh, 65 kW -10.20%]| $ (127.59)
15,280 kWh, 60 kW -6.46%| S (125.64)
40,000 kWh, 125 kwW -6.89%| S (307.22)
47,000 kWh, 100 kW -10.94%]| S (255.86)
Street Lighting
8,863 kWh, 24 kw -7.56%| S (86.77)
58 kWh, .46 kW -13.07%| $ (1.28)
Unmetered Scattered Load
1,496 kWh -25.99%]| $ (57.09)
499 kWh -26.96%]| S (19.81)

Orangeville Hydro Limited
EB-2009-0272

Exhibit 1

Tab 2

Schedule 1
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Date Filed: August 28, 2009
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Capital Structure

OHL is requesting a change in its deemed capital structure. Specifically, OHL is requesting a
decrease in the deemed equity ratio from 43.3% to 40.0% consistent with the third year of the
phase-in of the shift in OHL’s capital structure from 50% to 40% equity as outlined in the Report
of the Board on Cost of Capital and 2" Generation Incentive Regulation for Ontario Electricity
Distributors dated December 20, 2006 (the “Cost of Capital Report™).

Return on Equity

OHL has assumed a return on equity of 8.01% consistent with the Cost of Capital Parameter
Updates for 2009 Cost of Service Applications issued by the OEB on March 8, 2009. OHL
understands the OEB will be finalizing the return on equity for 2010 rates based on January 2010

market interest rate information.
Capital Expenditures

OHL continues to expand and reinforce its distribution system in order to meet the demand of
new and existing customers in its service territory. OHL will continue the 27.6 kV conversion
from 4kV in older areas of Town and expects to upgrade the CT’s at one of our wholesale meter
points, replace fault indicators that required replacement during our asset management condition
study and complete an optimization study. OHL anticipates expenditures for the Green Energy

Act to enable the renewable generation coming on-line to meet the Minister’s directive.
Operating and Maintenance Costs

OHL plans to hire a regulatory analyst to assist with regulatory accounting, regulatory
interpretations and the requirement of OEB reporting and project such as rate filings, cost
allocation and economic evaluations. OHL also plans to hire a junior engineer to implement and
manage SCADA system and GIS system along with IT expertise. OHL has also considered costs
for completing the cost of service rate application and IFRS requirements. Based on the OEB’s
Comparison of Ontario Electricity Distributors Costs [EB-2006-0268], as updated with 2007
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Data issued on June 25, 2009, OHL’s OM&A costs per customer compare favorably with its
“Mid Size Southern Medium-High Undergrounding” cohort. In 2007, the average OM&A cost
per customer for the cohort was $214.00 while OHL’s cost was $209.00. Over the 3-year
average from 2005 to 2007, OHL’s cost was $183.00 while the average for the cohort was
$208.00. Details of the calculations supporting this analysis are included in Appendix E to this
Schedule.
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APPENDIX E

COMPARISON OF OHL'’s
2007 OM&A COSTS TO
“Small Southern Medium-High Undergrounding with Rapid Growth”
COHORT GROUPING



SUMMARY OF THE APPLICATION

Comparison of Orangeville Hydro Limited
OM&A Costs To “Small Southern Medium-High Undergrounding with Rapid Growth”

Cohort Grouping

Orangeville Hydro Limited
EB-2009-0272

Exhibit 1

Tab 2
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Page 1 of 1

Filed: August 28, 2009

Cohort Groupings Total OM&A
2005-2007
By Distribution Company 3 Year Avg. 2007
Grimsby Power Incorporated $ 162.00 $ 169.00
Orangeville Hydro Limited $ 181.00 $ 192.00
Cooperative Hydro Embrun Inc. $ 202.00 $ 210.00
Niagara-on-the-Lake Hydro Inc. $ 207.00 $ 227.00
Centre Wellington Hydro Ltd. $ 239.00 $ 242.00
Average for Cohort Group $ 198.00 $ 208.00

SOURCE:

Comparison of Ontario Electricity Distributors Costs [EB-2006-0268], updated with 2007 Data

issued June 25, 2009.
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BUDGET DIRECTIVES:

OHL compiles budget information for the three major components of the budgeting process:
revenue forecasts, operating and maintenance expense forecast and capital budget forecast. This
budget information is compiled for both the 2009 Bridge Year and the 2010 Test Year. The
Board of Directors have reviewed and approved the 2009 and 2010 capital and OM&A budgets.

Revenue Forecast

OHL's energy sales and revenue forecast model was updated to reflect more recent information
such as population economic conditions, average weather conditions and peak and off peak
hours. This model was then used to prepare the revenues sales and throughput volume and
revenue forecast at existing rates for fiscal 2009 and 2010. The forecast is weather normalized
as outlined in Exhibit 3, Tab 2, and Schedule 1 and considers such factors as new customer

additions, customer class changes, and load profiles for all classes of customers.

Operating Maintenance and Administration (“OM&A”) Expense Forecast

The OM&A expenses for the 2009 Bridge Year and the 2010 Test Year have been based on an
in-depth review of operating priorities and requirements and is strongly influenced by prior year
experience. Each item is reviewed account by account for each of the forecast years with

indirect costs allocated to direct costs for budget presentation.

Capital Budget

The capital budget forecast 2009 and 2010 is influenced, among other factors, by OHL’s
capacity to finance capital projects. Indirect costs are allocated to direct costs in the capital
budget. OHL is subject to coordinate works with Town projects in order to achieve economies of
scope. All proposed capital projects are assessed within the framework of its capital budget

priority and are outlined in Exhibit 2, Tab 3, and Schedule 3 (Capital Expenditures by Project).
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1 CHANGES IN METHODOLOGY:

2  OHL is not requesting any changes in methodology in the current proceeding.
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2010 Test Existing 2010 Test Proposed
Rates Rates

Revenue
Suff/ Def From Below. $631,388
Distribution Revenue $4,374,574 $4,374,574
Other Operating Revenue (Net) $356,272 $356,272
Total Revenue $4,730,846 $5,362,234
Distribution Costs
Operation, Maintenance, and Administration $2,769,015 $2,769,015
Depreciation & Amortization $1,119,762 $1,119,762
Property & Capital Taxes $2,099 $2,099
Interest- Deemed Interest $652,936 $652,936
Total Costs and Expenses $4,543,812 $4,543,812
Utility Income Before Income Taxes $187,034 $818,422
Net Adjustments per 2009 Pils $41,959 $41,959
Taxable Income $228,993 $860,381

First $500,000 23.5% 23.5%

Remaining 36.25% 36.25%

Effective Tax Rate 8.41% 28.84%
Income Tax $19,260 $248,138
Utility Net Income S167,774 $570,284
Rate Base $17,799,123 $17,799,123
Return on Equity 8.01% 8.01%
Equity Rate Base % 40.00% 40.00%
Equity Component Rate Base $7,119,649 $7,119,649
Target Return -Equity on Rate Base 570,284 570,284
Revenue Deficiency $402,510 SO
Revenue Deficiency (Gross-up) $631,388 1]




© 00 N O

10
11
12
13

14
15
16
17
18

19
20
21

Orangeville Hydro Limited
EB-2009-0272

Exhibit 1

Tab 2

Schedule 5

Page 1of1

Filed: August 28, 2009

CAUSES OF REVENUE DEFICIENCY:

OHL’s net revenue deficiency is calculated as $402,510 and when grossed up for PILs, the
revenue deficiency is $631,388. Orangeville Hydro Limited’s calculation of its 2010 revenue
deficiency is provided in Exhibit 1, Tab 2, Schedule 4 and Exhibit 7, Tab 1, Schedule 1.

The revenue deficiency is primarily the result of:

> Increases in OM&A costs including depreciation expense. OHL will be increasing staff
with a new hire of a Regulatory person and a junior engineer commencing 2010. The
addition of a Conservation and Demand Coordinator along with administrative skills in
2007 is necessary to meet the work load associated with conversation programs initiated
by the Ontario Power Authority (“OPA”). OHL implemented a lineperson apprentice
program in 2007 in order to ensure qualified lineman are in place for forecasted
retirements in the next five years. OM&A cost are discussed in further detail in Exhibit 4;

and an addition of a contracted position to implement SCADA.

> Capital Expenditures in 2006, 2007 and 2008 exceeded depreciation levels resulting in a
increased rate base on which the rate of return is calculated. OHL is committed to
ensuring the reliability of the distribution system and will continue to invest in capital
infrastructure in 2009 and 2010. Changes in the Rate Base are discussed further in
Exhibit 2.

OHL is committed to meeting its corporate mission and goals of providing a safe and reliable
distribution through prudent investments in capital assets and investing in training and education
of staff required to meet the future needs of its customers.
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Auditors' Report

To the Shareholder of
Orangeville Hydro Limited

We have audited the balance sheet of Orangeville Hydro Limited as at December 31, 2007 and the
statements of operations and retained earnings and cash flows for the year then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the company as at December 31, 2007 and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting

principles.
BDG Own.wﬂvz’(j Le

Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

Orangeville, Ontario
February 28, 2008

BDO Dunwoody LLP is a Limited Liability Partnership registered in Ontario




Orangeville Hydro Limited
Balance Sheet

December 31 2007 2006
Assets
Current
Cash $ 1,315,135 $ 3,274,791
Accounts receivable 2,727,540 2,827,229
Inventory 323,303 458,827
Accrued unbilled revenue 1,696,635 1,648,616
Payments in lieu of income taxes receivable 143,645 -
Other current assets 204,396 119,349
6,410,654 8,328,812
Capital assets (Note 2) 12,934,062 12,927,125
$ 19,344,716 $ 21,255,937
Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 2,986,657 $ 2,822,103
Payments in lieu of income taxes payable - 14,963
Current portion of consumer deposits 25,000 25,000
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5) 185,981 600,000
Current portion of regulatory liabilities (Note 3) 34,894 81,264
Other current liabilities 202,705 177,645
3,435,237 3,720,975
Long-term debt (Note 5) 6,243,417 7,200,000
Regulatory liabilities (Note 3) 1,150,665 1,236,672
Post-employment benefits (Note 8) 152,331 128,621
Consumer deposits 487,812 461,019
11,469,462 12,747,287
Contingency (Note 13)
Shareholder's equity
Share capital (Note 7) 7,815,535 7,815,535
Retained earnings (Page 4) 59,719 693,115
7,875,254 8,508,650
$ 19,344,716 $ 21,255,937
On behalf of the Board:
Director Director

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Orangeville Hydro Limited

Statement of Operations and Retained Earnings

For the year ended December 31

2007

2006

Service revenue

Cost of power

Gross margin on service revenue

Other operating revenue

Gross margin

Operating and maintenance expenses
Distribution
Billing and collection
General and administrative

Amortization
Financial

Income before payments in lieu of income taxes
Payments in lieu of income taxes (Note 4)
Net income for the year

Retained earnings, beginning of year

Dividends

Retained earnings, end of year

$ 22,119,800 $ 21,358,535

18,006,331 17,316,878
4,113,469 4,041,657
556,052 480,179
4,669,521 4,521,836
682,534 552,034
418,609 435,398
988,583 865,974
929,960 885,464
489,483 564,248
3,509,169 3,303,118
1,160,352 1,218,718
513,187 579,144
647,165 639,574
693,115 364,321
(1,280,561) (310,780)
$ 59,719 $ 693,115

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Orangeville Hydro Limited
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31 2007 2006
Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Net income $ 647,165 $ 639,574
Items not involving cash
Amortization of capital assets 1,042,416 990,574
Gain on disposal of capital assets (5,565) (7,915)
Increase in post-employment benefits 23,710 22,646
1,707,726 1,644,879
Changes in non-cash working capital balances
Accounts receivable 99,689 (938,850)
Inventory 135,524 (104,859)
Accrued unbilled revenue (48,019) 227,298
Payments in lieu of income taxes receivable (143,645) -
Other current assets (85,047) (13,837)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 164,554 (173,767)
Payments in lieu of income taxes payable (14,963) (86,334)
Current portion of regulatory liabilities (46,370) 6,405
Other current liabilities 25,060 (62,104)
86,783 (1,146,048)
Net change in non-current balance sheet items (59,214) (5,951)
1,735,295 492,880
Investing activities
Purchase of capital assets (1,584,588) (1,485,150)
Proceeds on sale of capital assets 5,940 18,443
(1,578,648) (1,466,707)
Financing activities
Advance of long-term debt 6,500,000 -
Repayment of long-term debt (7,870,602) (600,000)
Dividends (1,280,561) (310,780)
Capital contributions received 534,860 226,554
(2,116,303) (684,226)
Decrease in cash during the year (1,959,656) (1,658,053)
Cash, beginning of year 3,274,791 4,932,844

Cash, end of year

$ 1,315,135 $ 3,274,791

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



December 31, 2007

Orangeville Hydro Limited

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

Nature of Business

Use of Estimates

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles for municipal electrical utilities in
Ontario as required by the Ontario Energy Board under
authority of Section 57, 70(2) and 78 of the Ontario Energy
Board Act, 1998 and reflect the policies as set forth in the
"Accounting Procedures Handbook." All principles employed
are in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles.

The Distributor is a corporation, incorporated under the laws of
the Province of Ontario to distribute electricity. The Distributor
is licensed by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB) to supply
electricity to Customers as described in the Transitional
Distribution License and thereafter by the Distribution License
issued to the Distributor by the OEB. Additionally there are
requirements imposed on the Distributor by the various codes
referred to in the License and by the Electricity Act and the
Ontario Energy Board Act. The Distributor is limited to operate
distribution facilities within their Licensed Territory as defined
in the Distribution License.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from management's best estimates as additional
information becomes available in the future.



December 31, 2007

Orangeville Hydro Limited

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Financial Instruments

Effective January 1, 2007, the company adopted the Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA) Handbook sections
1530 - Comprehensive Income, 3855 - Financial Instruments -
Recognition and Measurement and 3861 - Financial
Instruments - Disclosure and Presentation. As provided under
the standards, the comparative financial statements have not
been restated. Relevant changes as a result of these new
Handbook sections on the accounting for financial instruments
are outlined below.

Comprehensive Income

Section 1530 describes the recognition and disclosure
requirements with respect to comprehensive income.
Comprehensive income consists of net income and other
comprehensive income (OCI). OCI represents changes in the
fair value of a financial instrument which have not been
included in net income. The company had no adjustments to
other comprehensive income during the year ended December
31, 2007; therefore, the adoption of this standard does not
have an impact on the financial statements.

Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement

Section 3855 describes the recognition and measurement
requirements for financial assets and financial liabilities. On
initial recognition, all financial instruments that meet the
definition of a financial asset or financial liability are to be
recorded at fair value, unless fair value cannot be reliably
determined. Subsequent measurement depends on whether
the financial instrument has been classified as “held-for-
trading”, “available-for-sale”, “held-to-maturity”, “loans and
receivables” or “other financial liabilities”. As of January 1,
2007, the company has elected the following balance sheet
classifications with respect to its financial assets and financial
liabilities.

Cash is classified as “held-for-trading” and is measured at fair
value.

Accounts receivable and accrued unbilled revenue are
classified as “loans and receivables” and are measured at
amortized cost, which, upon initial recognition, is considered
equivalent to fair value. Subsequent measurements are
recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method.



December 31, 2007

Orangeville Hydro Limited

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Corporate Income Taxes

Inventory

Capital Assets

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities and long-term debt
are classified as “other financial liabilities” and are initially
measured at their fair value. Subsequent measurements are
recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method.

These new standards were applied as at January 1, 2007 and
did not have any impact on the financial statements.

Management's opinion is that the company is not exposed to
significant interest, currency or credit risks arising from these
financial instruments.

The company provides for payments in lieu of corporate
income taxes using the taxes payable method. Under the taxes
payable method, no provisions are made for future income
taxes as a result of temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
accounting purposes. When unrecorded future income taxes
become payable, it is expected that they will be included in the
rates approved by the OEB and recovered by the customers of
the company at that time.

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined on an average cost basis.

Capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortization. Cost is net of related investment tax credits and
government grants. Amortization based on the estimated
useful life of the asset is calculated using the straight-line
method over the following number of years:

Buildings 50 years
Computer equipment 5 years
Computer software 5 years
Distribution stations 30 years
Distribution system 25 years
Land rights 25 years
Meters 25 years
Office equipment 10 years
Rolling stock 5 -8 years
Sentinel lights 10 years
Stores equipment 10 years
Tools and equipment 10 years
Transformers 25 years



December 31, 2007

Orangeville Hydro Limited

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Consumer Deposits

Regulatory Assets/Liabilities

Post Employment Benefits for
Employees

Revenue

Consumer deposits are cash collections from customers to
guarantee the payment of energy bills. The consumer deposits
liability includes interest credited to the customers’ deposit
accounts, with the debit charged to interest expense. Deposits
expected to be refunded to customers within the next fiscal
year are classified as a current liability.

Regulatory assets/liabilities represent costs/receipts that have
been deferred according to OEB regulatory guidelines.
Regulatory assets/liabilities are reflected on the balance sheet
until the manner and timing of disposition is determined by the
OEB.

The company accrues its obligations under employee benefit
plans and the related costs, net of plan assets if any. The
company has adopted the following policy:

The cost of retirement benefits earned by employees is
actuarially determined using the projected unit method pro-
rated on service and management's best estimate of
retirement ages of employees and expected health care costs.

Past service costs from plan amendments are amortized on a
straight-line basis over the average remaining service period
of employees active at the date of amendment.

The excess of net actuarial gain (loss) over 10% of the benefit
plan obligation is amortized over the average remaining
service period of active employees.

Revenue is recognized in the financial statements on the
accrual basis when the energy is supplied to the users,
whether billed or unbilled.



December 31, 2007

Orangeville Hydro Limited

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

New Accounting
Pronouncements

Recent accounting pronouncements that have been issued but
are not yet effective, and have a potential implication for the
company, are as follows:

Capital Disclosures

CICA Handbook Section 1535, Capital Disclosures, requires
disclosure of an entity's objectives, policies and processes for
managing capital, quantitative data about what the entity
regards as capital, whether the entity has complied with any
capital requirements and, if the company has not complied, the
consequences of such non-compliance. This standard is
effective for interim and annual financial statements relating to
fiscal years beginning on or after October 1, 2007. The
company is currently assessing the impact of the new
standard.

Inventories

The CICA has issued Section 3031, Inventories, which
provides guidance on determining cost and other recognition,
measurement, disclosure and presentation issues related to
inventories. The standard includes guidance on the treatment
of excess capacities, inventory valuation and write-downs and
additional elements to be considered in measuring inventory
costs. The new standard is effective for interim and annual
financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or
after January 1, 2008. The company is currently assessing the
impact of the new standard.

Future Income Taxes

CICA Handbook Section 3465, Income Taxes, requires that
rate regulated entities recognize future income taxes and a
separate asset or liability for the future revenue or reduction in
revenue expected as a result of a company's action in respect
of future income taxes for fiscal years beginning on or after
January 1, 2009. The company is currently assessing the
impact of this standard.

10



December 31, 2007

Orangeville Hydro Limited
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

International Financial Reporting Standards

The CICA plans to converge Canadian GAAP with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) over a
transition period expected to end in 2011. The impact of the
transition to IFRS on the company's financial statements has
yet to be determined.

11



Orangeville Hydro Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2007

1. Comparative Amounts

The comparative amounts presented in the financial statements have been restated to
conform to the current year's presentation.

2. Capital Assets

2007 2006

Accumulated Accumulated

Cost Amortization Cost  Amortization

Land $ 212,281 $ 12,190 $ 208,325 $ 10,837
Buildings 2,620,518 727,581 2,452,467 683,291
Services 2,144,587 1,222,536 2,046,324 1,131,120
Distribution lines - overhead 7,079,361 3,881,985 6,856,617 3,635,804
Distribution lines - underground 6,391,113 2,887,107 5,913,988 2,644,751
Distribution meters 1,701,317 881,241 1,565,934 822,914
Distribution stations 848,022 517,791 823,258 492,237
Distribution transformers 6,849,283 3,012,218 6,519,816 2,772,546
Other capital assets 1,910,373 1,422,246 1,840,765 1,270,544

29,756,855 14,564,895 28,227,494 13,464,044
Contributions and grants (2,832,170) (574,272) (2,297,310) (460,985)

$ 26,924,685 $ 13,990,623 $ 25,930,184 $ 13,003,059

Net book value $ 12,934,062 $ 12,927,125

12



Orangeville Hydro Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2007

3.

Regulatory Assets (Liabilities)

Qualifying transition costs are costs incurred related to the preparations required for market
opening. In accordance with Ontario Energy Board (OEB) guidelines, expenditures were
allowed to be deferred during the period January 1, 2000 to December 31, 2002, which would
be capitalized or expensed under Canadian generally accepted accounting principles for
unregulated businesses. For the period January 1, 2003 to December 31, 2007, transition
costs were increased by OEB-prescribed carrying charges.

The energy market in Ontario opened to competition on May 1, 2002. Since May 1, 2002, the
difference between the cost of power based on time-of-use rates and amounts billed to non-
time-of-use customers charged at an average rate are recorded in settlement variance
accounts as directed by the OEB. These variance accounts ensure that a utility's gross profit
is limited to distribution revenue and service charges.

The regulatory assets recovery account (RARA) includes regulatory asset balances the OEB
has approved for recovery. This approved balance will be recovered over a period ending
March 31, 2008. The RARA is credited with recovery amounts and is debited by OEB-
prescribed carrying charges.

2007 2006

Regulatory assets (liabilities)
Qualifying transition costs $ (11,746) $ (11,405)
Settlement variances (938,830) (595,743)
Regulatory assets recovery account (167,038) (561,579)

(1,117,614) (1,168,727)
Regulatory liabilities - low voltage (67,945) (149,209)

(1,185,559) (1,317,936)
Current portion of regulatory (liabilities) (34,894) (81,264)

Net regulatory (liabilities) $ (1,150,665) $ (1,236,672)

13



December 31, 2007

Orangeville Hydro Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

4,

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes differs from the result which would be obtained by applying
the combined Canadian Federal and Provincial Statutory income tax rates to income before
income taxes. This difference results from the following items:

Income before income taxes
Statutory income tax rate

Expected income tax expense

Increase (decrease) in taxes resulting from:
Permanent differences
Amortization in excess of capital cost allowance
Pre-market opening energy variances
Other
Prior year amendments

Income tax expense

2007

2006

$ 1,160,352 $ 1,218,718

36.12 % 36.12 %
419,119 440,201
(5,385) (6,373)
72,099 93,494
39,955 39,955

8,535 11,867
(21,136) -

$ 513,187 $ 579,144

14



Orangeville Hydro Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2007

5. Long-term Debt

2007 2006
Term loan payable - TD Bank, 5.59%, due 2017, repayable
in monthly payments of $45,048 principal and interest. $ 6,429,398 $ -
Term loan payable - Scotiabank, 5.77%, due 2014,
repayable in monthly interest instalments and annual
principal payments of $600,000. - 7,800,000
Less amounts due within one year included in current liabilities 185,981 600,000

$ 6,243,417 $ 7,200,000

The agreement with respect to the TD Bank term loan contains certain covenants regarding
(i) leverage, (ii) liquidity, (iii) restrictions on business activities, (iv) restrictions on
distributions, (v) change in ownership, (vi) mergers, acquisitions or change in line of business
and (vii) limitations on additional debt and encumbrance of assets.

Principal repayments for the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

2008 $ 185,981
2009 195,688
2010 206,912
2011 218,779
2012 230,432
Thereafter 5,391,606

$ 6,429,398

The interest on long-term debt during the year amounted to $412,342 and is included in
financial expense.

15



Orangeville Hydro Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2007

6. Related Party Transactions
The Town of Orangeville is the sole shareholder of the company. The company provides
water and sewage billing and collection services to the customers of the Town as well as
supplying streetlighting energy and streetlighting maintenance services to the Town.
The following table summarizes the company's related party transactions for the year:

2007 2006

Revenue
Sales to parent company $ 367,109 $ 371,156
These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange
value (the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties), which
approximates the arm's length equivalent value for sales of product.
Included in accounts payable at December 31, 2007 is $556,042 (2006 - $501,777) payable to
the Town.
Included in accounts receivable at December 31, 2007 is $71,756 (2006 - $78,366)
receivable from the Town.

7. Share Capital

The authorized common share capital of the company is an unlimited number of shares.
The issued share capital is as follows:

2007 2006

100 Common shares $ 7,815535 $ 7,815,535

16



Orangeville Hydro Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2007

8. Pension Agreement and Post Employment Benefits

(@)

(b)

Pension Agreement

The company makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund
(OMERS), which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of members of its staff. The plan is
a defined benefit plan which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be
received by the employees based on the length of service and rates of pay. The amount
contributed to OMERS for the year ending December 31, 2007 was $86,765 (2006 -
$156,299) for current service. There is no liability for past service.

Post Employment Benefits

The company has a post employment benefit plan for its employees. Under the terms of
the plan, employees are eligible for extended health care and dental benefits upon
retirement or termination after age 55 until age 65. The latest actuarial valuation of the
benefit plan, as of December 31, 2004, estimated the post employment benefit liability to
be $84,213. The actuarial valuation for the year ended December 31, 2007 has not yet
been completed. The accrued benefit obligation is estimated to be $244,600. The
company is amortizing the past service costs arising from the initiation of this plan over
the remaining service life of the employees which was 11 years as of December 31,
2004.

2007 2006
Accrued benefit obligation $ 244,600 $ 234,072
Less unamortized past service costs 92,269 105,451
Benefit plan obligation $ 152,331 $ 128,621
Benefit plan expense $ 36,595 $ 35,563
Less benefit plan payments 12,885 12,917
Net plan expense $ 23,710 $ 22,646

The significant assumptions adopted in estimating the utility's accrued benefit obligation
are as follows:

Discount rate 5.5%

General inflation 2.2%

Medical benefits cost escalation - extended health  10% decreasing by 1% each year
for 5 years

Dental benefits cost escalation 5%

Salary rate increase 3.5%

17



Orangeville Hydro Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2007

9.

Public Liability Insurance

The company is a member of The Electrical Distributors Association Reciprocal Insurance
Exchange which is a pooling of the public liability insurance risks of many of the municipal
utilities in Ontario. All members of the pool are subject to assessment for losses experienced
by the pool for the years in which they are members on a pro-rata basis based on the total of
their respective service revenues.

It is anticipated that, should such an assessment occur, it would be funded over a period of up
to five years. To December 31, 2007, no assessments have been made with respect to 2007
or prior years.

10.

Subdivision Agreements

As part of various subdivision agreements, the company has received letters of credit to
cover developers' responsibilities in completing the projects. Letters of credit held by the
company at December 31, 2007 amount to $414,448 (2005 - $312,189).

11.

Future Income Taxes

Future income taxes have not been recognized in these financial statements. Section 3465 of
the CICA handbook does not require rate regulated enterprises to recognize future income
taxes if future income taxes are expected to be included in the approved rate charged to
customers in the future and are expected to be recovered from future customers. The
estimated future income tax asset that has not been recognized as at December 31, 2007 is
$470,000 (2006 - $450,000).

12.

Statement of Cash Flows

2007 2006
Interest paid $ 422,189 $ 564,248
Payments in lieu of income taxes $ 683,038 $ 689,948

18



Orangeville Hydro Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2007

13.

Contingency

A class action is seeking $500 million in restitution for amounts paid to Toronto Hydro and to
other Ontario municipal electric utilities (LDCs) who received late payment charges from
customers that were in excess of the interest limit stipulated in section 347 of the Criminal
Code. Pleadings have closed in this action. The action has not yet been certified as a class
action and no discoveries have been held since the parties were awaiting the outcome of
similar proceedings brought against Enbridge Gas Distribution Inc. (formerly Consumers
Gas).

On April 22, 2004, the Supreme Court of Canada released a decision in the Consumers Gas
case rejecting all of the defences which had been raised by Enbridge, although the Court did
not permit the Plaintiff class to recover damages for any period prior to the issuance of the
Statement of Claim in 1994. The Supreme Court remitted the matter back to the Ontario
Superior Court of Justice for determination of the damages. At the end of 2006, a mediation
process resulted in the settlement of the damages payable by Enbridge.

In 2007, Enbridge filed an application to the Ontario Energy Board (OEB) to recover the
Court-approved amount and related amounts from ratepayers. On February 4, 2008 the OEB
approved recovery of the said amounts from ratepayers over a five year period.

After the release by the Supreme Court of Canada of its 2004 decision in the Consumers Gas
case, the plaintiffs in the LDC late payment penalties class action indicated their intention to
proceed with their litigation against the LDCs. To date, no formal steps have been taken to
move the action forward. The electric utilities intend to respond to the action if and when it
proceeds on the basis that the LDCs’ situation may be distinguishable from that of Consumers
Gas.

It is not possible at this time to quantify the effect, if any, of this action on the financial
statements of the company.

14.

Subsequent Event

The company entered into an agreement on December 3, 2007 to merge with Grand Valley
Energy Inc. for the purpose of providing electricity distribution services in the Towns of
Orangeville and Grand Valley as a single corporate entity. The merger is anticipated to occur
in 2008 pending approval by the Ontario Energy Board.
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Orangeville Hydro Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2007

15.

Contractual Obligations

The company has a letter of credit of $832,229 issued in favour of the Independent Electricity
System Operator (IESO). No amounts have been drawn as at December 31, 2007.

16.

Dividends

Subject to applicable law, shareholder direction provided that the company would pay
dividends to the Town of Orangeville in December of each year in the amount of 50% of the
company's projected annual net income. Additional dividends may be applicable as long as
the financing covenants are met and regulatory compliance is maintained. During 2007, the
board of directors of the company declared and paid dividends totaling $1,280,561 to the
Town (2006 - $310,780).

Covenants in the company's financing agreements state that no dividends, withdrawals,
bonuses, advances to shareholders, management or affiliates are permitted that would place
any bank credit conditions in default.
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Auditors' Report

To the Shareholder of
Grand Valley Energy Inc.

We have audited the balance sheet of Grand Valley Energy Inc. as at December 31, 2007 and the
statements of operations and retained earnings and cash flows for the year then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the company as at December 31, 2007 and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting

principles.

oo Dieree zﬁ,,,,aw,gwékf Lol F

Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

Orangeville, Ontario
February 28, 2008

BDO Dunwoody LLP is a Limited Liability Partnership registered in Ontario




Grand Valley Energy Inc.
Balance Sheet

December 31 2007 2006
Assets
Current
Cash $ 88,862 $ 58,784
Short-term investments (Note 2) 67,428 115,006
Accounts receivable 153,943 174,804
Inventory - 905
Prepaid expenses 3,341 6,173
Accrued unbilled revenue 59,025 57,230
Payments in lieu of income taxes recoverable - 5,988
Other current assets 3,264 5,834
375,863 424,724
Capital assets (Note 3) 312,367 317,070
Regulatory assets (Note 4) - 32,684

$ 688,230 $ 774,478

Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity

Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 137,639 $ 154,010
Current portion of consumer deposits 3,000 3,000
Current portion of regulatory liabilities (Note 4) 23,298 40,909
Other current liabilities 9,004 7,310
172,941 205,229
Regulatory liabilities (Note 4) 17,022 -
Consumer deposits 14,810 10,700
204,773 215,929
Contingencies (Note 11)
Shareholder's equity
Share capital (Note 6) 100 100
Contributed surplus 436,871 436,871
Retained earnings (Page 4) 46,486 121,578
483,457 558,549

$ 688,230 $ 774,478

On behalf of the Board:

Director Director

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Grand Valley Energy Inc.
Statement of Operations and Retained Earnings

For the year ended December 31 2007 2006
Service revenue $ 952,481 $ 920,768
Cost of power 725,993 681,557
Gross margin on service revenue 226,488 239,211
Other operating revenue 29,434 34,798
Gross margin 255,922 274,009
Operating and maintenance expenses
Distribution 34,092 36,138
Billing and collection 64,979 41,262
General and administrative 133,070 165,292
Amortization 42,798 41,915
Financial 1,075 7,247
276,014 291,854
Loss for the year (20,092) (17,845)
Retained earnings, beginning of year 121,578 139,423
Dividends (55,000) -
Retained earnings, end of year $ 46,486 $ 121,578

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Grand Valley Energy Inc.
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31 2007 2006
Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Net loss $ (20,092) $ (17,845)
Items not involving cash
Amortization of capital assets 42,798 41,915
22,706 24,070
Changes in non-cash working capital balances
Accounts receivable 20,861 (124,077)
Inventory 905 -
Prepaid expenses 2,832 (1,186)
Accrued unbilled revenue (1,795) 118,478
Other current assets 2,570 (5,834)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (16,371) (13,803)
Payments in lieu of income taxes recoverable 5,988 -
Current portion of regulatory liabilities (17,611) 393
Other current liabilities 1,694 (15,807)
(927) (41,836)
Net change in non-current balance sheet items 53,816 (18,513)
75,595 (36,279)
Investing activities
Purchase of capital assets (38,095) (30,072)
Net proceeds on sale of investments 47,578 21,926
9,483 (8,146)
Financing activities
Dividends (55,000) -
Increase (decrease) in cash during the year 30,078 (44,425)
Cash, beginning of year 58,784 103,209
Cash, end of year $ 88,862 $ 58,784

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



December 31, 2007

Grand Valley Energy Inc.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

Nature of Business

Use of Estimates

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles for municipal electrical utilities in
Ontario as required by the Ontario Energy Board under
authority of Section 57, 70(2) and 78 of the Ontario Energy
Board Act, 1998 and reflect the policies as set forth in the
"Accounting Procedures Handbook." All principles employed
are in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles.

The Distributor is a corporation, incorporated under the laws of
the Province of Ontario to distribute electricity. The Distributor
is licensed by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB) to supply
electricity to Customers as described in the Transitional
Distribution License and thereafter by the Distribution License
issued to the Distributor by the OEB. Additionally there are
requirements imposed on the Distributor by the various codes
referred to in the License and by the Electricity Act and the
Ontario Energy Board Act. The Distributor is limited to operate
distribution facilities within their Licensed Territory as defined
in the Distribution License.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from management's best estimates as additional
information becomes available in the future.



December 31, 2007

Grand Valley Energy Inc.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Financial Instruments

Effective January 1, 2007, the company adopted the Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA) Handbook sections
1530 - Comprehensive Income, 3855 - Financial Instruments -
Recognition and Measurement and 3861 - Financial
Instruments - Disclosure and Presentation. As provided under
the standards, the comparative financial statements have not
been restated. Relevant changes as a result of these new
Handbook sections on the accounting for financial instruments
are outlined below.

Comprehensive Income

Section 1530 describes the recognition and disclosure
requirements with respect to comprehensive income.
Comprehensive income consists of net income and other
comprehensive income (OCI). OCI represents changes in the
fair value of a financial instrument which have not been
included in net income. The company had no adjustments to
other comprehensive income during the year ended December
31, 2007; therefore, the adoption of this standard does not
have an impact on the financial statements.

Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement

Section 3855 describes the recognition and measurement
requirements for financial assets and financial liabilities. On
initial recognition, all financial instruments that meet the
definition of a financial asset or financial liability are to be
recorded at fair value, unless fair value cannot be reliably
determined. Subsequent measurement depends on whether
the financial instrument has been classified as “held-for-
trading”, “available-for-sale”, “held-to-maturity”, “loans and
receivables” or “other financial liabilities”. As of January 1,
2007, the company has elected the following balance sheet
classifications with respect to its financial assets and financial
liabilities.

Cash is classified as “held-for-trading” and is measured at fair
value.

Short-term investments are classified as “held-to-maturity” and
are measured at amortized cost, which, upon initial
recognition, is considered equivalent to fair value.

Accounts receivable and accrued unbilled revenue are
classified as “loans and receivables” and are measured at
amortized cost, which, upon initial recognition, is considered

7



December 31, 2007

Grand Valley Energy Inc.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Corporate Income Taxes

Inventory

Capital Assets

equivalent to fair value. Subsequent measurements are
recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are classified as
“other financial liabilities” and are initially measured at their fair
value. Subsequent measurements are recorded at amortized
cost using the effective interest rate method.

These new standards were applied as at January 1, 2007 and
did not have any impact on the financial statements.

Management's opinion is that the company is not exposed to
significant interest, currency or credit risks arising from these
financial instruments.

The company provides for payments in lieu of corporate
income taxes using the taxes payable method. Under the taxes
payable method, no provisions are made for future income
taxes as a result of temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
accounting purposes. When unrecorded future income taxes
become payable, it is expected that they will be included in the
rates approved by the OEB and recovered by the customers of
the company at that time.

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined on an average cost basis.

Capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortization. Cost is net of related investment tax credits and
government grants. Amortization based on the estimated
useful life of the asset is calculated using the straight-line
method over the following number of years:

Computer equipment 5 years
Computer software 5 years
Distribution stations 30 years
Distribution system 25 years
Meters 25 years
Office equipment 10 years
Rolling stock 5 -8 years
Sentinel lights 10 years
Stores equipment 10 years
Tools and equipment 10 years
Transformers 25 years



Grand Valley Energy Inc.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

December 31, 2007

Consumer Deposits Consumer deposits are cash collections from customers to
guarantee the payment of energy bills. The consumer deposits
liability includes interest credited to the customers’ deposit
accounts, with the debit charged to interest expense. Deposits
expected to be refunded to customers within the next fiscal
year are classified as a current liability.

Regulatory Assets/Liabilities Regulatory assets/liabilities represent costs/receipts that have
been deferred according to OEB regulatory guidelines.
Regulatory assets/liabilities are reflected on the balance sheet
until the manner and timing of disposition is determined by the
OEB.

Revenue Revenue is recognized in the financial statements on the
accrual basis when the energy is supplied to the users,
whether billed or unbilled.

New Accounting

Pronouncements Recent accounting pronouncements that have been issued but
are not yet effective, and have a potential implication for the
company, are as follows:

Capital Disclosures

CICA Handbook Section 1535, Capital Disclosures, requires
disclosure of an entity's objectives, policies and processes for
managing capital, quantitative data about what the entity
regards as capital, whether the entity has complied with any
capital requirements and, if the company has not complied, the
consequences of such non-compliance. This standard is
effective for interim and annual financial statements relating to
fiscal years beginning on or after October 1, 2007. The
company is currently assessing the impact of the new
standard.

Future Income Taxes

CICA Handbook Section 3465, Income Taxes, requires that
rate regulated entities recognize future income taxes and a
separate asset or liability for the future revenue or reduction in
revenue expected as a result of a company's action in respect
of future income taxes for fiscal years beginning on or after
January 1, 2009. The company is currently assessing the
impact of this standard.



December 31, 2007

Grand Valley Energy Inc.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

International Financial Reporting Standards

The CICA plans to converge Canadian GAAP with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) over a
transition period expected to end in 2011. The impact of the
transition to IFRS on the company's financial statements has
yet to be determined.
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Grand Valley Energy Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2007

1. Comparative Amounts

The comparative amounts presented in the financial statements have been restated to
conform to the current year's presentation.

2. Short-term Investments

2007 2006
Royal Bank, one year cashable GIC,
due November 2007, 3.15% $ - 8 50,000
Equitable Trust, five year annual GIC,
due October 2010, 3.86% 67,428 65,006

$ 67,428 $ 115,006

Included in other operating revenue for the year ended December 31, 2007 is interest income
of $3,839 (2006 - $3,432) earned on short-term investments.

Short-term investments are recorded at market value.

11



December 31, 2007

Grand Valley Energy Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

3. Capital Assets

2007

2006

Accumulated

Accumulated

Cost Amortization Cost  Amortization

Services $ 55,008 $ 41,282 $ 51,195 $ 39,422
Distribution lines - overhead 343,920 284,477 333,088 273,714
Distribution lines - underground 244,895 179,807 244,330 170,172
Distribution meters 66,3869 48,906 66,3869 47,138
Distribution stations 41,900 5,587 41,900 4,190
Distribution transformers 275,392 178,441 252,507 169,169
Other capital assets 64,146 41,263 69,403 38,417
$ 1,092,130 $ 779,763 $ 1,059,292 $ 742,222

Net book value $ 312,367 $ 317,070
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Grand Valley Energy Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2007

4,

Regulatory Assets (Liabilities)

Qualifying transition costs are costs incurred related to the preparations required for market
opening. In accordance with Ontario Energy Board (OEB) guidelines, expenditures were
allowed to be deferred during the period January 1, 2000 to December 31, 2002, which would
be capitalized or expensed under Canadian generally accepted accounting principles for
unregulated businesses. For the period January 1, 2003 to December 31, 2007, transition
costs were increased by OEB-prescribed carrying charges.

The energy market in Ontario opened to competition on May 1, 2002. Since May 1, 2002, the
difference between the cost of power based on time-of-use rates and amounts billed to non-
time-of-use customers charged at an average rate are recorded in settlement variance
accounts as directed by the OEB. These variance accounts ensure that a utility's gross profit
is limited to distribution revenue and service charges.

The regulatory assets recovery account (RARA) includes regulatory asset balances the OEB
has approved for recovery. This approved balance will be recovered over a period ending
March 31, 2008. The RARA is credited with recovery amounts and is debited by OEB-
prescribed carrying charges.

2007 2006

Regulatory assets (liabilities)
Settlement variances $ (35,569) $ (21,842)
Regulatory assets recovery account 43,471 102,747
7,902 80,905
Regulatory liabilities - low voltage (48,222) (89,130)
(40,320) (8,225)
Current portion of regulatory liability (23,298) (40,909)
Net regulatory assets $ (17,022) $ 32,684

13



Grand Valley Energy Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2007

5.

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes differs from the result which would be obtained by applying
the combined Canadian Federal and Provincial Statutory income tax rates to income before
income taxes. This difference results from the following items:

2007 2006
Loss before income taxes $ (20,091) $ (17,846)
Statutory income tax rate 18.62 % 18.62 %
Expected income tax recovery (3,741) (3,323)
Increase (decrease) in taxes resulting from:
Non-capital losses carried forward 1,903 1,791
Amortization in excess of capital cost allowance 1,838 1,532
Income tax expense $ -3 -

As of December 31, 2007, the company has non-capital losses of approximately $44,938
which are available to reduce taxable income in future years. If unused, these losses will
expire as follows:

2015 $ 25,098
2026 9,620
2027 10,220

$ 44,938

14



Grand Valley Energy Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2007

6. Share Capital
The authorized common share capital of the company is an unlimited number of shares.
The authorized preference share capital of the company is an unlimited number of preference
shares.
The issued share capital is as follows:
2007 2006
100 Common shares $ 100 $ 100
7. Public Liability Insurance
The company is a member of The Electrical Distributors Association Reciprocal Insurance
Exchange which is a pooling of the public liability insurance risks of many of the municipal
utilities in Ontario. All members of the pool are subject to assessment for losses experienced
by the pool for the years in which they are members on a pro-rata basis based on the total of
their respective service revenues.
It is anticipated that, should such an assessment occur, it would be funded over a period of up
to five years. To December 31, 2007, no assessments have been made with respect to 2007
or prior years.
8. Future Income Taxes

Future income taxes have not been recognized in these financial statements. Section 3465 of
the CICA handbook does not require rate regulated enterprises to recognize future income
taxes if future income taxes are expected to be included in the approved rate charged to
customers in the future and are expected to be recovered from future customers. The
estimated future income tax liability that has not been recognized as at December 31, 2007 is
$31,000 (2006 - $29,000).
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Grand Valley Energy Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2007

9. Statement of Cash Flows
2007 2006
Interest paid $ - $ 7,247
10. Related Party Transactions

The Township of East Luther Grand Valley is the sole shareholder of the company. The
company provides water and sewage billing and collection services to the customers of the
Township as well as supplying streetlighting energy and streetlighting maintenance services
to the Township.

The following table summarizes the company's related party transactions for the year:

2007 2006

Revenue
Sales to parent company $ 12,210 $ 7,435

These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange
value (the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties), which
approximates the arm's length equivalent value for sales of product.

Included in accounts payable at December 31, 2007 is $Nil (2006 - $27,100) payable to the
Township.

Included in accounts receivable at December 31, 2007 is $11,778 (2006 - $8,881) receivable
from the Township.
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Grand Valley Energy Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2007

11.

Contingencies

A class action is seeking $500 million in restitution for amounts paid to Toronto Hydro and to
other Ontario municipal electric utilities ("LDCs") who received late payment charges from
customers that were in excess of the interest limit stipulated in section 347 of the Criminal
Code. Pleadings have closed in this action. The action has not yet been certified as a class
action and no discoveries have been held since the parties were awaiting the outcome of
similar proceedings brought against Enbridge Gas Distribution Inc. (formerly Consumers
Gas).

On April 22, 2004, the Supreme Court of Canada released a decision in the Consumers Gas
case rejecting all of the defences which had been raised by Enbridge, although the Court did
not permit the Plaintiff class to recover damages for any period prior to the issuance of the
Statement of Claim in 1994. The Supreme Court remitted the matter back to the Ontario
Superior Court of Justice for determination of the damages. At the end of 2006, a mediation
process resulted in the settlement of the damages payable by Enbridge.

In 2007, Enbridge filed an application to the Ontario Energy Board (“OEB”) to recover the
Court-approved amount and related amounts from ratepayers. On February 4, 2008 the OEB
approved recovery of the said amounts from ratepayers over a five year period.

After the release by the Supreme Court of Canada of its 2004 decision in the Consumers Gas
case, the plaintiffs in the LDC late payment penalties class action indicated their intention to
proceed with their litigation against the LDCs. To date, no formal steps have been taken to
move the action forward. The electric utilities intend to respond to the action if and when it
proceeds on the basis that the LDCs’ situation may be distinguishable from that of Consumers
Gas.

It is not possible at this time to quantify the effect, if any, of this action on the financial
statements of the company.

12.

Subsequent Event

The company entered into an agreement on October 9, 2007 to merge with Orangeville
Hydro Limited for the purpose of providing electricity distribution services in the Towns of
Grand Valley and Orangeville as a single corporate entity. The merger is anticipated to occur
in 2008 pending approval by the Ontario Energy Board.
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Grand Valley Energy Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2007

13. Contractual Obligations

The company has a letter of credit of $53,557 issued in favour of the Independent Electricity
System Operator (IESO). No amounts have been drawn as at December 31, 2007.
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Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholder of
Orangeville Hydro Limited

We have audited the balance sheet of Orangeville Hydro Limited as at December 31, 2008 and the
statements of operations and retained earnings and cash flows for the year then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the company as at December 31, 2008 and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles.

Rdo M LuP

Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

Orangeville, Ontario
March 2, 2009



Orangeville Hydro Limited
Balance Sheet

December 31 2008 2007
Assets
Current
Cash (note 1) $ 1,622,746 $ 1,315,135
Accounts receivable (note 13) 2,851,736 2,727,540
Accrued unbilled revenue 1,628,805 1,696,635
Payments in lieu of income taxes receivable 146,604 143,645
Other current assets 113,072 204,397
6,362,963 6,087,352
Due from related party (note 2) 65,000 -
Capital assets (note 3) 13,459,387 13,257,365
$ 19,887,350 $ 19,344,717
Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 13) $ 3,226,498 $ 2,986,657
Current portion of consumer deposits 25,000 25,000
Current portion of long-term debt (note 4) 196,741 185,981
Current portion of regulatory liabilities (note 5) - 34,894
Other current liabilities 181,137 202,705
3,629,376 3,435,237
Long-term debt (note 4) 6,046,799 6,243,417
Regulatory liabilities (note 5) 1,255,409 1,150,666
Post-employment benefits (note 6) 188,898 152,331
Consumer deposits 524,262 487,812
11,644,744 11,469,463
Contingency (note 7)
Shareholder's equity
Share capital (note 8) 7,815,535 7,815,535
Retained earnings (page 4) 427,071 59,719
8,242,606 7,875,254
$ 19,887,350 $ 19,344,717
On behalf of the Board:
Director Director

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Orangeville Hydro Limited
Statement of Operations and Retained Earnings

For the year ended December 31 2008 2007
Service revenue $ 21,670,196 $ 22,119,800
Cost of power 17,524,426 18,006,331
Gross margin on service revenue 4,145,770 4,113,469
Other operating revenue 447,700 556,052
Gross margin 4,593,470 4,669,521
Operating and maintenance expenses
Distribution 765,956 682,534
Billing and collection 437,086 418,609
General and administrative 1,002,821 988,583
Amortization 927,631 929,960
Financial 409,882 489,483
3,543,376 3,509,169
Income before payments in lieu of income taxes 1,050,094 1,160,352
Payments in lieu of income taxes (note 9) 406,026 513,187
Net income for the year 644,068 647,165
Retained earnings, beginning of year 59,719 693,115
Dividends (276,716) (1,280,561)
Retained earnings, end of year 427,071 $ 59,719

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Orangeville Hydro Limited
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31 2008 2007
Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Net income $ 644,068 $ 647,165
Items not involving cash
Amortization of capital assets 1,005,961 1,042,416
Loss (gain) on disposal of capital assets 3,647 (5,565)
Increase in post-employment benefits 36,567 23,710
1,690,243 1,707,726
Changes in non-cash working capital balances
Accounts receivable (124,196) 99,689
Accrued unbilled revenue 67,830 (48,019)
Payments in lieu of income taxes receivable (2,959) (143,645)
Other current assets 91,325 (85,047)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 239,841 164,554
Payments in lieu of income taxes payable - (14,963)
Current portion of regulatory liabilities (34,894) (46,370)
Other current liabilities (21,568) 25,060
215,379 (48,741)
Net change in non-current balance sheet items 141,193 (59,214)
2,046,815 1,599,771
Investing activities
Purchase of capital assets (1,466,569) (1,449,064)
Proceeds on sale of capital assets 694 5,940
Advance to related party (65,000) -
(1,530,875) (1,443,124)
Financing activities
Advance of long-term debt - 6,500,000
Repayment of long-term debt (185,858) (7,870,602)
Dividends (276,716) (1,280,561)
Capital contributions received 254,245 534,860
(208,329) (2,116,303)
Increase (decrease) in cash during the year 307,611 (1,959,656)
Cash, beginning of year 1,315,135 3,274,791

Cash, end of year

$ 1,622,746 $ 1,315,135

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



December 31, 2008

Orangeville Hydro Limited

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

Nature of Business

Use of Estimates

Financial Instruments

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles for municipal electrical utilities in
Ontario as required by the Ontario Energy Board under
authority of Section 57, 70(2) and 78 of the Ontario Energy
Board Act, 1998 and reflect the policies as set forth in the
"Accounting Procedures Handbook." All principles employed
are in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles.

The Distributor is a corporation, incorporated under the laws of
the Province of Ontario to distribute electricity. The Distributor
is licensed by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB) to supply
electricity to Customers as described in the Transitional
Distribution License and thereafter by the Distribution License
issued to the Distributor by the OEB. Additionally there are
requirements imposed on the Distributor by the various codes
referred to in the License and by the Electricity Act and the
Ontario Energy Board Act. The Distributor is limited to operate
distribution facilities within their Licensed Territory as defined
in the Distribution License.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from management's best estimates as additional
information becomes available in the future.

On initial recognition, all financial instruments that meet the
definition of a financial asset or financial liability are recorded
at fair value, unless fair value cannot be reliably determined.
Subsequent measurement depends on whether the financial
instrument has been classified as “held-for-trading”, “available-
for-sale”, “held-to-maturity”, “loans and receivables” or “other
financial liabilities”. The company has elected the following
balance sheet classifications with respect to its financial assets

and financial liabilities.

Cash is classified as “held-for-trading” and is measured at fair
value.

Accounts receivable, accrued unbilled revenue and due from
related party are classified as “loans and receivables” and are
measured at amortized cost, which, upon initial recognition, is
considered equivalent to fair value. Subsequent
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December 31, 2008

Orangeville Hydro Limited

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Financial Instruments (continued)

Capital Assets

measurements are recorded at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method. The carrying amounts of
accounts receivable and accrued unbilled revenue
approximate their fair value due to their relatively short periods
to maturity. The carrying amount of due to related party
approximates fair value since the terms and conditions are
comparable to current market conditions.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are classified as
“other financial liabilities” and are initially measured at fair
value. Subsequent measurements are recorded at amortized
cost using the effective interest rate method. The carrying
amount of these instruments approximate their fair value due
to their relatively short periods to maturity.

Long-term debt is classified as “other financial liabilities” and is
initially measured at fair value. Subsequent measurements are
recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method. The carrying amount of long-term debt approximates
fair value since the terms and conditions are comparable to
current market conditions.

Capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortization. Cost is net of related investment tax credits and
government grants. Amortization based on the estimated
useful life of the asset is calculated using the straight-line
method, with half a year's amortization in the year of
acquisition, over the following number of years:

Buildings 50 years
Computer equipment 5 years
Computer software 5 years
Distribution stations 30 years
Distribution system 25 years
Land rights 25 years
Meters 25 years
Office equipment 10 years
Rolling stock 5 -8 years
Sentinel lights 10 years
Stores equipment 10 years
Tools and equipment 10 years
Transformers 25 years

Spare and replacement parts includes assets not currently in
use, which are not amortized.



December 31, 2008

Orangeville Hydro Limited

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Corporate Income Taxes

Consumer Deposits

Regulatory Assets/Liabilities

Post Employment Benefits

Revenue

The company provides for payments in lieu of corporate
income taxes using the taxes payable method. Under the taxes
payable method, no provisions are made for future income
taxes as a result of temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
accounting purposes. When unrecorded future income taxes
become payable, it is expected that they will be included in the
rates approved by the OEB and recovered by the customers of
the company at that time.

Consumer deposits are cash collections from customers to
guarantee the payment of energy bills. The consumer deposits
liability includes interest credited to the customers’ deposit
accounts, with the debit charged to interest expense. Deposits
expected to be refunded to customers within the next fiscal
year are classified as a current liability.

Regulatory assets/liabilities represent costs/receipts that have
been deferred according to OEB regulatory guidelines.
Regulatory assets/liabilities are reflected on the balance sheet
until the manner and timing of disposition is determined by the
OEB.

The company accrues its obligations under employee benefit
plans and the related costs net of plan assets, if any. The
company has adopted the following policy:

The cost of retirement benefits earned by employees is
actuarially determined using the projected unit method pro-
rated on service and management's best estimate of
retirement ages of employees and expected health care costs.

Past service costs from plan amendments are amortized on a
straight-line basis over the average remaining service period
of employees active at the date of amendment.

The excess of net actuarial gain (loss) over 10% of the benefit
plan obligation is amortized over the average remaining
service period of active employees.

Revenue is recognized in the financial statements on the
accrual basis when the energy is supplied to the users,
whether billed or unbilled.



December 31, 2008

Orangeville Hydro Limited

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Changes in Accounting
Principles

Effective January 1, 2008, the company adopted the new
requirements of the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants (CICA) in the following areas.

Capital Disclosures

CICA Handbook Section 1535, Capital Disclosures, requires
disclosure of an entity's objectives, policies and processes for
managing capital, quantitative data about what the entity
manages as capital, whether during the period the entity
complied with any externally imposed capital requirements
and, if the company has not complied, the consequences of
such non-compliance. These disclosures have been described
in note 12.

Financial Instruments - Disclosures and Presentation

CICA Handbook Sections 3862, Financial Instruments -
Disclosures and 3863, Financial Instruments - Presentation,
requires increased disclosures regarding the risks associated
with financial instruments such as credit, liquidity and market
risks and the techniques used to identify, monitor and manage
these risks. Section 3863 carries forward unchanged the
presentation requirements of Section 3861. These disclosures
have been described in note 13.

Inventories

CICA Handbook Section 3031, Inventories, replaces Section
3030. This new standard provides more extensive guidance on
the determination of cost, including allocation of overheads;
requires inventories to be measured at the lower of cost and
net realizable value; provides more restrictive guidance on the
cost methodologies used; and, restricts the classification of
spare and replacement parts as inventory. Additional
disclosure requirements are prescribed including disclosures
relating to the accounting policies adopted in measuring
inventories, the carrying amount of inventories, the amount of
inventories recognized as an expense during the period, the
amount of write downs during the period and the amount of
any reversal of write downs that is recognized as a reduction of
expenses.



December 31, 2008

Orangeville Hydro Limited

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Changes in Accounting Principles (continued)

New Accounting
Pronouncements

In accordance with the new requirements, the company has
retrospectively reclassified all spare and replacement parts
from inventory to capital assets. As at December 31, 2008,
$296,963 was reclassified out of inventory and into capital
assets (2007 - $323,303).

Recent accounting pronouncements that have been issued but
are not yet effective, and have a potential implication for the
company, are as follows:

Future Income Taxes

CICA Handbook Section 3465, Income Taxes, has been
amended to require rate regulated entities to recognize future
income tax liabilities and assets, as well as a regulatory asset
or liability for the amount of future income taxes expected to
be included in future rates and recovered from or returned to
future customers. The amendments are effective for fiscal
years beginning on or after January 1, 2009. The company is
currently assessing the impact of this standard.

International Financial Reporting Standards

On February 13, 2008, the Accounting Standards Board
(ACSB) confirmed that publicly accountable entities will be
required to adopt IFRS in place of Canadian GAAP for
reporting purposes for fiscal years beginning on or after
January 1, 2011. The company is currently developing an
implementation plan for the adoption of IFRS. At this time, the
impact on the company's financial statements is not
reasonably determinable or estimable.
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Orangeville Hydro Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

1. Cash

The company's bank accounts are held at one chartered bank. Interest earned on cash
balances for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $69,831 (2007 - $154,660) and is
included in other operating revenue on the income statement.

2. Related Party Transactions

The Town of Orangeville is the sole shareholder of the company. The company provides
water and sewage billing and collection services to the customers of the Town as well as
supplying streetlighting energy and streetlighting maintenance services to the Town.

The following table summarizes the company's related party transactions for the year:

2008 2007

Revenue
Sales to parent company $ 425,848 $ 367,109

These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange
value (the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties), which
approximates the arm's length equivalent value for sales of product.

Included in accounts payable at December 31, 2008 is $579,378 (2007 - $556,042) payable to
the Town.

Included in accounts receivable at December 31, 2008 is $73,224 (2007 - $71,756)
receivable from the Town.

At the end of the year, the amount due from related parties is as follows:

2008 2007

Wholly-owned subsidiary of parent company $ 65,000 $ -

This balance represents an operating loan and bears interest at a rate of 6.0% per annum and
is due April 30, 2013.

11



December 31, 2008

Orangeville Hydro Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

3.

Capital Assets

2008

2007

Accumulated

Accumulated

Cost Amortization Cost  Amortization

Land $ 212281 % 13542 $ 212,281 $ 12,190
Buildings 2,727,221 772,025 2,620,518 727,581
Services 2,174,541 1,314,344 2,144,587 1,222,536
Distribution lines - overhead 7,298,905 4,128,266 7,079,361 3,881,985
Distribution lines - underground 6,830,133 3,138,243 6,391,113 2,887,107
Distribution meters 1,736,865 940,278 1,701,317 881,241
Distribution stations 860,992 540,541 848,022 517,791
Distribution transformers 7,416,203 3,278,774 6,849,283 3,012,218
Other capital assets 1,937,271 1,512,204 1,910,373 1,422,246
Spare and replacement parts 296,963 - 323,303 -
31,491,375 15,638,217 30,080,158 14,564,895

Contributions and grants (3,086,415) (692,644) (2,832,170) (574,272)
$28,404,960 $14,945573 $27,247,988 $13,990,623

Net book value $13,459,387 $13,257,365

12



Orangeville Hydro Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

4. Long-term Debt

2008 2007
Term loan payable - TD Bank, 5.59%, due 2017, repayable
in monthly payments of $45,048 principal and interest $ 6,243,540 $ 6,429,398
Less amounts due within one year included in current liabilities 196,741 185,981

$ 6,046,799 $ 6,243,417

The agreement with respect to the TD Bank term loan contains certain covenants regarding
(i) leverage, (i) liquidity, (iii) restrictions on business activities, (iv) restrictions on
distributions, (v) change in ownership, (vi) mergers, acquisitions or change in line of business
and (vii) limitations on additional debt and encumbrance of assets.

Principal repayments for the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

2009 $ 196,741
2010 206,912
2011 218,779
2012 230,432
2013 244,543
Thereafter 5,146,133

$ 6,243,540

The interest on long-term debt during the year amounted to $354,715 and is included in
financial expense.

Other credit facilities includes an operating facility of up to $2,500,000, of which $1,667,771
was available as at December 31, 2008 (2007 - $1,667,771).

13



Orangeville Hydro Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

5.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

2008 2007

Regulatory assets (liabilities)
Quialifying transition costs $ (12,260) $ (11,746)
Settlement variances (1,199,561) (901,530)
Regulatory assets recovery account (1,073) (167,038)
Low voltage asset (liability) 13,319 (67,945)
Smart meters (55,834) (37,301)

(1,255,409) (1,185,560)
Current portion of regulatory liabilities - (34,894)

Net regulatory liabilities $ (1,255,409) $ (1,150,666)

Qualifying transition costs are costs incurred related to the preparations required for market
opening. In accordance with Ontario Energy Board (OEB) guidelines, expenditures were
allowed to be deferred during the period January 1, 2000 to December 31, 2002, which would
be capitalized or expensed under Canadian generally accepted accounting principles for
unregulated businesses. For the period January 1, 2003 to December 31, 2008, transition
costs were increased by OEB-prescribed carrying charges.

The energy market in Ontario opened to competition on May 1, 2002. Since May 1, 2002, the
difference between the cost of power based on time-of-use rates and amounts billed to non-
time-of-use customers charged at an average rate are recorded in settlement variance
accounts as directed by the OEB. These variance accounts ensure that a utility's gross profit
is limited to distribution revenue and service charges.

The regulatory assets recovery account (RARA) includes regulatory asset balances the OEB
has approved for recovery. This approved balance was recovered over a period ending
March 31, 2008, with a difference of $1,073 to be settled based on future direction from the
OEB. The RARA is credited with recovery amounts and is debited by OEB-prescribed
carrying charges.

Beginning May 1, 2006, the OEB has allowed the company to defer the revenues approved
by the OEB for smart meters and the related capital costs incurred by the company.
Accordingly, the company has deferred these amounts in accordance with the criteria set out
by the OEB.

14



Orangeville Hydro Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

6. Pension Agreement and Post Employment Benefits

(@)

(b)

Pension Agreement

The company makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund
(OMERS), which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of members of its staff. The plan is
a defined benefit plan which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be
received by the employees based on the length of service and rates of pay. The amount
contributed to OMERS for the year ending December 31, 2008 was $99,037 (2007 -
$86,765) for current service. There is no liability for past service.

Post Employment Benefits

The company provides certain non-pension post-employment benefits consisting of
extended health and other benefits. The cost of providing pension and other post-
retirement benefits is actuarially determined and charged to operations using the
projected benefits method prorated on service and management's best estimate of
expected plan investment performance, salary escalation, terminations, retirement ages
of plan members and expected health care costs. The pension expense for the year
includes adjustments for plan amendments, experience gains and losses and changes in
assumptions that are being amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected average
remaining service lives of the plan members. Any differences between the cumulative
amounts expensed and the funding contributions are reflected as either an asset or a
liability.

The latest actuarial valuation of the benefit plan, as of December 31, 2007, estimated
the post employment benefit liability to be $160,465.

2008 2007
Accrued benefit obligation $ 315,467 $ 244,600
Less unamortized past service costs 126,569 92,269
Benefit plan obligation $ 188,898 $ 152,331
Benefit plan expense $ 49,035 $ 36,595
Less benefit plan payments 12,468 12,885
Net plan expense $ 36,567 $ 23,710
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Orangeville Hydro Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

7.

Contingency

A class action is seeking $500 million in restitution for amounts paid to Toronto Hydro and to
other Ontario municipal electric utilities (LDCs) who received late payment charges from
customers that were in excess of the interest limit stipulated in section 347 of the Criminal
Code. Pleadings have closed in this action. The action has not yet been certified as a class
action and no discoveries have been held since the parties were awaiting the outcome of
similar proceedings brought against Enbridge Gas Distribution Inc. (formerly Consumers
Gas).

On April 22, 2004, the Supreme Court of Canada released a decision in the Consumers Gas
case rejecting all of the defences which had been raised by Enbridge, although the Court did
not permit the Plaintiff class to recover damages for any period prior to the issuance of the
Statement of Claim in 1994. The Supreme Court remitted the matter back to the Ontario
Superior Court of Justice for determination of the damages. At the end of 2006, a mediation
process resulted in the settlement of the damages payable by Enbridge.

In 2007, Enbridge filed an application to the Ontario Energy Board (OEB) to recover the
Court-approved amount and related amounts from ratepayers. On February 4, 2008 the OEB
approved recovery of the said amounts from ratepayers over a five year period.

After the release by the Supreme Court of Canada of its 2004 decision in the Consumers Gas
case, the plaintiffs in the LDC late payment penalties class action indicated their intention to
proceed with their litigation against the LDCs. To date, no formal steps have been taken to
move the action forward. The electric utilities intend to respond to the action if and when it
proceeds on the basis that the LDCs’ situation may be distinguishable from that of Consumers
Gas.

It is not possible at this time to quantify the effect, if any, of this action on the financial
statements of the company.

Share Capital
The authorized common share capital of the company is an unlimited number of shares.
The issued share capital is as follows:

2008 2007

100 Common shares $ 7,815535 $ 7,815,535

16



Orangeville Hydro Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

9. Income Taxes
The provision for income taxes differs from the result which would be obtained by applying
the combined Canadian Federal and Provincial Statutory income tax rates to income before
income taxes. This difference results from the following items:
2008 2007
Income before income taxes $ 1,050,094 $ 1,160,352
Statutory income tax rate 33.50 % 36.12 %
Expected income tax expense 351,781 419,119
Increase (decrease) in taxes resulting from:
Permanent differences (7,706) (5,385)
Amortization in excess of capital cost allowance 54,177 72,099
Post-employment expenses in excess of payments 12,250 8,564
Pre-market opening energy variances 9,264 39,955
Other - (29)
Small business tax rate reduction (10,495) -
Prior year amendments (3,245) (21,136)
Income tax expense $ 406,026 $ 513,187
10. Future Income Taxes

Future income taxes have not been recognized in these financial statements. Section 3465 of
the CICA handbook does not require rate regulated enterprises to recognize future income
taxes if future income taxes are expected to be included in the approved rate charged to
customers in the future and are expected to be recovered from future customers. The
estimated future income tax asset that has not been recognized as at December 31, 2008 is
$540,000 (2007 - $470,000).
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Orangeville Hydro Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

11.

Statement of Cash Flows

2008 2007
Interest paid $ 354,517 $ 422,189
Payments in lieu of income taxes $ 560,000 $ 683,038

12.

Capital Disclosures
The company’s objectives when managing its capital are to:

e maintain a financial position suitable for supporting the company’s operations and growth
strategies;

e provide an adequate return to its shareholder;
e comply with covenants related to its credit facilities; and

e align its capital structure for regulated activities with debt to equity structure
recommended by the OEB, which is 60% debt and 40% equity by 2010.

The company defines capital as the aggregate of shareholder's equity and long-term debt.
This definition has remained unchanged from December 31, 2007. As at December 31, 2008,
shareholder’s equity amounts to $8,243,848 (2007 - $7,875,254) and long-term debt amounts
to $6,243,540 (2007 - $6,429,398). The company'’s capital structure as at December 31, 2008
is 43% debt and 57% equity (2007 - 45% debt and 55% equity). There have been no changes
in the company’s overall capital management strategy during the year.

The company has externally imposed capital requirements in the form of credit facility
agreements that contain various covenants (note 4). The company’s credit facility limits the
debt to capitalization ratio to 60.0%. As at December 31, 2008, the debt to capitalization ratio
was 31.0% (2007 - 32.0%). The company was in compliance with all credit facility agreement
covenants as at December 31, 2008 (and 2007).
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Orangeville Hydro Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

13. Financial Instruments Risk Factors

The following is a discussion of risks and related mitigation strategies that have been
identified by the company for financial instruments. This is not an exhaustive list of all risks,
nor will the mitigation strategies eliminate all risks listed.

The company’s activities provide for a variety of financial risks, particularly credit risk,
liquidity risk and interest rate risk.

Credit risk

Financial instruments are exposed to credit risk due to the risk of a counter-party defaulting
on its obligations. The company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying
value of its financial assets. The company’s objective is to maximize credit collection and
minimize bad debt expense. Credit risk is managed by monitoring and limiting exposure to
credit risk on a continuous basis.

The credit risk associated with accounts receivable is the collection of amounts due from
customers. The majority of the company's customers are residential customers. The company
has procedures in place to ensure timely follow up on overdue amounts and to ensure
additional credit is not extended to customers with certain arrears. The company collects
security deposits from customers in accordance with directions provided by the OEB. As at
December 31, 2008, the company held security deposits in the amount of $549,262 (2007 -
$512,812). The company also has insurance that provides $0.12 on every dollar of bad debt.

The carrying amount of accounts receivable is reduced through the use of an allowance for
doubtful accounts based on the financial condition of counter-parties and by applying to total
accounts receivable a percentage based on past experience. The amount of the related
impairment loss is recognized in the income statement. Subsequent recoveries of receivables
previously provisioned are credited to the income statement.

Credit risk associated with accounts receivable is as follows:

2008 2007
Total accounts receivable $ 2,863,836 $ 2,747,540
Allowance for doubtful accounts (12,100) (20,000)
Total accounts receivable, net $ 2,851,736 $ 2,727,540
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Orangeville Hydro Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

13. Financial Instruments Risk Factors (continued)

Accounts receivable outstanding for:

Not more than 30 days $ 2,654,141 $ 2,534,250
More than 30 days 209,695 213,290
Allowance for doubtful accounts (12,100) (20,000)
Total accounts receivable, net $ 2,851,736 $ 2,727,540

At December 31, 2008, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk with respect to
any class of financial assets or counterparties.

Liquidity risk

The following liquidity risks are associated with financial instruments: accounts payable and
accrued liabilities are due within one year; and long-term debt commitments (note 4). The
company’s objective is to ensure it has access to sufficient funds to meet cash flow
commitments related to financial instruments. Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring cash
balances, maintaining a portion of assets in liquid securities and having access to credit
facilities.

Interest rate risk

The company is exposed to interest rate risk on its long-term debt. The company’s objective
is to minimize net interest expense. Interest rate risk is managed by entering into long-term
fixed-rate debt.

14.

Public Liability Insurance

The company is a member of The Electrical Distributors Association Reciprocal Insurance
Exchange which is a pooling of the public liability insurance risks of many of the municipal
utilities in Ontario. All members of the pool are subject to assessment for losses experienced
by the pool for the years in which they are members on a pro-rata basis based on the total of
their respective service revenues.

It is anticipated that, should such an assessment occur, it would be funded over a period of up
to five years. To December 31, 2008, no assessments have been made with respect to 2008
or prior years.

20



Orangeville Hydro Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

15.

Subdivision Agreements

As part of various subdivision agreements, the company has received letters of credit to
cover developers' responsibilities in completing the projects. Letters of credit held by the
company at December 31, 2008 amount to $653,457 (2007 - $414,448).

16.

Subsequent Event

The company entered into an agreement on December 3, 2007 to merge with Grand Valley
Energy Inc. for the purpose of providing electricity distribution services in the Towns of
Orangeville and Grand Valley as a single corporate entity. The merger was approved by the
Ontario Energy Board during 2008 and occurred on January 1, 2009.

17.

Contractual Obligations

The company has a letter of credit of $832,229 issued in favour of the Independent Electricity
System Operator (IESO). No amounts have been drawn as at December 31, 2008.

18.

Dividends

Subject to applicable law, shareholder direction provided that the company would pay
dividends to the Town of Orangeville in December of each year in the amount of 50% of the
company's projected annual net income. Additional dividends may be applicable as long as
the financing covenants are met and regulatory compliance is maintained. During 2008, the
board of directors of the company declared and paid dividends totaling $276,716 to the Town
(2007 - $1,280,561).

Covenants in the company's financing agreements state that no dividends, withdrawals,
bonuses, advances to shareholders, management or affiliates are permitted that would place
any bank credit conditions in default.
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Auditors' Report

To the Shareholder of
Grand Valley Energy Inc.

We have audited the balance sheet of Grand Valley Energy Inc. as at December 31, 2008 and the
statements of operations and retained earnings and cash flows for the year then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the company as at December 31, 2008 and the results of its operations and its cash

flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles.

BEbro Quwwé,r LP

Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

Orangeville, Ontario
March 2, 2009



Grand Valley Energy Inc.
Balance Sheet

December 31 2008 2007
Assets
Current
Cash (note 1) $ 168,663 $ 88,862
Short-term investments (note 2) 69,830 67,428
Accounts receivable (note 11) 152,960 153,943
Prepaid expenses - 3,341
Accrued unbilled revenue 49,591 59,025
Other current assets 10,762 3,264
451,806 375,863
Capital assets (note 3) 345,763 312,367
$ 797,569 $ 688,230
Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 11) $ 269,322 $ 137,639
Current portion of consumer deposits 3,000 3,000
Current portion of regulatory liabilities (note 4) 7,314 23,298
Other current liabilities 9,009 9,004
288,645 172,941
Regulatory liabilities (note 4) 16,758 17,022
Consumer deposits 16,988 14,810
322,391 204,773
Contingencies (note 6)
Shareholder's equity
Share capital (note 7) 100 100
Contributed surplus 436,871 436,871
Retained earnings (page 4) 38,207 46,486
475,178 483,457
$ 797,569 $ 688,230
On behalf of the Board:
Director Director

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Grand Valley Energy Inc.
Statement of Operations and Retained Earnings

For the year ended December 31 2008 2007
Service revenue $ 927,107 $ 952,481
Cost of power 690,812 725,993
Gross margin on service revenue 236,295 226,488
Other operating revenue 22,162 29,434
Gross margin 258,457 255,922
Operating and maintenance expenses
Distribution 32,409 34,092
Billing and collection 64,628 64,979
General and administrative 115,796 133,070
Amortization 42,794 42,798
Financial 1,109 1,075
256,736 276,014
Net income (loss) for the year 1,721 (20,092)
Retained earnings, beginning of year 46,486 121,578
Dividends (10,000) (55,000)
Retained earnings, end of year $ 38,207 $ 46,486

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Grand Valley Energy Inc.
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31 2008 2007
Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Net income (loss) $ 1,721 $ (20,092)
Items not involving cash
Amortization of capital assets 42,794 42,798
44,515 22,706
Changes in non-cash working capital balances
Accounts receivable 983 20,861
Inventory - 905
Prepaid expenses 3,341 2,832
Accrued unbilled revenue 9,434 (1,795)
Other current assets (7,498) 2,570
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 131,683 (16,371)
Payments in lieu of income taxes recoverable - 5,988
Current portion of regulatory liabilities (15,984) (17,611)
Other current liabilities 5 1,694
121,964 (927)
Net change in non-current balance sheet items 1,914 53,816
168,393 75,595
Investing activities
Purchase of capital assets (76,190) (38,095)
Purchase of short-term investments (2,402) -
Net proceeds on sale of short-term investments - 47,578
(78,592) 9,483
Financing activities
Dividends (10,000) (55,000)
Increase in cash during the year 79,801 30,078
Cash, beginning of year 88,862 58,784
Cash, end of year $ 168,663 $ 88,862

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



December 31, 2008

Grand Valley Energy Inc.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

Nature of Business

Use of Estimates

Financial Instruments

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles for municipal electrical utilities in
Ontario as required by the Ontario Energy Board under
authority of Section 57, 70(2) and 78 of the Ontario Energy
Board Act, 1998 and reflect the policies as set forth in the
"Accounting Procedures Handbook." All principles employed
are in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles.

The Distributor is a corporation, incorporated under the laws of
the Province of Ontario to distribute electricity. The Distributor
is licensed by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB) to supply
electricity to Customers as described in the Transitional
Distribution License and thereafter by the Distribution License
issued to the Distributor by the OEB. Additionally there are
requirements imposed on the Distributor by the various codes
referred to in the License and by the Electricity Act and the
Ontario Energy Board Act. The Distributor is limited to operate
distribution facilities within their Licensed Territory as defined
in the Distribution License.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from management's best estimates as additional
information becomes available in the future.

On initial recognition, all financial instruments that meet the
definition of a financial asset or financial liability are recorded
at fair value, unless fair value cannot be reliably determined.
Subsequent measurement depends on whether the financial
instrument has been classified as “held-for-trading”, “available-
for-sale”, “held-to-maturity”, “loans and receivables” or “other
financial liabilities”. The company has elected the following
balance sheet classifications with respect to its financial assets
and financial liabilities.

Cash is classified as “held-for-trading” and is measured at fair
value.



December 31, 2008

Grand Valley Energy Inc.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Financial Instruments (continued)

Corporate Income Taxes

Short-term investments are classified as “held-to-maturity” and
are measured at amortized cost, which, upon initial
recognition, is considered equivalent to fair value. The carrying
amount of short-term investments approximates fair value due
to its relatively short period to maturity.

Accounts receivable and accrued unbilled revenue are
classified as “loans and receivables” and are measured at
amortized cost, which, upon initial recognition, is considered
equivalent to fair value. Subsequent measurements are
recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method. The carrying amounts of these instruments
approximate their fair value due to their relatively short periods
to maturity.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are classified as
“other financial liabilities” and are initially measured at fair
value. Subsequent measurements are recorded at amortized
cost using the effective interest rate method. The carrying
amount of these instruments approximate their fair value due
to their relatively short periods to maturity.

The company provides for payments in lieu of corporate
income taxes using the taxes payable method. Under the taxes
payable method, no provisions are made for future income
taxes as a result of temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
accounting purposes. When unrecorded future income taxes
become payable, it is expected that they will be included in the
rates approved by the OEB and recovered by the customers of
the company at that time.



December 31, 2008

Grand Valley Energy Inc.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Capital Assets

Consumer Deposits

Regulatory Assets/Liabilities

Revenue

Capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortization. Cost is net of related investment tax credits and
government grants. Amortization based on the estimated
useful life of the asset is calculated using the straight-line
method, with half a year's amortization in the year of
acquisition, over the following number of years:

Computer equipment 5 years
Computer software 5 years
Distribution stations 30 years
Distribution system 25 years
Meters 25 years
Office equipment 10 years
Rolling stock 5 -8 years
Sentinel lights 10 years
Stores equipment 10 years
Tools and equipment 10 years
Transformers 25 years

Consumer deposits are cash collections from customers to
guarantee the payment of energy bills. The consumer deposits
liability includes interest credited to the customers’ deposit
accounts, with the debit charged to interest expense. Deposits
expected to be refunded to customers within the next fiscal
year are classified as a current liability.

Regulatory assets/liabilities represent costs/receipts that have
been deferred according to OEB regulatory guidelines.
Regulatory assets/liabilities are reflected on the balance sheet
until the manner and timing of disposition is determined by the
OEB.

Revenue is recognized in the financial statements on the
accrual basis when the energy is supplied to the users,
whether billed or unbilled.



December 31, 2008

Grand Valley Energy Inc.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Changes in Accounting
Principles

New Accounting
Pronouncements

Effective January 1, 2008, the company has adopted the new
requirements of the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants (CICA) in the following areas.

Capital Disclosures

CICA Handbook Section 1535, Capital Disclosures, requires
disclosure of an entity's objectives, policies and processes for
managing capital, quantitative data about what the entity
manages as capital, whether during the period the entity
complied with any externally imposed capital requirements
and, if the company has not complied, the consequences of
such non-compliance. These disclosures have been described
in note 10.

Financial Instruments - Disclosures and Presentation

CICA Handbook Sections 3862, Financial Instruments -
Disclosures and 3863, Financial Instruments - Presentation,
require increased disclosures regarding the risks associated
with financial instruments such as credit, liquidity and market
risks and the techniques used to identify, monitor and manage
these risks. Section 3863 carries forward unchanged the
presentation requirements of Section 3861. These disclosures
have been described in note 11.

Recent accounting pronouncements that have been issued but
are not yet effective, and have a potential implication for the
company, are as follows:

Future Income Taxes

CICA Handbook Section 3465, Income Taxes, has been
amended to require rate regulated entities to recognize future
income tax liabilities and assets, as well as a regulatory asset
or liability for the amount of future income taxes expected to
be included in future rates and recovered from or returned to
future customers. The amendments are effective for fiscal
years beginning on or after January 1, 2009. The company is
currently assessing the impact of this standard.



Grand Valley Energy Inc.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

December 31, 2008

New Accounting Pronouncements (continued)
International Financial Reporting Standards

On February 13, 2008, the Accounting Standards Board
(ACSB) confirmed that publicly accountable entities will be
required to adopt IFRS in place of Canadian GAAP for
reporting purposes for fiscal years beginning on or after
January 1, 2011. The company is currently developing an
implementation plan for the adoption of IFRS. At this time, the
impact on the company's financial statements is not
reasonably determinable or estimable.
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Grand Valley Energy Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

1. Cash

The company's bank accounts are held at one chartered bank.

2. Short-term Investments

2008 2007

Equitable Trust, five year annual GIC,
due October 2010, 3.86% $ 69,830 $ 67,428

Included in other operating revenue for the year ended December 31, 2008 is interest income
of $2,402 (2007 - $3,839) earned on short-term investments.

Short-term investments are recorded at market value.

3. Capital Assets

2008 2007

Accumulated Accumulated

Cost Amortization Cost  Amortization

Services $ 56,489 $ 43,148 $ 55,008 $ 41,282
Distribution lines - overhead 398,537 296,333 343,920 284,477
Distribution lines - underground 244,895 189,023 244,895 179,807
Distribution meters 67,051 50,678 66,869 48,906
Distribution stations 41,900 6,983 41,900 5,587
Distribution transformers 295,300 188,112 275,392 178,441
Other capital assets 63,868 48,000 64,146 41,263

$ 1,168,040 $ 822,277 $ 1,092,130 $ 779,763

Net book value $ 345,763 $ 312,367

11



Grand Valley Energy Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

4,

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

2008 2007

Regulatory assets (liabilities)
Settlement variances $ (27,516) $ (31,572)
Regulatory assets recovery account 17,119 43,471
Low voltage liability (7,314) (48,222)
Smart meters (6,361) (3,997)
(24,072) (40,320)
Current portion of regulatory liabilities (7,314) (23,298)
Net regulatory liabilities $ (16,758) $ (17,022)

The energy market in Ontario opened to competition on May 1, 2002. Since May 1, 2002, the
difference between the cost of power based on time-of-use rates and amounts billed to non-
time-of-use customers charged at an average rate are recorded in settlement variance
accounts as directed by the OEB. These variance accounts ensure that a utility's gross profit
is limited to distribution revenue and service charges.

The regulatory assets recovery account (RARA) includes regulatory asset balances the OEB
has approved for recovery. This approved balance was recovered over a period ending
March 31, 2008, with a difference of $17,119 to be settled based on future direction from the
OEB. The RARA is credited with recovery amounts and is debited by OEB-prescribed
carrying charges.

Beginning May 1, 2006, the OEB has allowed the company to defer the revenues approved
by the OEB for smart meters and the related capital costs incurred by the company.
Accordingly, the company has deferred these amounts in accordance with the criteria set out
by the OEB.

12



Grand Valley Energy Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

5.

Related Party Transactions

The Township of East Luther Grand Valley is the sole shareholder of the company. The
company provides water and sewage billing and collection services to the customers of the
Township as well as supplying streetlighting energy and streetlighting maintenance services
to the Township.

The following table summarizes the company's related party transactions for the year:

2008 2007

Revenue
Sales to parent company $ 14,074 % 12,210

These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange
value (the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties), which
approximates the arm's length equivalent value for sales of product.

Included in accounts payable at December 31, 2008 is $26,137 (2007 - $Nil) payable to the
Township.

Included in accounts receivable at December 31, 2008 is $12,418 (2007 - $11,778)
receivable from the Township.

13



Grand Valley Energy Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

6.

Contingencies

A class action is seeking $500 million in restitution for amounts paid to Toronto Hydro and to
other Ontario municipal electric utilities ("LDCs") who received late payment charges from
customers that were in excess of the interest limit stipulated in section 347 of the Criminal
Code. Pleadings have closed in this action. The action has not yet been certified as a class
action and no discoveries have been held since the parties were awaiting the outcome of
similar proceedings brought against Enbridge Gas Distribution Inc. (formerly Consumers
Gas).

On April 22, 2004, the Supreme Court of Canada released a decision in the Consumers Gas
case rejecting all of the defences which had been raised by Enbridge, although the Court did
not permit the Plaintiff class to recover damages for any period prior to the issuance of the
Statement of Claim in 1994. The Supreme Court remitted the matter back to the Ontario
Superior Court of Justice for determination of the damages. At the end of 2006, a mediation
process resulted in the settlement of the damages payable by Enbridge.

In 2007, Enbridge filed an application to the Ontario Energy Board (“OEB”) to recover the
Court-approved amount and related amounts from ratepayers. On February 4, 2008 the OEB
approved recovery of the said amounts from ratepayers over a five year period.

After the release by the Supreme Court of Canada of its 2004 decision in the Consumers Gas
case, the plaintiffs in the LDC late payment penalties class action indicated their intention to
proceed with their litigation against the LDCs. To date, no formal steps have been taken to
move the action forward. The electric utilities intend to respond to the action if and when it
proceeds on the basis that the LDCs’ situation may be distinguishable from that of Consumers
Gas.

It is not possible at this time to quantify the effect, if any, of this action on the financial
statements of the company.
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Grand Valley Energy Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

7.

Share Capital
The authorized common share capital of the company is an unlimited number of shares.

The authorized preference share capital of the company is an unlimited number of preference
shares.

The issued share capital is as follows:

2008 2007

100 Common shares $ 100 $ 100

15



Grand Valley Energy Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

8. Income Taxes
The provision for income taxes differs from the result which would be obtained by applying
the combined Canadian Federal and Provincial Statutory income tax rates to income before
income taxes. This difference results from the following items:
2008 2007
Income (loss) before income taxes $ 1,721 $ (20,092)
Statutory income tax rate 16.50 % 18.62 %
Expected income tax expense 284 (3,741)
Increase (decrease) in taxes resulting from:
Losses applied to reduce current taxes (3,592) -
Non-capital losses carried forward - 1,903
Amortization in excess of capital cost allowance 3,308 1,838
Income tax expense $ -3 -
As of December 31, 2008, the company has non-capital losses of approximately $23,168
which are available to reduce taxable income in future years. If unused, these losses will
expire as follows:
2015 $ 3,330
2026 9,620
2027 10,218
$ 23,168
9. Future Income Taxes

Future income taxes have not been recognized in these financial statements. Section 3465 of
the CICA handbook does not require rate regulated enterprises to recognize future income
taxes if future income taxes are expected to be included in the approved rate charged to
customers in the future and are expected to be recovered from future customers. The
estimated future income tax liability that has not been recognized as at December 31, 2008 is
$31,000 (2007 - $31,000).
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Grand Valley Energy Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

10. Capital Disclosures

The company’s objectives when managing its capital are to:

. maintain a financial position suitable for supporting the company’s operations and
growth strategies;

. provide an adequate return to its shareholder; and

. align its capital structure for regulated activities with debt to equity structure
recommended by the OEB, which is 60% debt and 40% equity by 2010.

The company defines capital as the aggregate of shareholder's equity and long-term debt.
This definition has remained unchanged from December 31, 2007. As at December 31, 2008,
shareholder’s equity amounts to $475,178 (2007 - $483,457) and long-term debt amounts to
$Nil (2007 - $Nil). The company’s capital structure as at December 31, 2008 is 100% equity
(2007 - 100% equity). There have been no changes in the company’s overall capital
management strategy during the year.

The company has no externally imposed capital requirements.

11.

Financial Instruments Risk Factors

The following is a discussion of risks and related mitigation strategies that have been
identified by the company for financial instruments. This is not an exhaustive list of all risks,
nor will the mitigation strategies eliminate all risks listed.

The company’s activities provide for a variety of financial risks, particularly credit risk and
liquidity risk.

Credit risk

Financial instruments are exposed to credit risk due to the risk of a counter-party defaulting
on its obligations. The company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying
value of its financial assets. The company’s objective is to maximize credit collection and
minimize bad debt expense. Credit risk is managed by monitoring and limiting exposure to
credit risk on a continuous basis.
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Grand Valley Energy Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

11. Financial Instruments Risk Factors (continued)

The credit risk associated with accounts receivable is the collection of amounts due from
customers. The majority of the company's customers are residential customers. The company
has procedures in place to ensure timely follow up on overdue amounts and to ensure
additional credit is not extended to customers with certain arrears. The company collects
security deposits from customers in accordance with directions provided by the OEB. As at
December 31, 2008, the company held security deposits in the amount of $19,988 (2007 -
$17,810).

The carrying amount of accounts receivable is reduced through the use of an allowance for
doubtful accounts based on the financial condition of counter-parties and by applying to total
accounts receivable a percentage based on past experience. The amount of the related
impairment loss is recognized in the income statement. Subsequent recoveries of receivables
previously provisioned are credited to the income statement.

Credit risk associated with accounts receivable is as follows:

2008 2007
Total accounts receivable $ 155,860 $ 163,078
Allowance for doubtful accounts (2,900) (9,135)
Total accounts receivable, net $ 152,960 $ 153,943
Accounts receivable outstanding for:
Not more than 30 days $ 130,320 $ 135,417
More than 30 days 25,540 27,661
Allowance for doubtful accounts (2,900) (9,135)
Total accounts receivable, net $ 152,960 $ 153,943

At December 31, 2008, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk with respect to
any class of financial assets or counterparties.

Liquidity risk

The following liquidity risks are associated with financial instruments: accounts payable and
accrued liabilities are due within one year. The company’s objective is to ensure it has access
to sufficient funds to meet cash flow commitments related to financial instruments. Liquidity
risk is managed by monitoring cash balances, maintaining a portion of assets in liquid
securities and having access to credit facilities.

18



Grand Valley Energy Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

12.

Public Liability Insurance

The company is a member of The Electrical Distributors Association Reciprocal Insurance
Exchange which is a pooling of the public liability insurance risks of many of the municipal
utilities in Ontario. All members of the pool are subject to assessment for losses experienced
by the pool for the years in which they are members on a pro-rata basis based on the total of
their respective service revenues.

It is anticipated that, should such an assessment occur, it would be funded over a period of up
to five years. To December 31, 2008, no assessments have been made with respect to 2008
or prior years.

13.

Subsequent Event

The company entered into an agreement on October 9, 2007 to merge with Orangeville
Hydro Limited for the purpose of providing electricity distribution services in the Towns of
Grand Valley and Orangeville as a single corporate entity. The merger was approved by the
Ontario Energy Board during 2008 and occurred on January 1, 2009.

14.

Contractual Obligations

The company has a letter of credit of $53,557 issued in favour of the Independent Electricity
System Operator (IESO). No amounts have been drawn as at December 31, 2008.
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1 PRO FORMA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2009 AND 2010:

2  The OHL Pro Forma Statements for the 2009 Bridge Year and the 2010 Test Year accompany
3 this Schedule as Appendix G and Appendix H respectively.
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Orangeville Hydro Limited
Statement of Operations and Retained Earnings

For the year December 31 2009 2008
Revenue S 24,285,047 S 22,590,994
Direct Costs 19,919,438 18,215,238
4,365,609 4,375,756
Other revenues
Investment income 44,885 91,451
Gain (Loss) on disposal of capital assets 15,120 (3,647)
Other income 17,257 17,279
Other operating income 364,742 369,613
4,807,613 4,850,452
Expenses
Administration and general 1,085,925 1,071,912
Amortization 1,067,259 970,425
Billing and collecting 508,659 501,713
Community relations 12,584 42,551
Distribution 767,067 796,919
Interest 394,716 410,991
Taxes other than income taxes 4,795 4,125
3,841,004 3,798,636
Net income from operations for the year 966,609 1,051,815
Payments in lieu of income taxes (PILs) 270,368 406,026
Net income for the year 696,241 645,789
Retained earnings, beginning of year 465,281 106,208
Dividends paid (307,000) (286,716)
Retained earnings, end of year 854,521 $ 465,281
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December 31 2009 2008
Assets
Current
Cash S 1,953,229 1,861,239
Accounts Receivable 3,004,696 3,004,696
Unbilled service revenue 1,678,396 1,678,396
Inventory 296,963 296,963
Other current assets 123,838 123,838
PILs recoverable
7,057,123 6,965,132
Capital assets 14,067,176 13,508,184
Regulatory assets 714,514 (1,285,486)
Other assets 65,000 65,000
Total Assets S 21,903,812 19,252,830
Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities S 3,679,960 3,679,960
Current PILs payable - (146,604)
Current portion of long-term debt 196,741 196,741
Current portion of Customer Deposit 28,000 28,000
3,904,701 3,758,097
Long-term debt 7,850,799 6,046,799
Long-term customer deposits 541,250 541,250
Other non-current liabilities - -
Employee future benefits 213,319 188,898
Other regulatory liabilities - -
S 12,510,069 10,535,044
Shareholder's equity
Share capital 7,815,635 7,815,635
Retained earnings 1,578,108 902,152
$ 9,393,743 8,717,786
Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity S 21,903,812 19,252,830
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Orangeville Hydro Limited
Statement of Operations and Retained Earnings

For the year December 31 2010 2009
Revenue 24,698,562 S 24,296,570
Direct Costs 19,666,513 19,919,438
5,032,050 4,377,133
Other revenues
Investment income 44,810 44,885
Gain (Loss) on disposal of capital assets 1,600 15,120
Other income 500 17,257
Other operating income 385,142 353,219
5,464,101 4,807,613
Expenses
Administration and general 1,283,872 1,085,925
Amortization 1,119,762 1,067,259
Billing and collecting 559,953 508,659
Community relations 28,862 12,584
Distribution 901,369 767,067
Interest 493,788 394,716
Taxes other than income taxes 2,099 4,795
4,389,705 3,841,004
Net income from operations for the year 1,074,396 966,609
Payments in lieu of income taxes (PILs) 248,138 270,368
Net income for the year 826,258 696,241
Retained earnings, beginning of year 854,521 465,281
Dividends paid (338,000) (307,000)
Retained earnings, end of year 1,342,780 S 854,521
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Orangeville Hydro Limited
Balance Sheet

December 31 2010 2009
Assets
Current
Cash S 1,943,107 1,958,099
Accounts Receivable 3,004,696 3,004,696
Unbilled service revenue 1,678,396 1,678,396
Inventory 296,963 296,963
Other current assets 123,838 123,838
PlLs recoverable
7,047,001 7,061,993
Capital assets 14,634,951 14,067,176
Regulatory assets 714,514 714,514
Other assets 65,000 65,000
Total Assets S 22,461,466 21,908,682
Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities S 3,679,960 3,679,960
Current PlLs payable - -
Current portion of long-term debt 196,741 196,741
Current portion of Customer Deposit 28,000 28,000
3,904,701 3,904,701
Long-term debt 7,612,508 7,850,799
Long-term customer deposits 541,250 541,250
Other non-current liabilities - -
Employee future benefits 239,728 213,319
Other regulatory liabilities - -
S 12,298,187 12,510,069
Shareholder’'s equity
Share capital 7,815,635 7,815,635
Retained earnings 2,347,644 1,582,978
S 10,163,278 9,398,613
Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity $ 22,461,466 21,908,682
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RECONCILIATION BETWEEN PRO FORMA STATEMENTS AND REVENUE DEFICIENCY
STATEMENTS

OHL advises that because the 2008 Audited Financial Statements do not vary from the regulatory financial
results filed in this Application, a reconciliation between the financial statements and financial results filed
has not been provided. However, as a result of differences between deemed and actual interest expense,
non utility revenue and expenses, 50% Gain in Disposal and interest revenue on regulatory assets. The
following chart provides a reconciliation for 2010 Pro Forma Statements and the Revenue Deficiency

Statements.

DEEMED NET INCOME 570,284
PLUS

50% GAIN ON DISPOSAL 800
NON-UTILITY REVENUE 410,363
NON-UTILITY EXPENSES (311,683)
INTEREST REVENUE ON REG ASSETS 2,387
DEEMED INTEREST EXPENSE 652,936
ACTUAL INTEREST EXPENSE 493,788
ADD BACK DIFFERENCE 159,147
LESS

DONATIONS 5,040

NET INCOME PER INCOME STATEMENT 826,258
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INFORMATION ON AFFILIATES

Orangeville Hydro Services Inc. is a non-active affiliate of Orangeville Hydro Limited. It is wholly owned
by the Town of Orangeville.

Green Pathways Inc. is an affiliate of Orangeville Hydro Limited in that 66 2/3% of the shares are held by
Orangeville Hydro Services Inc. which in turn is wholly owned by the Town of Orangeville. The other 33

1/3% shares in Green Pathways are owned by a non-profit group PURE (Power Up Renewable Energy).

Green Pathway’s mandate is to promote energy conservation and renewable generation.
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ORANGEVILLE HYDRO LIMITED
2008 ANNUAL REPORT

Background

Orangeville Hydro was established in 1916 serving its’ customers under the regulatory
control of Ontario Hydro. The Electricity Act was passed in 1998 and Orangeville Hydro
Limited was incorporated on October 1, 2000. Orangeville Hydro Limited is a wires
distribution business regulated by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB). As a distributor, we
are responsible for delivering electricity and billing our customers approved distribution
rates, commodity costs, and other regulatory charges. The OEB sets the distribution
rates for Orangeville Hydro’s customers based on an approved revenue requirement
that provides for cost recovery and includes an approved rate of return. Orangeville
Hydro Limited employed 20 employees in 2008.

Rate Application Information

The 2008 distribution rates were approved and implemented on May 1, 2008. This rate
application was prepared using the Ontario Energy Board’s guidelines for the 2"
Generation Incentive Rate Mechanism. There was a slight rate decrease comprised of
the price escalator of 2.1% published by Stats Canada minus a productivity gain X factor
of 1% resulting in an decrease in distribution rates of -.7%. The SMART meter rate adder
of .27 remains in the distribution rates. The rate rider credit for regulatory assets
ceased upon the implementation of the May 1* rates and resulted in an increase on
customers’ bills. A residential customer consuming 1,000 kWh per month received a
1.4% increase on the total bill.

Our 2" Generation Incentive Rate Mechanism rate application for 2009 was approved.
The application includes 2" movement towards 60/40 debt to equity ratio, the price
escalator adjustment for the Implicit Price Index for National Gross Domestic Product
(GDP-IPI) of 2.3% for 2007, as published by Stats Canada minus a productivity gain X
factor of 1%. The SMART meter adder on a customers’ service charge of .27 cents per
customer was increased to 1.00 in the application to assist with funding for our planned
installations Fall 2009. The Ontario Energy Board directed all LDC’s to increase the
transmission network rate by 11.3% and the transmission connection rate by 5.2%.
Orangeville Hydro has complied with this direction.

The Ontario Energy Board has established a multi-year rate setting plan and Orangeville
Hydro is scheduled to apply for distribution rates in a cost of service application in 2010.
A cost of service application involves a full review of costs and establishes an updated
rate base that will be the foundation for the revenue requirement to set distribution
rates. Regulatory assets/liabilities will be included in this process.



Merger of Orangeville Hydro Limited and Grand Valley Energy Inc.

Effective January 1, 2009 Orangeville Hydro Limited and Grand Valley Energy Inc.
merged companies for a total number of 10,975 customers to service. Grand Valley
customers are familiar with Orangeville staff performing line work in the village and the
excellent service provided by our customer service staff. With this in mind, the ‘brand’
of Orangeville Hydro will be kept as Orangeville Hydro Limited.

International Reporting Financial Standards

In 2006, the Canadian Accounting Standards Board announced its plan to replace
current Canadian standards and interpretations governed by Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) for all publicly accountable enterprises. The effective date of implementation is
January 1, 2011. The change from Canadian GAAP to IFRS could significantly affect the
reported financial position and the results of operations. In anticipation of the changes
to our reporting standards due to the implementation of IFRS, Orangeville Hydro is
currently assessing these changes in cooperation with the CHEC Group. It is expected
that IFRS will be implemented in 2009 to ensure that 2010 has appropriate comparative
financial information prior to effective implementation on January 1, 2011. Currently
the Ontario Energy Board is consulting with stakeholders regarding specific guidance to
rate-regulated industries. The areas of greatest impact to Orangeville Hydro will be in
the financial presentation of property, plant and equipment, inventories, intangible
assets, impairment of assets, employee benefits, and the methodology for revenue
recognition.

Distribution Rates and Other Operation Revenues

The total revenues in the amount of $4,591,995 decreased from 2007 revenues by
$77,526. Distribution revenues increased by $32,301, due to the slight increase in
distribution rates. The residential class of customers grew by 61 customers and 5
customers in the small general service class. The overall decrease in total revenue was
due to the economic downturn and the reduction in interest rates that affected the
interest we obtained on cash in the bank.



Revenues
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Expenditures

Total controllable expenses amounted to $2,200,263, an increase over last year by
$121,546 or 5.8%. In administration, Orangeville Hydro has added a conservation and
demand management/administrative person to the staff component. This staff person
oversees the OPA programs and assists senior management in order for management to
meet more demands as more regulatory measures evolve.

Controllable expenses per customer increased to $213.72 in relationship to the increase
of our controllable costs. Even with this increase, Orangeville Hydro proudly remains as
one of the lower cost ratios in our industry survey for medium-sized utilities.

Total expenditures amounted to $3,543,376, an overall increase over last year of .97%.
Total expenditures include controllable expenses along with interest, amortization and
capital tax expenses. Total interest of $409,882 includes interest on the long-term
debt of $354,715 at a rate 5.59% held with TD Bank, carrying charges on the retail
settlement variances plus customer deposit interest in the amount of $55,167.

Expendltures O Administration

@Billing & Collecting
OOperations &

Maintenance
OAmortization

B Interest

Capital Expenditures



In 2008 capital expenditures amounted to $1,492,908. Overhead renewal projects
included ongoing conversion from 4kV to the 27.6kV on Townline, Green and Cardwell
streets. The reliability and safety of the underground plant on Bredin Parkway was
crucial in our decision for this underground renewal project. In 2009 we will rebuild the
remaining portion. Customer Demand projects are new services and upgrades to
services. The new services completed were Dairy Queen, the Rotomill plant and C Line
condominiums and 3 service upgrades. Edgewood Valley, a new subdivision was
energized in 2008 and consists of 58 new residences.

Capital Expenditures
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Of the $1,492,908 in Capital Expenditures, 61.5% of these dollars were related to
Renewal Projects, 15.36% related to Growth, 10.2% related to Customer Demand
Projects, .3% related to Regulatory projects, 5.3% related to Equipment and 7.3%
related to Building.
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Operating Statistics

The system peak of 42,789 occurred in July, 2008. This is a reduction from the 2007
system peak at 46,047. The reduction relates to weather, conservation and demand
initiatives and loss of an industrial customer. The system peak that occurred in July
2006 was 48,450 kilowatts and has become the record peak for Orangeville Hydro. The
previous record peak was in 2003 where we recorded 47,090.

Peak Demand
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In 2008 the number of customers served per employee has decreased to 513.97. In
order to maintain proficiency with the regulatory environment and conservation and
demand management initiatives, it has been necessary to add an employee to our staff
compliment. In the lines department we added an apprentice lineman November, 2007
in order to ensure succession planning needs are met. Orangeville Hydro also served
customers in Grand Valley and their numbers are not reflected in these statistics. If
they were included, the number of customers served per employee would be 548.75.
Orangeville Hydro has still surpassed the year 2000 where we only served 498
customers per employee when there was no water billing and retailers to contend with.
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Customer Profile

Orangeville Hydro’s residential customer base increased by 61 customers in 2008 and
totaled 9056 customers. There was an increase 3 new customers in small general
service class in 2008. There was no increase in the industrial customer base.

The industrial class of customers use 51.1% of the total kilowatt hours while the
residential customer class attribute to the greater share of Orangeville Hydro’s the total
revenues.

kWh Usage by Customer Class
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AT R T A R LI and AdViSOIS
Fax: (519) 941-8272

Driving growth

BDO Dunwoody LLP 77 Broadway, 2nd Floor
B D O Chartered Accountants Orangeville, Ontario, Canada L9W 1Kl
Telephone: (519) 941-0681

March 2, 2009

Members of the Board of Directors
Orangeville Hydro Limited

400 C Line

PO Box 400, Station A
Orangeville, Ontario

LOW 2Z7

Re:  Audit of the Financial Statements of Orangeville Hydro Limited
For the year ended December 31, 2008

Dear Sir/Madam:

The purpose of this report is to summarize certain aspects of the audit that we believe would be of
interest to the Board of Directors. This report should be read in conjunction with the financial
statements and our report thereon, and it is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors
and should not be distributed to external parties without our prior consent. We accept no
responsibility to a third party who uses this communication.

Accounting Standards

The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA) has recently issued a number of new
accounting standards. Most of these standards are fairly complex, require significant judgment and
estimates, and may involve increased disclosures. Below, we have briefly outlined those which

have impacted your organization:

e IFRS Implementation Plan
With a January 1, 2011 changeover date, the following timeline should be considered:

e 2008 - Continue to obtain training and knowledge of IFRSs. Compare current
accounting policies to IFRS and develop a transition plan

e December 31, 2008 - Disclosure of the anticipated effects of the change to IFRS in the
MD&A for CSA registrants

e December 31, 2009 - Disclosure of the anticipated effects of the change to IFRS in the
MD&A for CSA registrants

e January 1, 2010 - Begin collecting the comparative information which will be needed
for inclusion with the 2011 financial statements

e January 1, 2011- Changeover to IFRS

e March 31, 2011- First quarterly IFRS financial statements, with IFRS quarterly
comparatives

e December 31, 2011- First annual IFRS financial statements, with IFRS annual

comparatives
At the 2011 changeover date, Canadian GAAP for publicly accountable enterprises will no

BDO Dunwoody LLP is a Limited Liability Partnership registered in Ontario



longer be separate and distinct from IFRS; however, it is important to note that IFRS will be
incorporated into the CICA Handbook.



Specific Accounting Standards

Topic Effective Date Guidance
Financial Instrument These sections apply to interim | Sections 3862 and 3863
Disclosures and Presentation | and annual financial statements | comprise a complete set of
Section 3862 relating to fiscal years beginning | disclosure and presentation
Section 3863 on or after October 1, 2007. requirements for ﬁnapcial
instruments. They will carry
Not-for-Profit Organizations forward unchanged the
may defer the application of the | presentation requirements from
Section to interim and annual Section 3861, however with
financial statements relating to | much more extensive disclosure
fiscal years beginning on or after [ requirements. Section 3862 will
October 1, 2008. require the disclosure of :
s ¢ The significance of financial
Non-publicly sccountable instruments for an entity’s
enterprises and certain co- : i
operative business enterprises financial position and
and rate-regulated enterprises performance; and,
may choose not to apply this ¢ Qualitative and quantitative
Section. information about exposure
to risks arising from financial
instruments, including
specified minimum
disclosures about credit risk,
liquidity risk and market risk.
The qualitative disclosures
would describe
management’s objectives,
policies and processes for
managing those risks. The
quantitative disclosures
would provide information
about the extent to which the
entity is exposed to risk,
based on information
provided internally to the
entity’s key management
personnel.
Capital Disclosures This Section applies to interim | This section would require the
Section 1535 and annual financial statements | disclosure of information about
relating to fiscal years beginning | an entity’s objectives, policies
on or after October 1, 2007. and processes for managing
' capital. This section applies to
Earlier adoption is encouraged. | all entities, not just those with
financial instruments.




Inventories
Section 3031

This section applies to interim
and annual financial statements
relating to fiscal years beginning
on or after January 1, 2008, with
earlier application encouraged.

The key feature of this new

section are:

e Measurement of inventories
at the lower of cost and net
realizable value;

¢ Guidance on the
determination of cost,
including allocation of
overheads and other costs to
inventory;

e Allocation of fixed
production overhead based
on normal capacity levels,
with unallocated overhead
expensed as incurred;

¢ Cost of inventories of items
that are not ordinarily
interchangeable, and goods
or services produced and
segregated for specific
projects, assigned by using a
specific identification of
their individual costs;

¢ Consistent use (by type of
inventory with similar nature
and use) of either first-in,
first-out (FIFO) or weighted
average cost formula to
measure the cost of other
inventories and eliminates
the use of last-in, last out
(LIFO) formula; and,

e Reversal of previous write-
downs to net realizable value
when there is a subsequent
increase in the value of
inventories.




Income Taxes The amendments are effective | The Section has been amended
Section 3465 for fiscal years beginning on or |to require rate-regulated

after January 1, 2009. enterprises to recognize future
income tax liabilities and assets,
as well as a regulatory asset or
liability for the amount of future
income taxes expected to be
included in future rates and
recovered from or returned to
future customers, and to present
these amounts on a gross basis
in the financial statements.

Many of the above initiatives and pronouncements have an impact on the current year financial
statements and will certainly have an impact in the years to come.

Independence

At the core of the provision of external audit services is the concept of independence. Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) require us to communicate to the Board of
Directors, at least annually, all relationships between BDO Dunwoody LLP (and its related entities)
and Orangeville Hydro Limited (and its related entities), that, in our professional judgment, may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence for the audit of the organization.

In determining which relationships to report, we have considered the applicable legislation and
relevant rules of professional conduct and related interpretations prescribed by the appropriate
provincial institute/ordre covering such matters as the following:

* holding of a financial interest, either directly or indirectly in a client;

¢ holding a position, either directly or indirectly, that gives the right or responsibility to exert
significant influence over the financial or accounting policies of a client;

¢ personal or business relationships of immediate family, close relatives, partners or retired
partners, either directly or indirectly, with a client;

e economic dependence on a client; and

e provision of services in addition to the external audit engagement.

We have prepared the following comments to facilitate our discussion with you regarding

independence matters arising since February 28, 2008, the date of our last letter.

We are not aware of any relationships between the organization and us that, in our professional
judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence to date.

GAAS requires that we confirm our independence to the Board of Directors in the context of the
Rules of Professional Conduct of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario. Accordingly,
we hereby confirm that we were independent with respect to Orangeville Hydro Limited within the
meaning of the Rules of Professional Conduct of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario
as of March 2, 2009.



Responsibilities of the Auditor

It is important for the Board of Directors to understand the responsibilities that rest with the
organization and its management and those that belong to the auditor:

¢ Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements, which includes
responsibilities related to internal control, such as designing and maintaining accounting
records, selecting and applying accounting policies, safeguarding assets and preventing and
detecting fraud and error;

¢ The auditor's responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on an
audit thereof;

¢ An audit is performed to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement and, owing to the inherent limitations of
an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that some misstatements of the financial statements will
not be detected (particularly intentional misstatements concealed through collusion), even
though the audit is properly planned and performed;

e The audit includes:

(i) obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment including internal control in
order to plan the audit and to assess the risk that the financial statements may contain
misstatements that, individually or in the aggregate, are material to the financial statements
taken as a whole;

(ii) examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements; ' :

(iii) assessing the accounting principles used and their application; and

(iv) assessing the significant estimates made by management;

o When the auditor's risk assessment includes an expectation of the operating effectiveness of .
controls, sufficient appropriate audit evidence is obtained through tests of controls to support
the assessment, but the scope of the auditor's review of internal control is insufficient to express
an opinion as to the effectiveness or efficiency of the entity's controls; and

e We expressed an opinion as to whether the financial statements presented fairly in all material
respects, in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, the financial
position, results of operations and cash flows of the entity.

Audit Approach

We were engaged to perform the audit of the financial statements of Orangeville Hydro Limited
for the year ended December 31, 2008. We adopted an audit approach that allowed us to issue an
audit opinion on the financial statements of the organization in the most cost effective manner,
while still obtaining the assurance necessary to support our audit opinion.

BDO Dunwoody LLP follows a risk based approach. This approach focuses on obtaining sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to reduce the risk of material misstatement in the financial statements to
an appropriately low level. This means that we focus our audit effort in areas that we believe have
a higher risk of being materially misstated and do less audit work in areas that are only low risk.

To assess risk accurately, we need to have a clear understanding of the organization's business and
the environment it operates in. Much of our understanding is obtained through discussions with



management and their staff. We appreciate the information that you provided to us about your
business, industry, competitive marketplace, internal controls, oversight of management's
processes relating to fraud and error, or anything else that you felt was important to the audit as it
corroborated what we had already learned from management and other sources, or it may have
been new information to us. We also appreciate the insights that you provided to us on what you
perceived to be risky in your organization, including your knowledge of actual, suspected and
alleged fraud affecting the entity, as that made our audit more effective and efficient, which
benefited all concerned.

The following sections provide more detail on our audit approach for Orangeville Hydro Limited
for the year.

Overall Audit Strategy

The general audit strategies available to us are a "combined" audit approach or a "substantive"
audit approach. :

In a combined audit approach, we would obtain our assurance from a combination of tests of
controls (compliance procedures) and substantive procedures (such as analysis of data and
obtaining direct evidence as to the validity of the items). The combined strategy is more
appropriate when there is a large number of transactions and when controls in the organization are
strong. By obtaining some of our assurance from tests of controls, we can reduce the substantive
procedures that need to be done. Under a substantive audit approach, all of our audit evidence is
obtained through substantive procedures like analysis, confirmation, examination of documentary
or electronic evidence, etc.

Based on our knowledge and experience with your organization and a preliminary review of your
internal controls, we used a combined approach.

Likely Aggregate Misstatements

Uncorrected misstatements aggregated during the audit that were determined by management to be
immaterial amounted to $32,994. The major unadjusted misstatements are as follows:

e Understatement of income due to 2007 regulatory asset refunds recorded in $ 32,480
2008 instead of included with 2007 unbilled revenue

e To write off credit balance in transition account as in prior years 12,260
o Effect of previous year's errors (11,746)
Total Likely Aggregate Misstatements $ 32,994

After considering both quantitative and qualitative factors with respect to the likely aggregate
misstatements above, we agree with management that the financial statements are not materially
misstated.




Management Representations

During the course of an audit, management made many representations to us. These
representations were verbal or written and therefore explicit, or they were implied through the
financial statements. Management provided representations in response to specific queries from us,
as well as unsolicited representations. Such representations were part of the evidence gathered by
us to be able to draw reasonable conclusions on which to base the audit opinion. These
representations were documented by including in the audit working papers memoranda of
discussions with management and written representations received from management.

Management's representations included, but were not limited to:

(a) matters communicated in discussions with us, whether solicited or unsolicited,;

(b) matters communicated electronically to us;

(c) schedules, analyses and reports prepared by the entity, and management's notations and
comments thereon, whether or not in response to a request by us;

(d) internal and external memoranda or correspondence;

(e) minutes of meetings of the board of directors or similar bodies such as audit committees
and compensation committees;

63} a signed copy of the financial statements; and

(2) a representation letter from management.

We obtained management's written confirmation of significant representations provided to us
during the engagement. Such a confirmation included matters that are:

(a) directly related to items that are material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the
financial statements;

(b) not directly related to items that are material to the financial statements but are significant,
either individually or in the aggregate, to the engagement; or

(c) relevant to management's judgments or estimates that are material, either individually or in
the aggregate, to the financial statements.

Standards (IFRS

We are not responsible for ensuring that the organization is prepared for the introduction of IFRS,
and this will only be considered in so far as it affects our audit responsibilities under Canadian
Generally Accepted Auditing Standards.

Management is responsible for:

¢ analyzing the impact of the introduction of IFRS on the business;

e developing plans to mitigate the effects identified by this analysis; and

¢ the preparation of financial statements as required under IFRS, including comparative figures.

IFRS Services

If assistance or additional services are required related to the organization's adoption of IFRS we
shall confirm them with you as they arise.



Our Audit Opinion

We did not detect any evidence of misstatements that would have a material effect on the financial
statements and, accordingly, we have issued an unqualified audit report.

Management Letter

We have submitted to management a letter on internal controls and other matters that we feel
should be brought to their attention.

We wish to express our appreciation for the co-operation we received during the audit from the
organization's management. We would be pleased to discuss with you any matters mentioned in
this letter, as well as any other matters that may be of interest to you.

Yours truly

BDO DUNWOODY LLP
Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

Sally Slumskie, CA
Partner



BDO Dunwoody LLP 77 Broadway, 2nd Floor
Chartered Accountants Orangeville, Ontario, Canada L9W IKI
and Adui@c;rs Telephone: (519) 941-0681

PE L Fax: (519) 941-8272

March 2, 2009

Members of the Board of Directors
Grand Valley Energy Inc.

400 C Line

PO Box 400, Station A
Orangeville, Ontario

L9W 277

Re: Audit of the Financial Statements of Grand Valley Energy Inc.
For the year ended December 31, 2008

Dear Sir/Madam:

The purpose of this report is to summarize certain aspects of the audit that we believe would be of
interest to the Board of Directors. This report should be read in conjunction with the financial
statements and our report thereon, and it is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors
and should not be distributed to external parties without our prior consent. We accept no
responsibility to a third party who uses this communication.

Accounting Standards

The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA) has recently issued a number of new
accounting standards. Most of these standards are fairly complex, require significant judgment and
estimates, and may involve increased disclosures. Below, we have briefly outlined those which
have impacted your organization:

e IFRS Implementation Plan
With a January 1, 2011 changeover date, the following timeline should be considered:

e 2008 - Continue to obtain training and knowledge of IFRSs. Compare current
accounting policies to IFRS and develop a transition plan

e December 31, 2008 - Disclosure of the anticipated effects of the change to IFRS in the
MD&A for CSA registrants

e December 31, 2009 - Disclosure of the anticipated effects of the change to IFRS in the
MD&A for CSA registrants

e January 1, 2010 - Begin collecting the comparative information which will be needed
for inclusion with the 2011 financial statements

e January 1, 2011- Changeover to [FRS

e March 31, 2011- First quarterly IFRS financial statements, with IFRS quarterly
comparatives

e December 31, 2011- First annual IFRS financial statements, with IFRS annual
comparatives

BDO Dunwoody LLP is a Limited Liability Partnership registered in Ontario



At the 2011 changeover date, Canadian GAAP for publicly accountable enterprises will no
longer be separate and distinct from IFRS; however, it is important to note that IFRS will be

incorporated into the CICA Handbook.

Specific Accounting Standards

Topic

Effective Date

Guidance

Financial Instrument
Disclosures and Presentation

Section 3862
Section 3863

These sections apply to interim
and annual financial statements
relating to fiscal years beginning
on or after October 1, 2007.

Not-for-Profit Organizations
may defer the application of the
Section to interim and annual
financial statements relating to
fiscal years beginning on or after
October 1, 2008.

Non-publicly accountable
enterprises and certain co-
operative business enterprises
and rate-regulated enterprises
may choose not to apply this
Section.

Sections 3862 and 3863

comprise a complete set of

disclosure and presentation
requirements for financial
instruments. They will carry
forward unchanged the
presentation requirements from

Section 3861, however with

much more extensive disclosure

requirements. Section 3862 will
require the disclosure of :

e The significance of financial
instruments for an entity’s
financial position and
performance; and,

e Qualitative and quantitative
information about exposure
to risks arising from financial
instruments, including
specified minimum
disclosures about credit risk,
liquidity risk and market risk.
The qualitative disclosures
would describe
management’s objectives,
policies and processes for
managing those risks. The
quantitative disclosures
would provide information
about the extent to which the
entity is exposed to risk,
based on information
provided internally to the
entity’s key management
personnel.




Income Taxes
Section 3465

The amendments are effective
for fiscal years beginning on or
after January 1, 2009.

The Section has been amended
to require rate-regulated
enterprises to recognize future
income tax liabilities and assets,
as well as a regulatory asset or
liability for the amount of future
income taxes expected to be
included in future rates and
recovered from or returned to
future customers, and to present
these amounts on a gross basis
in the financial statements.

The above initiatives and pronouncements will have an impact on subsequent year's financial

statements.

Independence

At the core of the provision of external audit services is the concept of independence. Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) require us to communicate to the Board of
Directors, at least annually, all relationships between BDO Dunwoody LLP (and its related entities)
and Grand Valley Energy Inc. (and its related entities), that, in our professional judgment, may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence for the audit of the organization.

In determining which relationships to report, we have considered the applicable legislation and
relevant rules of professional conduct and related interpretations prescribed by the appropriate
provincial institute/ordre covering such matters as the following:

e holding of a financial interest, either directly or indirectly in a client;

e holding a position, either directly or indirectly, that gives the right or responsibility to exert
significant influence over the financial or accounting policies of a client;

e personal or business relationships of immediate family, close relatives, partners or retired
partners, either directly or indirectly, with a client;

e cconomic dependence on a client; and

e provision of services in addition to the external audit engagement.

We have prepared the following comments to facilitate our discussion with you regarding
independence matters arising since February 28, 2008, the date of our last letter.

We are not aware of any relationships between the organization and us that, in our professional
judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence to date.

GAAS requires that we confirm our independence to the Board of Directors in the context of the

Rules of Professional Conduct of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario. Accordingly,
we hereby confirm that we were independent with respect to Grand Valley Energy Inc. within the
meaning of the Rules of Professional Conduct of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario
as of March 2, 2009.



Responsibilities of the Auditor

It is important for the Board of Directors to understand the responsibilities that rest with the
organization and its management and those that belong to the auditor:

e Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements, which includes
responsibilities related to internal control, such as designing and maintaining accounting
records, selecting and applying accounting policies, safeguarding assets and preventing and
detecting fraud and error;

e The auditor's responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on an
audit thereof;

¢ An audit is performed to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement and, owing to the inherent limitations of
an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that some misstatements of the financial statements will
not be detected (particularly intentional misstatements concealed through collusion), even
though the audit is properly planned and performed;

e The audit includes:

(i) obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment including internal control in
order to plan the audit and to assess the risk that the financial statements may contain
misstatements that, individually or in the aggregate, are material to the financial statements
taken as a whole;

(1) examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements;

(111) assessing the accounting principles used and their application; and

(iv) assessing the significant estimates made by management;

e When the auditor's risk assessment includes an expectation of the operating effectiveness of
controls, sufficient appropriate audit evidence is obtained through tests of controls to support
the assessment, but the scope of the auditor's review of internal control is insufficient to express
an opinion as to the effectiveness or efficiency of the entity's controls; and

e We expressed an opinion as to whether the financial statements presented fairly in all material
respects, in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, the financial
position, results of operations and cash flows of the entity.

Audit Approach

We were engaged to perform the audit of the financial statements of Grand Valley Energy Inc. for
the year ended December 31, 2008. We adopted an audit approach that allowed us to issue an audit
opinion on the financial statements of the organization in the most cost effective manner, while
still obtaining the assurance necessary to support our audit opinion.

BDO Dunwoody LLP follows a risk based approach. This approach focuses on obtaining sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to reduce the risk of material misstatement in the financial statements to
an appropriately low level. This means that we focus our audit effort in areas that we believe have
a higher risk of being materially misstated and do less audit work in areas that are only low risk.

To assess risk accurately, we need to have a clear understanding of the organization's business and
the environment it operates in. Much of our understanding is obtained through discussions with



management and their staff. We appreciate the information that you provided to us about your
business, industry, competitive marketplace, internal controls, oversight of management's
processes relating to fraud and error, or anything else that you felt was important to the audit as it
corroborated what we had already learned from management and other sources, or it may have
been new information to us. We also appreciate the insights that you provided to us on what you
perceived to be risky in your organization, including your knowledge of actual, suspected and
alleged fraud affecting the entity, as that made our audit more effective and efficient, which
benefited all concerned.

The following sections provide more detail on our audit approach for Grand Valley Energy Inc. for
the year.

Overall Audit Strategy

The general audit strategies available to us are a "combined" audit approach or a "substantive"
audit approach.

In a combined audit approach, we would obtain our assurance from a combination of tests of
controls (compliance procedures) and substantive procedures (such as analysis of data and
obtaining direct evidence as to the validity of the items). The combined strategy is more
appropriate when there is a large number of transactions and when controls in the organization are
strong. By obtaining some of our assurance from tests of controls, we can reduce the substantive
procedures that need to be done. Under a substantive audit approach, all of our audit evidence is
obtained through substantive procedures like analysis, confirmation, examination of documentary
or electronic evidence, etc.

Based on our knowledge and experience with your organization and a preliminary review of your
internal controls, we used a combined approach.

Likely Aggregate Misstatements

Uncorrected misstatements aggregated during the audit that were determined by management to be
immaterial amounted to $6,303. The major unadjusted misstatements are as follows:

e Overstatement of income due to 2007 regulatory asset recoveries recorded in | $ 5,430
2008 instead of included with 2007 unbilled revenue
Total Likely Aggregate Misstatements $ 5,430

After considering both quantitative and qualitative factors with respect to the likely aggregate
misstatements above, we agree with management that the financial statements are not materially
misstated.

Management Representations

During the course of an audit, management made many representations to us. These
representations were verbal or written and therefore explicit, or they were implied through the
financial statements. Management provided representations in response to specific queries from us,
as well as unsolicited representations. Such representations were part of the evidence gathered by
us to be able to draw reasonable conclusions on which to base the audit opinion. These
representations were documented by including in the audit working papers memoranda of
discussions with management and written representations received from management.



Management's representations included, but were not limited to:

(a) matters communicated in discussions with us, whether solicited or unsolicited;

(b) matters communicated electronically to us;

(c) schedules, analyses and reports prepared by the entity, and management's notations and
comments thereon, whether or not in response to a request by us;

(d) internal and external memoranda or correspondence;

(e) minutes of meetings of the board of directors or similar bodies such as audit committees
and compensation committees;

(H a signed copy of the financial statements; and

(2) a representation letter from management.

We obtained management's written confirmation of significant representations provided to us
during the engagement. Such a confirmation included matters that are:

(a) directly related to items that are material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the
financial statements;

(b) not directly related to items that are material to the financial statements but are significant,
either individually or in the aggregate, to the engagement; or

(c) relevant to management's judgments or estimates that are material, either individually or in

the aggregate, to the financial statements.

for the implementation of International Financial Reportin

Management's responsibili

Standards (IFRS)

We are not responsible for ensuring that the organization is prepared for the introduction of IFRS,
and this will only be considered in so far as it affects our audit responsibilities under Canadian
Generally Accepted Auditing Standards.

Management is responsible for:

e analyzing the impact of the introduction of IFRS on the business;
¢ developing plans to mitigate the effects identified by this analysis; and

¢ the preparation of financial statements as required under IFRS, including comparative figures.

IFRS Services

If assistance or additional services are required related to the organization's adoption of IFRS we
shall confirm them with you as they arise.

Our Audit Opinion

We did not detect any evidence of misstatements that would have a material effect on the financial
statements and, accordingly, we have issued an unqualified audit report.

Management Letter

We have submitted to management a letter on internal controls and other matters that we feel
should be brought to their attention.



We wish to express our appreciation for the co-operation we received during the audit from the
organization's management. We would be pleased to discuss with you any matters mentioned in
this letter, as well as any other matters that may be of interest to you.

Yours truly

BDO DUNWOODY LLP
Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

rilyf Hon A

Sally Slumskie, CA
Partner
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REVENUE REQUIREMENT WORK FORM
Name of LDC: Orangeville Hydro Limited

File Number:
Rate Year: 2010
h] roas 14
Ontario
Data Input (1)
Application Adjustments Per Board Decision
1 Rate Base
Gross Fixed Assets (average) $31,947,331  (4) $31,947,331
Accumulated Depreciation (average) ($17,513,537) (5) ($17,513,537)
Allowance for Working Capital:
Controllable Expenses $2,769,015 (6) $2,769,015
Cost of Power $19,666,513 $19,666,513
Working Capital Rate (%) 15.00%
2 Utility Income
Operating Revenues:
Distribution Revenue at Current Rates $4,374,574
Distribution Revenue at Proposed Rates $5,005,962
Other Revenue:
Specific Service Charges $159,163
Late Payment Charges $37,522
Other Distribution Revenue $100,592
Other Income and Deductions $58,995
Operating Expenses:
OM+A Expenses $2,769,015 $2,769,015
Depreciation/Amortization $1,119,762 $1,119,762
Property taxes
Capital taxes $2,099
Other expenses
3  Taxes/PlLs
Taxable Income:
Adjustments required to arrive at taxable income $41,959 (3)
Utility Income Taxes and Rates:
Income taxes (not grossed up) $176,574 cir
Income taxes (grossed up) $248,138
Capital Taxes $2,099 cir
Federal tax (%) 18.00%
Provincial tax (%) 10.84%
Income Tax Credits
4  Capitalization/Cost of Capital
Capital Structure:
Long-term debt Capitalization Ratio (%) 56.0%
Short-term debt Capitalization Ratio (%) 4.0% (2) (2)
Common Equity Capitalization Ratio (%) 40.0%
Prefered Shares Capitalization Ratio (%)
Capital Structure
must total 100%
Cost of Capital
Long-term debt Cost Rate (%) 6.5%
Short-term debt Cost Rate (%) 1.3%
Common Equity Cost Rate (%) 8.0%
Prefered Shares Cost Rate (%)
Notes:
This input sheet provides all inputs needed to complete sheets 1 through 6 (Rate Base through Revenue Requirement), except for
Notes that the utility may wish to use to support the components. Notes should be put on the applicable pages to understand the
context of each such note.
1) All inputs are in dollars ($) except where inputs are individually identified as percentages (%)
2) 4.0% unless an Applicant has proposed or been approved for another amount.
3) Net of addbacks and deductions to arrive at taxable income.
4) Average of Gross Fixed Assets at beginning and end of the Test Year
(5) Average of Accumulated Depreciation at the beginning and end of the Test Year. Enter as a negative amount.

Other Distribution Revenue: Amount of $101,867 is not included in OHL's revenue offsets for:
Water/Sewer Billing, $98,860, Variance AC Interest, $2,387, 50% of Gain on Disposal,$800
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REVENUE REQUIREMENT WORK FORM

(= Name of LDC: Orangeville Hydro Limited
x ’ File Number:
Rate Year:
A e | 4
Ontario
Rate Base
Line Particulars Application Adjustments per Bqard
No. Decision
1  Gross Fixed Assets (average) (3) $31,947,331 $- $31,947,331
2 Accumulated Depreciation (average) 3) ($17,513,537) $- ($17,513,537)
3 Net Fixed Assets (average) (3) $14,433,794 $- $14,433,794
4 Allowance for Working Capital Q) $3,365,329 $ - $3,365,329
5  Total Rate Base $17,799,123 $- $17,799,123
(1) Allowance for Working Capital - Derivation
6 Controllable Expenses $2,769,015 $- $2,769,015
7 Cost of Power $19,666,513 $- $19,666,513
8 Working Capital Base $22,435,528 $- $22,435,528
9 Working Capital Rate % 2 15.00% 15.00%
10 Working Capital Allowance $3,365,329 $ - $3,365,329
Notes
2 Generally 15%. Some distributors may have a unique rate due as a result of a lead-lag study.

@)

Average of opening and closing balances for the year.



REVENUE REQUIREMENT WORK FORM

¢= Name of LDC: Orangeville Hydro Limited
t f File Number:
Rate Year: 2010
A oes 14
Ontario
Utility income
Line Particulars Application Adjustments e e
No. Decision
Operating Revenues:
1 Distribution Revenue (at Proposed Rates) $5,005,962 $- $5,005,962
2  Other Revenue $356,272 $- $356,272
3  Total Operating Revenues $5,362,234 $- $5,362,234
Operating Expenses:
4 OM+A Expenses $2,769,015 $- $2,769,015
5  Depreciation/Amortization $1,119,762 $- $1,119,762
6  Property taxes $- $ - $-
7  Capital taxes $2,099 $- $2,099
8  Other expense $ - $ - $ -
9 Subtotal $3,890,877 $- $3,890,877
10 Deemed Interest Expense $652,936 $- $652,936
11  Total Expenses (lines 4 to 10) $4,543,812 $- $4,543,812
12  Utility income before income taxes $818,422 $- $818,422
13  Income taxes (grossed-up) $248,138 $ - $248,138
14  Utility net income $570,284 $- $570,284
Notes
(1) Other Revenues / Revenue Offsets
Specific Service Charges $159,163 $159,163
Late Payment Charges $37,522 $37,522
Other Distribution Revenue $100,592 $100,592
Other Income and Deductions $58,995 $58,995
Total Revenue Offsets $356,272 $356,272

Other Income and Deductions does not include the Water/Sewer Billing, Interest on Regulatory Asset and

50% of Gain on Disposal of Asset of $800 ($1600*50%) for the forecasted gain in 2010



n

Application 2 (B

PP Decision
$570,284 $570,284
$41,959 $41,959
$612,243 $612,243
$176,574 $176,574
$2,099 $2,099
$178,673 $178,673
$71,564 $71,564
$248,138 $248,138
$250,237 $250,237
$- $-
18.00% 18.00%
10.84% 10.84%
28.84% 28.84%

¢ Name of LDC: Orangeville Hydro Limited
t , File Number:
Rate Year: 2010
A oes | 4
Ontario
Taxes/PILs
Line .
Particulars
No.
Determination of Taxable Income
1 Utility net income
2 Adjustments required to arrive at taxable utility income
3 Taxable income
Calculation of Utility income Taxes
4 Income taxes
5 Capital taxes
6 Total taxes
7 Gross-up of Income Taxes
8 Grossed-up Income Taxes
PILs / tax Allowance (Grossed-up Income taxes +
9 Capital taxes)
10 Other tax Credits
Tax Rates
11 Federal tax (%)
12 Provincial tax (%)
13 Total tax rate (%)
Notes

Table income is below 1.5 million and tax is calculated on the first $500,000 at 5.5% and the

remaining at 18.25% to result in an effective tax rate of 28.84%
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REVENUE REQUIREMENT WORK FORM

= Name of LDC: Orangeville Hydro Limited
x ; File Number:
Rate Year: 2010
h | e 14
Ontario
Capitalization/Cost of Capital
Line . o .
NoO Particulars Capitalization Ratio Cost Rate Return
| Application
(%) (9 (%) (9
Debt
1 Long-term Debt 56.00% $9,967,509 6.46% $643,467
2 Short-term Debt 4.00% $711,965 1.33% $9,469
3  Total Debt 60.00% $10,679,474 6.11% $652,936
Equity
4 Common Equity 40.00% $7,119,649 8.01% $570,284
5 Preferred Shares 0.00% $- 0.00% $ -
6 Total Equity 40.00% $7,119,649 8.01% $570,284
7 Total 100% $17,799,123 6.87% $1,223,220
| Per Board Decision
(%) (9 (%)
Debt
8 Long-term Debt 56.00% $9,967,509 6.46% $643,467
9 Short-term Debt 4.00% $711,965 1.33% $9,469
10 Total Debt 60.00% $10,679,474 6.11% $652,936
Equity
11 Common Equity 40.0% $7,119,649 8.01% $570,284
12 Preferred Shares 0.0% $ - 0.00% $-
13 Total Equity 40.0% $7,119,649 8.01% $570,284
14  Total 100% $17,799,123 6.87% $1,223,220
Notes
Q) 4.0% unless an Applicant has proposed or been approved for another amount.
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Name of LDC: Orangeville Hydro Limited

File Number:
Rate Year: 2010
Ontario
Revenue Sufficiency/Deficiency
Per Application Per Board Decision
Line : At Current At Proposed At Current At Proposed
Particulars
No. Approved Rates Rates Approved Rates Rates
1 Revenue Deficiency from Below $631,388 $631,388
2 Distribution Revenue $4,374,574 $4,374,574 $4,374,574 $4,374,574
3 Other Operating Revenue Offsets - net $356,272 $356,272 $356,272 $356,272
4  Total Revenue $4,730,846 $5,362,234 $4,730,846 $5,362,234
5 Operating Expenses $3,890,877 $3,890,877 $3,890,877 $3,890,877
6 Deemed Interest Expense $652,936 $652,936 $652,936 $652,936
Total Cost and Expenses $4,543,812 $4,543,812 $4,543,812 $4,543,812
7 Utility Income Before Income Taxes $187,034 $818,422 $187,034 $818,422
Tax Adjustments to Accounting
8 Income per 2009 PILs $41,959 $41,959 $41,959 $41,959
9 Taxable Income $228,993 $860,381 $228,993 $860,381
10 Income Tax Rate 28.84% 28.84% 28.84% 28.84%
11 Income Tax on Taxable Income $66,043 $248,138 $66,043 $248,138
12 Income Tax Credits $- $- $- $-
13 Utility Net Income $120,991 $570,284 $120,991 $570,284
14 Utility Rate Base $17,799,123 $17,799,123 $17,799,123 $17,799,123
Deemed Equity Portion of Rate Base $7,119,649 $7,119,649 $7,119,649 $7,119,649
15 Income/Equity Rate Base (%) 1.70% 8.01% 1.70% 8.01%
16 Target Return - Equity on Rate Base 8.01% 8.01% 8.01% 8.01%
Sufficiency/Deficiency in Return on Equity -6.31% 0.00% -6.31% 0.00%
17 Indicated Rate of Return 4.35% 6.87% 4.35% 6.87%
18 Requested Rate of Return on Rate Base 6.87% 6.87% 6.87% 6.87%
19 Sufficiency/Deficiency in Rate of Return -2.52% 0.00% -2.52% 0.00%
20  Target Return on Equity $570,284 $570,284 $570,284 $570,284
21 Revenue Sufficiency/Deficiency $449,293 ($0) $449,293 ($0)
22 Gross Revenue Sufficiency/Deficiency $631,388 (1) $631,388 (1)
Notes:
1) Revenue Sufficiency/Deficiency divided by (1 - Tax Rate)
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} File Number:

Name of LDC: Orangeville Hydro Limited

Rate Year:
h e |4
Ontario
Revenue Requirement
Line Particulars Application Per Board Decision
No.
1 OM&A Expenses $2,769,015 $2,769,015
2 Amortization/Depreciation $1,119,762 $1,119,762
3 Property Taxes $- $-
4  Capital Taxes $2,099 $2,099
5 Income Taxes (Grossed up) $248,138 $248,138
6  Other Expenses $- $-
7 Return
Deemed Interest Expense $652,936 $652,936
Return on Deemed Equity $570,284 $570,284
Distribution Revenue Requirement
8  before Revenues $5,362,234 $5,362,234
9 Distribution revenue $5,005,962 $5,005,962
10 Other revenue $356,272 $356,272
11 Total revenue $5,362,234 $5,362,234
Difference (Total Revenue Less
Distribution Revenue Requirement
12  before Revenues) $- (1) $- (1)
Notes

1)

Line 11 - Line 8
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REVENUE REQUIREMENT WORK FORM

= Name of LDC: Orangeville Hydro Limited
t f File Number:
=, Rate Year: 2010
h o 14
Ontario
Selected Delivery Charge and Bill Impacts
Per Draft Rate Order
Monthly Delivery Charge Total Bill
Per Draft Change Per Draft Change
Current |Rate Order $ % Current |Rate Order $ %
Residential 1000 kWh/month| $ 30.57 | $ 31.48 091 | 3.0% $ 122.36 | $ 123.81 145| 1.2%
GS <50kW 2000 kWh/month | $ 50.98 | $ 54.05 3.07[ 6.0% $ 236.78 | $ 241.00 421 | 1.8%
Notes:

OHL could not include the bill impacts for the Grand Valley service area so we used Orangeville Hydro rate to calculate impact.

Monthly Delivery includes distribution service charge, volumetric and rate riders.
Total Bill includes commodity Transmission, WMS, debt retirement and taxes
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RATE BASE:
Rate Base Overview:

The rate base used for the purpose of calculating the revenue requirement used in this
Application follows the definition used in the 2006 EDR Handbook as an average of the balances
at the beginning and the end of the 2010 Test Year, plus a working capital allowance, which is

15% of the sum of the cost of power and controllable expenses.

The net fixed assets include those distribution assets that are associated with activities that enable
the conveyance of electricity for distribution purposes. The OHL rate base calculation excludes
any non-distribution assets. Controllable expenses include operations and maintenance, billing

and collecting and administration expenses.

OHL has provided its rate base calculations for the years 2006 Board Approved, 2006 Actual,
2007 Actual, 2008 Actual, 2009 Bridge Year and 2010 Test Year in Table 1 below. OHL has
calculated its 2010 rate base as $17,799,123.

Table 1
Summary of Rate Base
Beseinton 2006 OEB 2006 Actual 2007 Actual 2008 Actual 2009 Bridge 2010 Test
Approved Year Year Year Year

Gross Fixed Assets | 24,862,719 26,983,585 28,016,813 | 29,276,036 | 30,979,862 | 32,914,799
Accumulated (11,663,237) | (13,739,390) | (14,770,385) | (15,767,852) | (16,912,687) | (18,114,388)
Depreciation
Net Book Value 13,199,482 13,244,195 13,246,428 13,508,184 | 14,067,176 | 14,800,412
C"frage NetBook | 1319948 | 13121369 13,245312 | 13,377,306 | 13,787,680 | 14,433,794

alue
Working Capital 18,196,017 20,047,040 21,017,501 | 20,480,378 | 22,288,633 | 22,435,528
Worki ital

orking Capita 2,729,402 3,007,056 3,152,625 3,072,057 3,343,295 3,365,329
Allowance
Rate Base 15,928,885 16,128,425 16,397,937 16,449,363 | 17,130,975 | 17,799,123

OHL has provided a summary of its calculations of the cost of power and controllable expenses

used in the calculations for determining working capital for the years 2006 Board Approved,
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2006 Actual, 2007 Actual, 2008 Actual, 2009 Bridge Year and 2010 Test Year in Table 2,
below. Details of OHL’s calculation of its working capital alowance are provided at Exhibit 2,

. . 2006 OEB 2007 Actual | 2008 Actual | 2009 Bridge | 2010 Test
Description 2006 Actual
Approved Year Year Year Year
Cost of Power 15,986,825 | 17,998,434 | 18,732,324 | 18,215,238 | 19,919,438 | 19,666,513
Operations 199,733 248,806 271,145 338,920 319,390 408,946
Maintenance 378,794 339,366 445,480 457,999 447,677 492,423
Billing &
I ¢ 470,174 476,660 483,587 501,713 508,659 | 559,953
Collecting
Community 24,957 151,591 168,331 42,551 12,584 28,862
Administration &
1,135,533 850,229 936,592 1,066,947 1,080,885 1,278,832
General Expense
Working Capital 18,196,017 | 20,065,087 | 21,037,459 | 20,623,368 | 22,288,633 | 22,435,528

The OHL Distribution System:

OHL owns and operates the eectricity distribution system in its licensed service area in the
Town of Orangeville and the Village of Grand Valley, serving approximately 14,303 Residential,
General Service, Street Light, Sentined Light and Unmetered Scattered Load

customers/connections.

OHL’ s supply for the Town of Orangeville comes through the Hydro One transmission system at
primary voltages of 44.0 kV and 27.6 kV. Electricity is then distributed through OHL’s service
area of 16 sguare kilometres, over 66 kilometres of underground cable and 95 kilometres of
overhead conductor.
Service >50 kW (44 kV delta, 27.6 kV wye), General Service (27.6, 8 or 4 kV wye) and
Residential (16.0, 4.8 or 2.4 kV) customers. Primary voltage is stepped down through 5 OHL-
owned distribution stations to service General Service (347/600 wye 600 delta, 240 delta,

OHL delivers electricity at its primary supply voltage to the General
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120/208 wye, three phase) and Residential (120/240 single phase) customers. Voltage is stepped
down from the 27.6, 8, and 4.16 kV primary feeders through approximately 1,388 LDC owned
distribution transformers. OHL’s supply for the Village of Grand Valley comes through the
Hydro One distribution station at 44 kV. Electricity is then distributed through OHL’s service
area of 1 square kilometre, over 1 kilometre of underground cable and 8 kilometres of overhead

conductor.

In the 2010 capital budget OHL will procure the services of an engineering consultant to analyze
and optimize our overal system and to assist in developing a more comprehensive strategy for
our Asset Management plan. Under advisory of the engineering consultant, OHL will begin
implementation of a supervisory control and data acquisition system and GIS system. Severa
interested parties have contacted OHL to connect renewable generation to our system. OHL is
committed to the Green Energy Act and the intent to have Smart Grid which allows customers
with generation to connect.

OHL owns and maintains approximately 11,258 meters installed on its customers premises for
the purpose of measuring consumption of electricity for billing purposes. Meters vary in type by
customer and include meters capable of measuring kWh consumption, kW and kVA demand as
well as hourly interval data. OHL will be installing smart meters in the Spring of 2010 as part of
the Province of Ontario’s smart meter initiative. On June 25, 2009, Ontario Regulation 235/08
was filed by the Ontario Provincial Government giving Orangeville Hydro Limited authorization
to proceed with its first phase of Smart Meter installation. The proposed revenue requirement
does not include costs related to Smart Meters.

In managing its distribution system assets, OHL’s main objective is to optimize performance of
the assets at a reasonable cost with due regard for system reliability, public & worker safety and
customer service requirements. This Application incorporates OHL’s 2010 Capital and Expense
Budgets in determining the revenue requirement to bring these plans to fruition. Further
information will be provided later in this Application. OHL considers performance-related asset
information including, but not limited to, data on reliability, asset age and condition, loading,
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customer connection requirements, and system configuration, to determine investment needs of
the system.

On an annua basis, OHL reviews capital projects identified for potential implementation and
attempts to prioritize each project based on defined criteria on a relative basis. All members of
the management team follow the criteria as they individually complete their work on preparing
outlines of their recommendations, which are then discussed by the full group. After examining
all recommended projects they are listed in order from higher to lower priority and then moved

forward based on appropriate financial parameters.

In addition to the capital needs of the network, OHL provides for maintenance planning for the
assets. The same preparation and consideration steps are undertaken before the Finance
department establishes the recommended budget amounts. Further information on OHL's Capital

and Operation, Maintenance & Administration amounts will follow later in this Application.

OHL assets fall into two broad categories — distribution plant, which includes assets such as
substation building, wires, overhead and underground electricity distribution infrastructure,
transformers, meters and substations; and general plant which includes assets such as, office
building and service centre, computer equipment and software. More detailed lists of
distribution and general plant categories can be found in the Gross Assets Table at Exhibit 2, Tab
2, Schedule 2.

Capital Projects:
OHL’s capital budget items include:
e Customer Demand:

These are projects that OHL undertakes to meet its customer service obligations in accordance
with the OEB’s Distribution System Code (the “DSC”) and OHL’s Conditions of Service.
Activities include connecting new customers and building new subdivisions. Capital

contributions toward the cost of these projects are collected by OHL in accordance with the DSC
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and the provisions of its Conditions of Service. OHL uses the economic evaluation methodology
from the DSC to determine the level of capital contribution for each project and those levels are

injected into the annual capital budget.
Renewal:

Renewal projects are completed when assets reach their end of useful life and must be replaced.
OHL completes visual inspections of its plant and performs predictive testing on certain assets
where such testing is available, and replaces assets based on these inspection and testing
activities if warranted. In some cases the projects involve spot replacement of assets; in others,
the projects involve complete asset replacement within a geographic area. New assets require

less maintenance, deliver better reliability and reduce safety risks to the general public.
e Security:

The probability and impact of asset failure are considered at peak load to determine the risk the
failure creates. In these cases, projects are developed to add switching devices or create a

backup feeder supply to reduce the risk to typical restoration times for OHL.
e Capacity:

Load growth caused by new customer connections and increased demand of existing customers
over time can result in a need for capacity improvements on the system. Projects can take the
form of new or upgraded feeders, transformers or voltage conversion projects, substations or
transformer stations. These projects are not customer-specific, but rather, they benefit many

customers.
e Reliability:

The main driver for these investments is an analysis of what measures could be undertaken to
improve OHL reliability performance as measured by SAIDI, SAIFI and CAIDI indices. These
indices are indicators of the reliability of OHL’s distribution system. These activities will

support maintenance of or improvement to the Service Quality Indices measured and submitted
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to the OEB each year by OHL. The Asset Management Report provided in Exhibit 2, Tab 3,
Schedule 3 supports the capital and maintenance programs needed to maintain and enhance the
reliability of OHL’ s distribution system.

e Regulatory Requirements:

These projects are system capital investments, which are being driven by regulatory
requirements. These requirements may include, among others, directions from the OEB, the
IESO, the Ministry of Energy or the Ministry of Environment and the Town of Orangeville or
the Village of Grand Valley, relocating system plant for roadway reconstruction work. Where
projects are municipally driven, OHL follows the regulations of road reconstruction work
collecting contributed capital for 50% of the labour and vehicles. In 2009 and 2010 OHL has
also placed into this category those projects relating to the elimination of long-term load transfers
pursuant to the DSC.

e Substations:

Substation investments are undertaken to improve or maintain reliability to large numbers of
customers and to maintain security and safety at the substations. The renewal or retirement of
OHL’s 4.16 kV substations is the subject of a review being undertaken as part of the Asset
Management Report. Since 1985, OHL has been expanding the 27.6kV system with the
objective of eliminating some of the 4.16kV network, which could eventually lead to a reduction
in the number of distribution stations, reduced number of distribution feeders and improved
efficiency in the delivery of electricity. Continuation of this conversion program will maximize
the amount of the distributed generation alowed to connect under the Green Energy Act.

e Customer Connections and Metering:

Capital expenditures in this pool include meter installations, meter upgrades, and the capita
components of wholesale and retail meter verification activities. OHL isinitiating a smart meter
program, as approved by Ontario Regulation 235/08 (Authorized Discretionary Metering
Activity & Procurement).
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e Green Energy Act Enablement:

Capital expenditures in this pool are for the promotion of renewable energy, the timely
connection of renewable projects to OHL’s distribution system, the promotion of demand

management and facilitation of the Smart Grid.

OHL capita projects for the 2010 Test Year are discussed in further detail. OHL has provided
project-specific justifications in Exhibit 2, Tab 3, Schedule 2 for the 2009 Bridge Y ear and 2010
Test Year. OHL’s 2010 revenue requirement amounts to $5,362,234 and written explanations
have been provided for rate base-related variances that exceed materiaity of $50,000
(distributors with a distribution revenue requirement of less than or equal to $10 million, being
the materiality threshold in the Filing Requirements).

Gross Assets — Property, Plant and Equipment and Accumulated Depreciation:

The 2009 Bridge and 2010 Test Years gross asset balances reflect the capital expenditure
programs forecast for both years. An analysis of our 2006 to 2010 capital programs are
described in detail in OHL’ s written evidence at Exhibit 2, Tab 3, Schedule 1.

The following comments provide an overview of OHL’ s budgeting process.
e Overall Budget Process:

The budget is prepared annually by management and is reviewed and approved by the OHL
Board of Directors. The budget is prepared before the start of each fiscal year. Once approved,

it does not change, but provides a plan against which actual results may be evaluated.
e Responsibilities:

> |t is the responsibility of the Finance department to coordinate the development of the
operating budget, capital budget and forecast processes.
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> Each department is responsible for preparing its operating budget, capital budget, and
rolling forecasts.

> The President, with assistance from the Manager of Finance & Rates, is responsible for

presenting and recommending the budget to the Board of Directors for approval.

> |t isthe responsibility of the Board of Directors, on behalf of the shareholder, to approve
the budget.

The budget is an important planning tool for OHL. It puts capital and operational plans into a
common financia plan. The fina document provides a comprehensive package of department
budgets that collectively ensure that appropriate resources are designated for the various capital

and operational needs of the utility for the coming year.

The departmental Budget Plans represent the output of detailed work plans based on required
activities for the year. OHL notes that these Budget Plans address both capital and operating
requirements.
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The following Table 1 sets out OHL’s rate base and working capital calculations for 2006 Board
Approved and Actual, 2007 Actual, 2008 Actual, 2009 Bridge Y ear and 2010 Test Y ear, and the

following variances:

e 2006 Actual against 2006 Board Approved;
e 2007 Actual against 2006 Actual;

e 2008 Actual against 2008 Actual

e 2009 Bridge Y ear against 2008 Actual; and
e 2010 Test Year against 2009 Bridge Y ear.

Table 1
Variance Variance Variance Variance Variance
2006 OEB 2007 Actual 2008 Actual 2009 Bridge 2010 Test
Description 2006 Actual | from 2006 from 2006 from 2007 &€ | from 2008 from 2009
Approved* Year Year Year Year )
OEB Actual Actual Year Actual Year Bridge Year
Gross Fixed Assets 24,862,719 | 26,983,585 | 2,120,866 | 28,016,813 | 1,033,228 | 29,276,036 1,259,223 30,979,862 1,703,826 | 32,914,799 | 1,934,937
Accumulated (11,663,237)| (13,739,390)| (2,076,153) | (14,770,385)| (1,030,995) | (15,767,852)| (997,467) | (16,912,687) | (1,144,835) |(18,114,388)| (1,201,701)
Net Book Value 13,199,482 | 13,244,195 44,713 13,246,428 2,233 13,508,184 261,756 14,067,176 558,991 14,800,412 733,236
A Net Book
V:Tur:ge etBoo 13,199,482 | 13,121,369 | (78,113) | 13,245,312 | 123,942 | 13,377,306 | 131,995 | 13,787,680 | 410,374 | 14,433,794 | 646,114
Working Capital 18,196,017 | 20,047,040 | 1,851,023 | 21,017,501 970,462 20,480,378 (537,123) 22,288,633 1,808,254 | 22,435,528 146,895
Working Capital
Allowance 2,729,402 3,007,056 277,653 3,152,625 145,569 3,072,057 (80,568) 3,343,295 271,238 3,365,329 22,034
Rate Base 15,928,885 | 16,128,425 199,540 16,397,937 269,512 16,449,363 51,426 17,130,975 681,612 17,799,123 668,148

OHL notes that the 2006 OEB Approved rate base was determined through the 2006 EDR
process and is based on the 2004 year end rate base adjusted for Tier 1 Adjustments.

Accordingly, the variance between 2006 Actual and 2006 OEB Approved spans a two-year

period.

The 2010 Revenue Requirement for OHL is $ 5,362,234 therefore OHL has caculated the
materiality threshold on its rate base to be $50,000 for 2010 in accordance with the Filing

Requirements (distributors with a distribution revenue requirement of less than or equal to $10

million).




~N o o1 b~

10
11
12
13

14
15
16

17

18
19
20
21
22
23

24

Orangeville Hydro Limited
EB-2009-0272

Exhibit 2

Tab 1l

Schedule 2

Page 2 of 3

Filed: August 28, 2009

OHL offers the following comments in respect of the relevant variances identified above. OHL

also explains projects under the materiality where relevant.
2010 Test Year:

Asshown in Table 1 above, the tota rate base in the 2010 test year is forecast to be $17,799,123.
Average net fixed assets accounts for $ 14,433,794 of this total. The alowance for working
capital totals $3,365,329 and has been calculated as 15% of the sum of the cost of power and

controllable expenses.
e 2010 Test Year vs. 2009 Bridge Year:

The total rate base is expected to be $668,148 higher in the 2010 Test Year than in the 2009
Bridge Year. Thisincreaseisshown in Table 1 above and is attributable primarily to an increase
in average net fixed assets of $646,114. The increase in fixed assets along with the required
detailed information for projects is discussed in detail by capital project in Exhibit 2, Tab 3,
Schedule 2.

The working capital allowance increased by $22,034 from the 2009 Bridge Year. A detailed
calculation of the working capital allowance for the 2010 Test Year can be found at Exhibit 2,
Tab 4, Schedule 1.

e 2009 Bridge Year vs. 2008 Actual:

The tota rate base for the 2009 Bridge Year is expected to be $17,130,975, which represents an
increase of $681,612 over the 2008 Actua year. This change resultsin part from an increase in
average net assets of $410,374. This increase is primarily due to capital expenditures. The
working capital alowance increased by $271,238 from 2008. A detailed calculation of the
working capital allowance for the 2009 Bridge Y ear can be found at Exhibit 2, Tab 4, Schedule
1

e 2008 Actual vs. 2007 Actual:
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The rate base of $16,449,363 for 2008 Actual increased over 2007 Actua by $51,426. This
increase is made up of a change in average net assets of $131,995 as a result of capital
expenditures. Detailed information for these projects can be found in Exhibit 2, Tab 2, Schedule
3. Theworking capital allowance decreased by $(80,568).

e 2007 Actual vs. 2006 Actual:

The rate base of $16,397,937 for 2007 Actua increased over 2006 Actual by $269,512. This
increase is made up of a change in average net assets of $123,942 as a result of capita

expenditures. The working capital allowance increased by $145,569.
e 2006 Actual vs. 2006 Board Approved:

The rate base of $16,128,425 for 2006 Actual was higher than the 2006 Board Approved by
$199,540. The difference reflects the fact that the 2006 Board Approved amounts were cal cul ated
as the average of the 2003 and 2004 actual amounts.

The variance between the 2006 Actual and the 2006 Board Approved included the difference
between the 2004 actual and the 2006 Board Approved amounts as well as the 2005 normal

investments.
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Cost Accumulated Depreciation
A
OEB Description Opening Additions Disposals Closing Balance Opening Add Di: I Closing Bal Net Book Value
Balance Balance

1805 [Land 29,126 0 29,126 0 0 0 0 29,126
1806 [Land Rights 23,805 6,056 29,861 4,705 1,194 0 5,899 23,962
1808 |[Buildings and Fixtures 15,296 0 15,296 15,296 0 0 15,296 0
1810 [Leasehold Improvements 5,256 0 5,256 5,256 0 0 5,256 0
1815 [Transformer Stn Equip-Normally Primary above 50kV 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1820 |Distribution Stn Equip-Normally Primary below 50kV 838,981 26,177 865,157 468,368 28,059 0 496,427 368,730
1825 [Storage Battery Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1830 [Poles, Towers and Fixtures 3,872,701 58,319 3,931,020 2,217,850 139,772 0 2,357,622 1,573,398
1835_|Overhead Conductors and Devices 3,020,754 237,931 3,258,685 1,440,975 110,920 0 1,551,895 1,706,790
1840 [Underground Conduit 2,974,027 (139,267) 2,834,760 1,196,642 105,898 0 1,302,541 1,532,219
1845 |Underground Conductors and Devices 2,991,839 331,720 3,323,559 1,385,399 126,984 0 1,512,383 1,811,176
1850 |Line Transformers 6,334,506 437,817 6,772,323 2,691,318 250,396 0 2,941,715 3,830,608
1855 |Services 2,018,756 78,764 2,097,520 1,081,249 89,293 0 1,170,542 926,978
1860 [Meters 1,599,226 33,577 1,632,803 814,814 55,238 0 870,052 762,751
1865 _|Other Installations on Customer's Premises 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1905 [Land 144,400 0 144,400 0 0 0 0 144,400
1906 [Land Rights 4,938 0 4,938 4,938 0 0 4,938 0
1908 |[Buildings and Fixtures 2,433,744 12,165 8,738 2,437,171 627,416 41,278 699 667,995 1,769,176
1910 [Leasehold Improvements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1915 |Office Furniture and Equipment 154,454 0 1,044 153,410 113,464 6,894 1,044 119,314 34,095
1920 [Computer Equipment - Hardware 269,629 27,519 75,769 221,379 219,282 21,678 73,686 167,274 54,105
1925 [Computer Software 270,109 85,691 355,800 205,055 40,551 0 245,606 110,194
1930 [Transportation Equipment 781,820 316,548 146,212 952,156 645,644 93,053 146,212 592,486 359,670
1935 _|Stores Equipment 26,359 0 26,359 22,225 924 0 23,149 3,210
1940 [Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment 177,581 2,206 42,295 137,492 150,294 8,733 41,986 117,042 20,450
1945 [Measurement and Testing Equipment 13,920 0 13,920 7,723 1,392 0 9,115 4,804
1950 [Power Operated Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1955 [Communication Equipment 23,157 0 3,834 19,323 15,622 1,007 3,834 12,795 6,528
1960 [Miscellaneous Equipment 9,700 (0) 322 9,378 970 938 225 1,682 7,695
1970 [Load Management Controls - Customer Premises 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1975 [Load Management Controls - Utility Premises 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1980 [System Supervisory Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1985 _|[Sentinel Lighting Rentals 9,804 0 9,804 9,171 178 0 9,349 455
1990 [Other Tangible Property 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1995 |[Contributions and Grants (2,070,757) (226,554) (2,297,310) (369,093) (91,892) 0 (460,985) (1,836,325)

Totals: | 25,973,130 1,288,669 278,214 26,983,585 12,974,586 1,032,489 267,685 13,739,390 13,244,195
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Table 2
OHL
Fixed Asset Continuity Schedule
As at December 31, 2007

Cost Accumulated Depreciation
A A
Description Opening Additions Disposals Closing Balance Opening Additions Disposals Closing Balance [ Net Book Value
Balance Balance

Land 29,126 0 29,126 0 0 0 0 29,126
Land Rights 29,861 3,956 33,817 5,899 1,353 0 7,252 26,565
Buildings and Fixtures 15,296 0 15,296 15,296 0 0 15,296 0
Leasehold Improvements 5,256 0 5,256 0 5,256 0 5,256 0 0
Transformer Stn Equip-Normally Primary above 50k 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Distribution Stn Equip-Normally Primary below 50k 865,157 24,764 889,922 496,427 26,951 0 523,378 366,544
Storage Battery Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Poles, Towers and Fixtures 3,931,020 84,105 4,015,125 2,357,622 140,947 0 2,498,570 1,516,556
Overhead Conductors and Devices 3,258,685 149,469 3,408,155 1,551,895 115,998 0 1,667,893 1,740,262
Underground Conduit 2,834,760 247,003 3,081,763 1,302,541 115,779 0 1,418,320 1,663,444
Underground Conductors and Devices 3,323,559 230,686 3,554,245 1,512,383 136,211 0 1,648,594 1,905,650
Line Transformers 6,772,323 352,352 7,124,675 2,941,715 264,491 0 3,206,206 3,918,469
Services 2,097,520 102,075 2,199,595 1,170,542 93,275 0 1,263,817 935,777
Meters 1,632,803 135,383 1,768,186 870,052 60,095 0 930,147 838,039
Other Installations on Customer's Premises 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Land 144,400 0 144,400 0 0 0 0 144,400
Land Rights 4,938 0 4,938 4,938 0 0 4,938 0
Buildings and Fixtures 2,437,171 168,051 2,605,221 667,995 44,290 0 712,284 1,892,937
Leasehold Improvements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Office Furniture and Equipment 153,410 34,559 810 187,159 119,314 10,174 567 128,922 58,237
Computer Equipment - Hardware 221,379 14,090 17,554 217,915 167,274 29,922 17,554 179,642 38,273
Computer Software 355,800 30,546 3,526 382,819 245,606 44,874 3,526 286,953 95,866
Transportation Equipment 952,156 31,645 26,336 957,465 592,486 99,382 26,336 665,533 291,932
Stores Equipment 26,359 5,668 32,027 23,149 1,917 0 25,067 6,961
Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment 137,492 4,799 669 141,623 117,042 9,043 669 125,416 16,207
Measurement and Testing Equipment 13,920 1,399 15,319 9,115 1,532 0 10,647 4,672
Power Operated Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Communication Equipment 19,323 0 19,323 12,795 1,007 0 13,803 5,520
Miscellaneous Equipment 9,378 2,131 443 11,066 1,682 1,107 310 2,479 8,587
Load Management Controls - Customer Premises 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Load Management Controls - Utility Premises 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
System Supervisory Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sentinel Lighting Rentals 9,804 0 9,804 9,349 152 0 9,501 303
Other Tangible Property 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contributions and Grants (2,297,310) (534,860) (2,832,170) (460,985) (113,287) 0 (574,272) (2,257,898)

Totals: | 26,983,585 1,087,822 54,594 28,016,813 13,739,390 1,085,213 54,218 14,770,385 13,246,428
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e — T Accumulated Depreciation
CCA o Opening s " . . i q q
s OEB Description . Additions Disposals | Closing Balance | | Opening Balance Additions Disposals Closing Balance | Net Book Value
N/A 1805 | Land 29,126 0 29,126 0 0 0 0 29,126
CEC 1806 | Land Rights 33,817 0 33,817 7,252 1,353 0 8,605 25,212
1 1808 | Buildings and Fixtures 15,296 0 15,296 15,296 0 0 15,296 0
1810 | Leasehold Improvements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1815 | Transformer Stn Equip-Normally Primary above 50k 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
47 1820 | Distribution Stn Equip-Normally Primary below 50k 889,922 12,969 902,891 523,378 24,146 0 547,524 355,367
1825 | Storage Battery Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
47 1830 [ Poles, Towers and Fixtures 4,015,125 112,513 4,127,638 2,498,570 140,774 0 2,639,343 1,488,295
47 1835 | Overhead Conductors and Devices 3,408,155 161,649 3,569,804 1,667,893 117,364 0 1,785,256 1,784,548
47 1840 | Underground Conduit 3,081,763 317,537 3,399,300 1,418,320 122,129 0 1,540,449 1,858,851
47 1845 Underground Conductors and Devices 3,554,245 121,483 3,675,728 1,648,594 138,222 0 1,786,816 1,888,912
47 1850 | Line Transformers 7,124,675 586,829 7,711,503 3,206,206 276,227 0 3,482,433 4,229,070
47 1855 | Services 2,199,595 31,435 2,231,030 1,263,817 93,675 0 1,357,492 873,538
47 1860 | Meters 1,768,186 35,731 1,803,916 930,147 60,810 0 990,957 812,959
1865 | Other Installations on Customer's Premises 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
N/A 1905 | Land 144,400 0 144,400 0 0 0 0 144,400
CEC 1906 | Land Rights 4,938 0 4,938 4,938 0 0 4,938 0
1 1908 | Buildings and Fixtures 2,605,221 109,490 2,787 2,711,924 712,284 45,503 1,059 756,729 1,955,196
1910 | Leasehold Improvements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8 1915 | Office Furniture and Equipment 187,159 2,632 4,369 185,422 128,922 9,588 4,369 134,141 51,281
50 1920 | Computer Equipment - Hardware 217,915 8,778 32,884 193,809 179,642 13,833 31,127 162,348 31,461
12 1925 | Computer Software 382,819 50,753 433,572 286,953 43,972 0 330,925 102,647
10 1930 | Transportation Equipment 957,465 0 957,465 665,533 68,388 0 733,921 223,544
10 1935 | Stores Equipment 32,027 910 3,112 29,825 25,067 992 3,390 22,668 7,157
8 1940 | Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment 141,623 4,235 145,858 125,416 5,985 0 131,401 14,457
1945 Measurement and Testing Equipment 15,319 0 15,319 10,647 1,532 0 12,179 3,140
1950 | Power Operated Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10 1955 | Communication Equipment 19,323 0 19,323 13,803 1,007 0 14,810 4,513
8 1960 | Miscellaneous Equipment 11,066 11,876 2,395 20,547 2,479 1,461 1,677 2,264 18,284
1970 | Load Management Controls - Customer Premises 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1975 | Load Management Controls - Utility Premises 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1980 | System Supervisory Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1985 | Sentinel Lighting Rentals 9,804 0 9,804 0 9,501 166 9,667 0 0
1990 | Other Tangible Property 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
47 1995 [ Contributions and Grants (2,832,170) (254,245) (3,086,415) (574,272) (118,372) 0 (692,644) (2,393,772)
Totals: | 28,016,813 1,314,574 55,351 29,276,036 14,770,385 1,048,755 51,288 15,767,852 13,508,184
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Cost Accumulated Depreciation

OEB Description Opening Balance | Additions | Di Is | Closing Bal: Opening Bal Additions Disposals Closing Balance | Net Book Value
1805 | Land 29,126 0 29,126 0 0 0 29,126
1806 | Land Rights 33,817 0 33,817 8,605 1,353 9,957 23,860
1808 | Buildings and Fixtures 15,296 0 15,296 15,296 0 15,296 0
1810 | Leasehold Improvements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1815 | Transformer Stn Equip-Normally Primary above 50kV 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1820 | Distribution Stn Equip-Normally Primary below 50kV 902,891 7,382 910,274 547,524 25,113 572,637 337,637
1825 | Storage Battery Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1830 | Poles, Towers and Fixtures 4,127,638 146,908 4,274,547 2,639,343 146,750 2,786,094 1,488,453
1835 | Overhead Conductors and Devices 3,569,804 148,936 3,718,740 1,785,256 125,349 1,910,605 1,808,135
1840 | Underground Conduit 3,399,300 303,293 3,702,592 1,540,449 133,452 1,673,901 2,028,691
1845 | Underground Conductors and Devices 3,675,728 370,611 4,046,339 1,786,816 148,153 1,934,970 2,111,369
1850 | Line Transformers 7,711,503 650,758 8,362,261 3,482,433 314,483 3,796,916 4,565,345
1855 | Services 2,231,030 107,871 2,338,901 1,357,492 92,132 1,449,624 889,277
1860 | Meters 1,803,916 15,630 1,819,546 990,957 62,179 1,053,136 766,410
1865 | Other Installations on Customer's Premises 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1905 | Land 144,400 0 144,400 0 0 0 144,400
1906 | Land Rights 4,938 0 4,938 4,938 0 4,938 0
1908 | Buildings and Fixtures 2,711,924 17,000 2,728,924 756,729 46,961 803,689 1,925,235
1910 | Leasehold Improvements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1915 | Office Furniture and Equipment 185,422 0 185,422 134,141 9,295 143,437 41,985
1920 | Computer Equipment - Hardware 193,809 22,100 215,909 162,348 18,616 180,964 34,945
1925 | Computer Software 433,572 216,144 649,716 330,925 81,999 412,924 236,792
1930 | Transportation Equipment 957,465 130,000 1,087,465 733,921 69,105 803,026 284,439
1935 | Stores Equipment 29,825 5,000 34,825 22,668 1,678 24,347 10,478
1940 | Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment 145,858 5,000 150,858 131,401 4,427 135,828 15,030
1945 | Measurement and Testing Equipment 15,319 1,000 16,319 12,179 1,358 13,537 2,781
1950 | Power Operated Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1955 | Communication Equipment 19,323 0 19,323 14,810 1,007 15,818 3,506
1960 | Miscellaneous Equipment 20,547 14,755 35,302 2,264 3,434 5,697 29,605
1970 | Load Management Controls - Customer Premises 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1975 | Load Management Controls - Utility Premises 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1980 | System Supervisory Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1985 | Sentinel Lighting Rentals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1990 | Other Tangible Property 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1995 | Contributions and Grants (3,086,415) (458,562) (3,544,977) (692,644) (142,011) (834,655) (2,710,323)

Totals: 29,276,036 1,703,826 0 30,979,862 15,767,852 1,144,835 0 16,912,687 14,067,176
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Cost Accumulated Depreciation
@ OEB Description Opening A Disposal: Closing Bal Opening Balance Additions Disposals Closing Balance | Net Book Value
Class Balance
0
N/A 1805 | Land 29,126 0 29,126 0 0 0 29,126
CEC 1806 [ Land Rights 33,817 0 33,817 9,957 1,353 11,310 22,507
1 1808 | Buildings and Fixtures 15,296 0 15,296 15,296 0 15,296 0
1810 [ Leasehold Improvements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1815 [ Transformer Stn Equip-Normally Primary above 50kV 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
47 1820 [ Distribution Stn Equip-Normally Primary below 50kV 910,274 123,578 1,033,851 572,637 27,172 599,809 434,042
1825 | Storage Battery Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
47 1830 [ Poles, Towers and Fixtures 4,274,547 41,939 4,316,486 2,786,094 147,589 2,933,683 1,382,803
47 1835 [ Overhead Conductors and Devices 3,718,740 255,384 3,974,125 1,910,605 130,457 2,041,062 1,933,063
47 1840 [ Underground Conduit 3,702,592 233,544 3,936,136 1,673,901 138,123 1,812,024 2,124,112
47 1845 [ Underground Conductors and Devices 4,046,339 347,990 4,394,329 1,934,970 155,113 2,090,083 2,304,246
47 1850 | Line Transformers 8,362,261 699,225 9,061,486 3,796,916 328,468 4,125,383 4,936,103
47 1855 [ Services 2,338,901 110,559 2,449,460 1,449,624 94,343 1,543,967 905,493
47 1860 [ Meters 1,819,546 90,971 1,910,517 1,053,136 63,999 1,117,135 793,382
1865 | Other Installations on Customer's Premises 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
N/A 1905 | Land 144,400 0 144,400 0 0 0 144,400
CEC 1906 | Land Rights 4,938 0 4,938 4,938 0 4,938 0
1 1908 [ Buildings and Fixtures 2,728,924 10,000 2,738,924 803,689 47,061 850,750 1,888,174
1910 [ Leasehold Improvements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8 1915 [ Office Furniture and Equipment 185,422 25,000 210,422 143,437 10,545 153,982 56,440
50 1920 [ Computer Equipment - Hardware 215,909 57,800 273,709 180,964 24,396 205,360 68,348
12 1925 [ Computer Software 649,716 118,780 768,496 412,924 93,877 506,801 261,695
10 1930 [ Transportation Equipment 1,087,465 65,000 1,152,465 803,026 73,168 876,194 276,271
10 1935 [ Stores Equipment 34,825 0 34,825 24,347 1,678 26,025 8,800
8 1940 [ Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment 150,858 5,000 155,858 135,828 4,677 140,505 581
8 1945 [ Measurement and Testing Equipment 16,319 1,000 17,319 13,537 1,408 14,946 2,373
1950 [ Power Operated Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10 1955 | Communication Equipment 19,323 0 19,323 15,818 1,007 16,825 2,498
8 1960 | Miscellaneous Equipment 35,302 0 35,302 5,697 3,434 9,131 26,171
1970 [ Load Management Controls - Customer Premises 0 22,000 22,000 0 1,100 1,100 20,900
1975 [ Load Management Controls - Utility Premises 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8 1980 | System Supervisory Equipment 0 15,000 15,000 0 500 500 14,500
1985 [ Sentinel Lighting Rentals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1990 [ Other Tangible Property 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
47 1995 [ Contributions and Grants (3,544,977) (287,833) (3,832,810) (834,655) (147,768) (982,422) (2,850,388)
Total before Work in Process 30,979,862 1,934,937 0 32,914,799 16,912,687 1,201,701 0 18,114,388 14,800,412
WIP 0 Work in Process 0 0 0 0 0
Totals: 30,979,862 1,934,937 0 32,914,799 16,912,687 1,201,701 0 18,114,388 14,800,412
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GROSS ASSETS TABLE:

e 2006 Board | 2006 Actual V:;ig;u:zof:dm 2007 Actual | Variance from 2008 Actual | Variance from 2009 Bridge | Variance from 2010 Test ($) Variance}from
Approved () ($) e ($) 2006 Actual ($) 2007 Actual ($) 2008 Actual 2009 Bridge

1805-Land 29,126 29,126 29,126 29,126 29,126 29,126
1806-Land Rights 23,208 29,861 6,652 33,817 3,956 33,817 33,817 33,817
1808-Buildings and Fixtures 15,296 15,296 15,296 15,296 15,296 15,296
1905-Land 144,400 144,400 144,400 144,400 144,400 144,400
1906-Land Rights 4,938 4,938 4,938 4,938 4,938 4,938
1810-Leasehold Improvements 5,256 5,256 (5,256)

Sub-Total-Land and Buildings 222,225 228,878 6,652 227,577 (1,300) 227,577 227,577 227,577

1820-Distribution Station Equipment -

’ 733,750 865,157 131,407 889,922 24,764 902,891 12,969 910,274 7,382 1,033,851 | 123,578
Normally Primary below 50 kV
Sub-Total-DS 733,750 865,157 131,407 889,922 24,764 902,891 12,969 910,274 7,382 1,033,851 123,578
1830-Poles, Towers and Fixtures 3,749,091 | 3,931,020 | 181,928 4,015,125 84,105 4,127,638 112,513 4,274,547 146,908 4,316,486 41,939
1835-Overhead Conductors and Devices 2,872,733 | 3,258,685 | 385953 3,408,155 149,469 3,569,804 161,649 3,718,740 148,936 3974125 | 255,384
1840-Underground Conduit 2,895,012 | 2,834,760 |  (60,253) 3,081,763 247,003 3,399,300 317,537 3,702,592 303,293 3,936,136 | 233,544
1845-Underground Conductors and Devices | 2,849,554 | 3,323,559 | 474,005 3,554,245 230,686 3,675,728 121,483 4,046,339 370,611 4,394,329 | 347,990
Sub-Total-Poles and Wires 12,366,390 13,348,023 981,633 14,059,288 711,264 14,772,470 713,182 15,742,218 969,748 16,621,075 878,857
1850-Line Transformers 5778983 | 6772323 | 993340 | [ 7124675 352352 | [ 7,711,503 586829 | [ 8362261 650,758 | [ 9,061,486 699,225
Sub-Total-Line Transformers 5778983 6,772,323 993,340 7,124,675 352,352 7,711,503 586,829 8,362,261 650,758 9,061,486 699,225
1855-Services 1985333 | 2007520 [ 112187 | [ 2199505 | 102075 | [ 2231030 [ 31435 |[ 2338901 [ 107871 | [ 2449460 | 110559
[1860-meters 1553483 | 1,632,803 | 79320 | [ 1768186 | 135383 | [ 1803916 | 35731 | [ 1819546 | 15630 | [ 1910517 [ 90971
Sub-Total-Services and Meters 3538816 3,730,322 191,507 3,967,781 237,458 4,034,946 67,166 4,158,447 123,501 4,359,977 201,530
1908-Buildings and Fixtures 2420800 | 2437171 16371 | [ 2605221 | 168051 | [ 2,711,924 | 106703 | [ 2728924 | 17000 | [ 2738924 [ 10000
|1910 Leasehold Improvements | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
Sub-Total-General Plant 2,420,800 2,437,171 16,371 2,605,221 168,051 2,711,924 106,703 2,728,924 17,000 2,738,924 10,000
1920-Computer Equipment - Hardware 249741 | 221379 | (28362) | [ 217915 | (3464) | [ 193809 | (24206 |[ 215909 | 22200 ][ 273709 | 57,800
[1925-Computer software 221340 | 355800 | 134460 | [ 382819 | 27020 | [ a33s572 | so7s3 | [ eassie | 216144 | [ 768406 | 118780
Sub-Total-IT Assets 471,081 577,179 106,098 600,734 23,555 627,381 26,647 865,625 238,244 1,042,205 176,580
1915-Office Furniture and Equipment 163,789 153,410 (10,379) 187,159 33,749 185,422 (1,737) 185,422 210,422 25,000
1930-Transportation Equipment 758,070 952,156 194,086 957,465 5,309 957,465 1,087,465 130,000 1,152,465 65,000
1935-Stores Equipment 29,048 26,359 (2,689) 32,027 5,668 29,825 (2,202) 34,825 5,000 34,825
1940-Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment 177,705 137,492 (40,213) 141,623 4,131 145,858 4,235 150,858 5,000 155,858 5,000
1945-Measurement and Testing Equipment 13,920 13,920 15,319 1,399 15,319 16,319 1,000 17,319 1,000
1955-Communication Equipment 27,081 19,323 (7,758) 19,323 19,323 19,323 19,323
1960-Miscellaneous Equipment 7,649 9,378 1,728 11,066 1,689 20,547 9,481 35,302 14,755 35,302
Sub-Total-Equipment 1,177,263 1,312,038 134,775 1,363,982 51,944 1,373,759 9,776 1,529,513 155,755 1,625,513 96,000
1970-Load Management Controls - Customer 22,000 22,000
1980-System Supervisory Equipment 15,000 15,000
1995-Contributions and Grants - Credit (1,939,608) |(2,297,310)] (357,702) (2,832,170) | (534,860) (3,086,415) | (254,245) (3,544,977) | (458,562) (3,832,810) | (287,833)
Sub-Total-Other Distribution Assets (1,939,608)  (2,287,507)  (347,898) (2,822,366)  (534,860) (3,086,415)  (264,049) (3,544,977)  (458,562) (3,795,810)  (250,833)
GROSS ASSET TOTAL 24,769,700 26,983,585 2,213,885 28,016,813 1,033,228 29,276,036 1,259,223 30,979,862 1,703,826 32,914,799 1,934,937

Note: 2006 Board Approved amount for gross asset total is $24,862,719, including CDM assets (Account 1565) of $93,019. CDM assets are not
included in the 2010 Test Y ear rate base calculation; accordingly, Account 1565 is omitted from thistable.
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The Gross Asset Variance analysis for those variances highlighted in Table 1 of Exhibit 2, Tab 2,

Schedule 2 is provided as follows.

2005 and 2006 Capital Expenditures:

2005 Capital Expenditures

In
Service Account Account Account | Account | Account | Account | Account | Account | Account | Account

Category Date Project Description Total Project 1806 1820 1830 1835 1840 1845 1850 1855 1860 1995
Cust Demand 2005 |5 New Services 59,149 - - - 1,714 - 9,820 47,615 - -
Cust Demand 2005 |Westside Market Village 121,107 - - - - - 25,451 95,656 - -
Renewal 2005 [27.6-Broadway and Faulkner 112,990 - - 22,977 33,581 - - 50,902 5,530 -
Renewal 2005 |51 Centennial Pole Line Upgrade 42,877 - - 12,217 8,799 - - 21,861 - -
Renewal 2005 [Rolling Hills 10,394 - - - - - 10,394 - - -
Renewal 2005 |Cable terminations/arrestors 7,297 - 7,297 - - - - - - -
Renewal 2005 |Misc Pole Replacement 16,340 - - 1,700 4,538 - - 10,102 - -
Renewal 2005 |Misc Underground Projects 28,718 - - - - 8,173 4,896 15,650 - -
Substation 2005 [MS#1 Removal Project 309,727 - - 52,039 44,914 25,355 43,641 | 131,095 12,682 -
Regulatory 2005 |Browns Farm 76,650 - - - - 22,502 - 54,148 - -
Inventory 2005 |Transformer Inventory 14,462 - - - - - - 14,462 - -
Land Rights 2005 [Land Rights 150 150 - - - - - - - -
Metering 2005 |[Hydro One Exit Fees 10,400 - 10,400 - - - - - - -
Metering 2005 |[Meter Installations 28,865 - - - - - - - - 28,865
Cont. Capital 2005 |Total Contributed Capital (112,889) (112,889)
Total 726,236 150 17,697 88,932 93,547 56,030 94,203 | 441,490 18,212 28,865 | (112,889)

In
Service Account Account | Account | Account [ Account | Account | Account | Account | Account | Account
Category Date Project Description Total Project 1905 1915 1920 1925 1930 1935 1940 1945 1955 1960
Facilities 2005 |General Plant 7,193 7,193 - - - - - - - - -
Equipment 2005 |Office Equipment 8,467 - 8,467 - - - - - - - -
Hardware 2005 |Misc Computer Hardware 18,359 - - 18,359 - - - - - - -
Software 2005 |Misc Computer Software 19,418 - - - 19,418 - - - - - -
Vehicles 2005 |Pickup Truck Replacement 34,789 - - - - 34,789 - - - - -
Tools & Equip 2005 |Replace Major Tools 5,714 - - - - - - 5,714 - - -
Tools & Equip 2005 |3 New Truck Radios 1,868 - - - - - - - - 1,868 -
Tools & Equip 2005 |Misc Equipment 2,050 - - - - - - - - - 2,050
Total 97,859 7,193 8,467 18,359 19,418 34,789 - 5,714 - 1,868 2,050
Total Capital Expenditures 824,095.05
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In

Service Account Account Account Account Account Account | Account | Account Account Account
Category Date Project Description Total Project 1806 1820 1830 1835 1840 1845 1850 1855 1860 1995
Cust Demand 2006 | BO4-B Line Pole Line 111,576 51,957 59,619
Cust Demand 2007 | B03-Veterans Way 99,162 91,191 7,971 - - - -
Cust Demand 2006 | Country Meadows Infill 62,090 - - 22,016 11,341 14,438 14,296
Cust Demand 2006 | 9 Misc New Services 185,786 39,512 146,274 -
Renewal 2007 | BO1-Burbank Rebuild 124,647 - - 87,384 9,389 27,874
Renewal 2006 | Robb Blvd Pole Replacement 9,439 4,811 4,628 - - -
Renewal 2006 | Misc Pole Replacement 34,776 19,039 11,351 - - 4,386
Renewal 2006 | Misc Underground Projects 29,595 - - 6,057 11,244 12,294
Renewal 2006 | Misc Transformer Replace 8,538 - - - - 8,538 - -
Renewal 2006 | Grand Valley 3,766 (150,073) 115,141 (257,190)] 244,330 - 51,195 362
Substation 2006 | DS#1 Removal Project 107,061 - 24,274 24,246 2,467 2,832 39,970 13,273 -
Substation 2006 | Substation Betterment 26,177 26,177 - - - - - -
Regulatory 2006 | Load Transfers 52,681 - 17,119 14,974 8,981 11,607
Regulatory 2007 [ Browns Farm 23,055 - - 4,091 18,964
Inventory 2006 | Transformer Inventory 153,472 - - 153,472
Land Rights 2006 | Land Rights 6,056 6,056 - - -
Metering 2006 | Meter Installations 33,215 - 33,215
2006 | Total Contributed Capital (226,554) (226,554)
Total 844,540 6,056 26,177 58,319 237,931 (139,267)] 331,720 437,817 78,764 33,577 | (226,554)
Variance from 2006 EDR
In
Service Account Account Account Account Account Account | Account | Account Account Account
Category Date Project Description Total Project 1905 1915 1920 1925 1930 1935 1940 1945 1955 1960
Facilities 2006 | General Plant 12,165 12,165 - -
Hardware 2006 | Misc Computer Hardware 26,266 - 26,266 -
Software 2006 | Misc Computer Software 7,243 - 7,243
Software 2006 | Job Cost/Payroll Modules 53,394 53,394
Software 2006 | Grand Valley-CIS software 26,307 1,253 25,054 -
Vehicles 2006 | Double Bucket Truck Replaceme 316,548 - - 316,548
Tools & Equip 2006 | Replace Tools & Equipment 2,206 2,206
Total 444,129 12,165 27,519 85,691 316,548 2,206
Total Capital Expenditures 1,288,669

The 2006 Board Approved amounts for each account were calculated as the average of the 2003

and 2004 actual amounts in accordance with the 2006 rate model. As such the amount for the
2006 Actua includes the difference between the 2004 actua and the 2006 Board Approved
The above tables set out the 2005 and 2006
capital expenditures by account. The capital expenditures for 2005 amount to $824,095 and
2006 amount to $ 1,288,669. The total capital expenditures are $2,112,764. The 2006 EDR
approved amount is $2,213,885. The difference between the2006 EDR and the 2005/2006 total
amounted to $101,121.

amounts as well as 2005 norma investments.
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CUSTOMER DEMAND

2005 Project: Westside market

Cost: $121,107 1845-$25,451 1850-$95,656

Need: Orangeville Hydro is obligated under the DSC to connect new customer services that are
funded through contributed capital.

Scope: Plaza development on the west side of Town. The project consisted of underground
primary and to supply and install 3 PME units and one three phase transformer. Contributed
capital was received for this project as per the OHL’s Conditions of Service.

2006 Project: B Line Extension Completion in 2007

Cost: $111,576 1830-51,957 1835-$59,619

Need: The B-Line project was built for 2 new subdivisions that were to be connected in
2007.

Scope: This project consisted of expanding an existing pole line of approximately 20 poles
and 20 spans of conductor that were installed in the south-west boundary. The cost for this
project was included in the economic evaluation performed in 2007 for Credit Springs and

Wilside Phase 4 to determine the applicable contributed capital .

2006 Project: Veterans Way Expansion Completion in 2007

Cost: $99,162 1830-$91,191 1835-$7,971

Need: In preparation and anticipation of servicing Humber College site, anew Town well and

pumping station, future subdivisions and to deal with some of the load transfer issues.

Scope: A poleline extension was built consisting of approximately 30 poles, hardware and
conductors. Due to the economic downturn most of these projects are on hold. The town well
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has been installed and contributed capital was received. When we receive the new service

connection requests contributed capital will apply.

2006 Project: Country Meadows Infill Economic Evaluation

Cost: $62,090 1840-$22,016 1845-11,341 1850-$14,438
1855-$14,296

Need: Orangeville Hydro is obligated under the DSC to connect new customer services that are
funded through contributed capital.

Scope: Recording of the distribution and transformation of the subdivision development through
the economic evaluation model to determine the contributed capital portion of the project.

RENEWAL

2005 Project: Broadway & Faulkner

Cost: $112,990 1830-$22,977 1835-$33,581 1850-$50,902
1855-$5,530

Need: To replace old existing pole lines in need of replacement due to age, deterioration and
inadequate clearances and could not be deferred due to reliability issues. This is part OHL’s
long term plan to stay consistent with past practice and policy that all renewals are constructed to

27.6 kV standards and are converted from our 4 kV system.

Scope: The replacement of 6 poles between First & Faulkner Streets. This area was converted
thus requiring the replacement of existing transformers and to changeover conductor to the new
poles. Installation of poles, conductor and transformer to 27.6 kV standard.
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2005 Project: Centennial Pole Line Upgrade

Cost: $42,877 1830-$12,217 1835-$8,799 1850-$21,861

Need: We have been gradually upgrading an existing pole line in an older industrial area due to
age, deterioration and inadequate clearances. Improper framing standards were used a number of
years ago when the 27.6 kV circuit was installed in this area. With the expected growth of new
commercia services in this area, OHL upgraded the line to provide adequate clearances for
safety and increased reliability.

Scope: The replacement of approximate 2 poles and changeover of the conductor and converted
transformer to the 27.6 kV standard.

2006 Project: Burbank Rebuild Completion 2007

Cost: $124,647 1840-$87,384 1845-$9,389 1850-$27,874

Need: The cable in this areais over 30 years of age and has been damaged in the past few
years by a number of faults. To improve reliability it was determined that the cableis
nearing end of life condition and therefore an extensive rebuild was warranted. We
expected by performing this work it would help to decrease our callouts/outages thus

decreasing our O& M expenses.

Scope: Consisted of the replacement of primary cable and transformers converting to the
27.6 kV circuit. Due to complexity, directional boring was required and installation of
ductwork. The remainder of this project was completed in 2007 due to the size and cost so

OHL scheduled the project over atwo-year period.
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2006 Project: Grand Valley GL Account Reclassification

Cost: $3,766 1830-$(150,073) 1835-$115,141 1840-$(257,190)
1855-$51,195

Explanation: Grand Valley did not reclassify their general ledger accounts according to the
definitions of accounts in the Accounts Procedures handbook. For cost allocation purposes the

general ledger accounts were set up properly.

SUBSTATION

2005 Project: DS 1 Substation Removal

Cost: $309,727 1830-$52,039 1835-$44,914 1840-$25,355
1845-$43,641 1850-$131,095 1855-$12,682

Need: Conversion plan to eliminate this substation that is over 55 years old. Our DS #1
substation consists of 3-1 MVA transformers that have a manufacture date of 1954. Testing has
been completed each year and various results indicated that these transformers are starting to
deteriorate and approaching a near end of life condition. Due to new development in our
downtown core a 27.6 kV circuit was installed a number of years ago. It was determined by
OHL that it would be more prudent to continue with the conversion in this area rather than
completing expensive upgrades to the old 4 kV station. We are aiming to have this station
removed by 2010.

Scope: In this segment of the project we converted parts of Mill, Armstrong and John Streets
that are fed from that distribution station. This work consisted of replacing a number of poles
because of age, deterioration and improper clearances. Replacement of transformers and primary
cable at were replaced due to the improper voltages to allow for the conversion from 4 kV to
276 kV.
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2006 Project: DS 1 Substation Removal

Cost: $107,061 1830-$24,274 1835-$24,246 1840-$2,467
1845-$2,832 1850-$39,970 1855-$13,273

Need: Conversion plan to eliminate this substation that is over 55 years old. Our DS #1
substation consists of 3-1 MVA transformers that have a manufacture date of 1954. Testing has
been completed each year and various results indicated that these transformers are starting to
deteriorate and approaching a near end of life condition. Due new development in our
downtown core a 27.6 kV circuit was installed a number of years ago. It was determined by
OHL that it would be more prudent to continue with the conversion in this area rather than
completing expensive upgrades to the old 4 kV station. This distribution station will be out of
service in 2009 and scheduled to be removed in 2010.

Scope: In this segment of the project we converted parts of Church, Sarah, Henry and William
Streets that are fed from that distribution station. This work consisted of identifying poles that
required replacing due to age, deterioration and improper clearances. Replacement of
transformers and primary cable at were replaced due to the improper voltages to allow for the

conversion from 4 kV to 27.6 kV.

REGULATORY

2005 Project: Browns Farm-Completion 2005 to 2007

Cost: $76,650 1840-$22,502 1850-$54,148

Need: The Town of Orangeville was installing a new water/sewer pipeline and resurfacing the
road at Diane and Brenda Streets in a 40 year old area of town. OHL thought it prudent to install
underground conduit in order to split the cost of trenching 50% and take the opportunity to
replace ageing transformers so that we would not be digging up the area when we convert from 4
kV to 27.6 kV.
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Scope: There was a number of existing transformer vaults that were changed due to age,

proximity to curbs and sidewalks and had to be replaced or rel ocated.

2006 Project: Browns Farm -Completion 2005 to 2007

Cost: $23,055 1845-$4,091 1850-$18,964

Need: The Town of Orangeville was performing a complete civil engineering upgrade in this
area. OHL thought it prudent to install underground conduit in order to split the cost of
trenching 50% and take the opportunity to replace ageing transformers the so that we would not

be digging up the areawhen we convert from 4 kV to 27.6 kV.

Scope: Continuation of the project started in 2005 with the installation of transformers and

primary cable.

2006 Project: Load Transfers

Cost: $52,681 1830-$17,119 1835-$14,974 1845-$8,981
1850-$11,607

Need: To eliminate the load transfers from Hydro One per Section 6.5.3 the Distribution System
code for the effective date of January 31, 2009.

Scope: To remove customers serviced by Hydro One at C Line and Townline, OHL installed 3
additional spans, poles, conductor and transformers to service some residential customers and

also atransformer bank to provide servicing to the town well.

Transformer Inventory

In 2006, quite a number of customer demand projects were scheduled for 2007. To be prepared
for these projects we received inventory in 2006 of transformers amounting to $153,472. The
transformers need to be ordered 6 to 8 months prior to the scheduled installation.
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GENERAL PLANT

2006 Project: Implement Job Cost and New Payroll Modules

Cost: $53,39%4 1925-$53,394

Need: OHL did not have a work order tracking method in place. We used the genera ledger as
a means to track the cost of ajob but it did not effectively give us a proper breakdown of the
jobs. The payroll was on another 3 party DOS-based software that was outdated.

Scope: Upgrade Great Plains, set up job cost and payroll system with time-tracker.

2006 Project: Double Bucket Truck

Cost: $316,548 1930-$316,548

Need: The maintenance costs were on-going and far too costly on the 1989 double bucket truck.
OHL’s decision to replace our fleet is based on age of service which is 12 years on a large

vehicle, past repair costs and safety related items.

Scope: Obtained 3 quotes for the specifications required and chose the lowest bidder.
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In Service Account Account

Category Date Project Desciption Total Project | Account 1806 1820 1830 Account 1835 | Account 1840] Account 1845 [ Account 1850 Account 1855| Account 1860 | Account 1995
Cust Demand 2007 [CO1-Scotia Bank 51,392 - - - - - 5,798 45,594 - - (51,392)
Cust Demand 2007 |BO3-Veterans Way 132,841 - - 20,991 91,028 - - 20,822 - - -
Cust Demand 2007 _[Willside pumping station 50,343 - - - - - 37,417 12,925 - - -
Cust Demand 2007 _|Wilside Phase 4. 173,787 - - - - 60,862 32,441 40,964 39,521 - (168,330)|
Cust Demand 2007 _|Credit Springs 227,208 - - - - 65,735 43,424 65,512 52,536 - (209,397)|
Cust Demand 2007 _[4 New Services 50,231 - - - - - 20,589 29,641 - - (52,630)
Cust Demand 2008 [B04-B Line Pole Line 8,401 - - 4,729 - - - 3,672 - - -
Security 2008 _|BO6-Riddell Rd 46,567 - - 23,448 23,119 - - - - - -
Renewal 2007 _|BO1-Burbank Cres 125,546 - - - - - 28,754 96,792 - - -
Renewal 2007 |B07-80 Centennial Rd 53,499 - - - - 7,177 13,352 32,971 - - -
Renewal 2007  [William St Conversion 23,212 - - 2,058 2,365 10,355 7,252 1,183 - - -
Renewal 2007 |70 Mill St-Relocate Pole 16,921 - - 2,058 2,389 - - 11,672 803 -
Renewal 2007 _[Century and C-Line 14,924 - - - 5,296 - 9,627 - - -
Renewal 2007 [Pheasant Court 41,077 - - - - - 8,502 32,575 - - -
Renewal 2007 _[Misc Transformer Replacemt 54,890 - - - - - - 54,890 - -
Renewal 2007 _|Misc Pole Replacement 25,686 - - 16,103 8,332 - - 1,251 - - -
Renewal 2007 [Misc Underground Projects 22,991 - - - - 1,361 16,466 4,429 736 - -
Renewal 2007 |Betterments to Substations 24,764 - 24,764 - - - - - - - -
Renewal 2007 _|Grand Valley-transformers 38,093 - - 3,895 6,937 - 564 22,885 3,813 -
Regulatory 2007 |Browns Farm 98,927 - - - 98,927 - - - - -
Regulatory 2007 |Load Transfers 55,669 - - 10,824 10,003 2,588 6,500 21,087 4,667 - -
Inventory 2007 _|Transformer Inventory (146,514) - - - - - - (146,514) - - -
Land Rights 2007 [Land Rights 3,956 3,956 - - - - - - - - -
Metering 2007 |Meter Installations 40,923 - - - - - - - - 40,923 -
Metering 2007 [Recorded Meter Inventory 94,460 - - - - - - - - 94,460 -

2007 [Contributed Capital (534,860) (53,110)]
Total 794,935 3,956 24,764 84,105 149,469 247,003 230,686 352,352 102,075 135,383 (534,860),

In Service Account Account
Category Date Project Description Total Project | Account 1905 1915 1920 Account 1925 | Account 1930 Account 1935 | Account 1940 | Account 1945| Account 1955 | Account 1960
Facilities 2007 _|Storage Building 157,383 157,383 - - - - - - - - -
Facilities 2007 |General Plant 10,668 10,668 - - - - - - - - -
Equipment 2007 |Mail Inserter 34,559 - 34,559 - - - - - - - -
Hardware 2007 [Misc Computer Hardware 14,090 - - 14,090 - - - - - - -
Software 2007 [Misc Computer Software 30,546 - - - 30,546 - - - - - -
Vehicles 2007 _ [Pickup Truck Replacement 31,645 - - - - 31,645 - - - - -
Tools and Equip 2007 _|Stores Shelving 5,668 - - - - 5,668 - - - -
Tools and Equip 2007 [Major Tool Replacement 4,799 - - - - - - 4,799 - - -
Tools and Equip 2007 [Voltage Tester 1,399 - - - - - - - 1,399 - -
Tools and Equip 2007 [Defibrillator 2,131 - - - - - - - - 2,131
Total 292,887 168,051 34,559 14,090 30,546 31,645 5,668 4,799 1,399 - 2,131
Total Capital Expenditures 1,087,822

CUSTOMER DEMAND

2007 Project: Scotia Bank/Tim Hortons

Cost: $51,392

1845-$5,798

1850-$45,594

Need: Orangeville Hydro is obligated under the DSC to connect new customer services that are
funded through contributed capital.
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Scope: A new development on the west side of Town named Westside Market service for a
Scotia Bank and Tim Hortons consisting of a PME and a 3-phase transformer. Contributed

capital was received for this project as per OHL’s Conditions of Service.

2007 Project: Veterans Way Completion 2006 and 2007

Cost: $132,841 $1830-$20,991 1835-$91,028 1850-$20,822

Need: In preparation and anticipation of Humber College site, anew Town well and pumping

station, future subdivisions and to deal with some of the load transfer issues as per the DSC.

Scope: This part of the project consisted of the pole framing and the installation of the
conductors and the transformers for 7 load transfer customers and the pumping station.
Due to the economic downturn most of these projects are on hold. When we receive the new

service connection requests contributed capital will apply.

2007 Project Wilside Pumping Station

Cost: $50,343 1845-$37,417 1850-$12,925

Need: Orangeville Hydro is obligated under the DSC to connect new customer services that are
funded through contributed capital.

Scope: A new subdivision development required a new pumping station for the subdivision. An
economic evaluation was performed and contributed capital was received for this project.

2007 Project Wilside Phase 4

Cost: $173,787 1840-$60,862 1845-$32,441 1850-$40,964
1855-$39,521

Need: Orangeville Hydro is obligated under the DSC to connect new customer services that are
funded through contributed capital.
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Scope: Connected and recorded the distribution and transformation plant installed by the
developer for a new subdivision development in the south-east quadrant of Town. An economic

evaluation was performed and contributed capital was received for this project.

2007 Project Credit Springs

Cost: $227,208 1840-$65,735 1845-$43,424 1850-$65,512
1855-$52,536

Need: Orangeville Hydro is obligated under the DSC to connect new customer services that are
funded through contributed capital.

Scope: Connected and recorded the distribution and transformation plant installed by the
developer for a new subdivision development in the south-east quadrant of Town. An economic

evaluation was performed and contributed capital was received for this project.
SECURITY

2007 Project: Riddell Rd

Cost: $46,567 $1830-$23,448 1835-$23,119

Need: This project consisted of an extension of an existing line in an area of Town to provide a
backup loop feed and to increase reliability for the customersinthisarea. Therewasa
considerable amount of development in this area so OHL felt it was prudent to complete this
loop feed at thistime.

Scope: This project involved the hydro-vac installation of 6 poles and conductor and tie point

switches.
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RENEWAL

2007 Project: Burbank Rebuild Completion 2007

Cost: $125,546 1845-$28,754 1850-$96,792

Need: The cablein thisareaisover 30 years of age and has been damaged in the past few
years by a number of faults. To improve reliability it was determined that the cable was at
near end of life condition and therefore an extensive rebuild was warranted. We expected

by performing this work it would help to decrease our callouts/outages thus decreasing our

O&M expenses.

Scope: This project is a next portion of 2006 Burbank project. It consisted of the
installation of new 28 kV primary cable and also new 16 kV padmount transformersin

order to convert to the 27.6 kV circuit.

2007 Project: Centennial Road

Cost: $53,499 1840-$7,177 1845-$13,352 1850-$32,971

Need: This location was previously supplied by primary 4 kV overhead quad which is no
longer industry standard. The 3 phase transformer at the neighbouring location required
upgrading as it was undersized to now service the two locations. Thisinstallation was
more economical option than installing a new transformer to service only the one building.

Scope: Upgraded the transformer and trenched and installed new secondary cable and a

new main switch.

2007 Project: Pheasant Court

Cost: $41,077 1845-8,502  1850-$32,575

Need: The existing PMH unit required replacing due to maintenance costs as the unit required

cleaning on a few occasions and there was contamination present along with moisture and dirt.
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There were a number of faults and outages to aresidential area that it supplied. Reliability was

greatly affecting the area and many trouble calls were the main driver to perform the work.
Scope: A large PMH unit was replaced with anew PME due to afailure.

2007 Project: Miscellaneous Transformer Replacement

Cost: $54,890 1850-$49,242 1855-$5,648

Need: There were several transformers in different areas of Town that required replacement due

to failure, leakage or deteriorating condition.
Scope: There were 9 locations that required outages to replace the transformers.

2007 Project: Transformer Replacement Grand Valley

Cost: $38,093 1830-$3,895 1835-$6,937 1845-$564
1850-$22,885 1855-$3,813

Need: OHL conducted oil sampling of al transformers in Grand Valley to test for PCB content
in 2006. Thisindicated a need to replace few transformers due to the unacceptable PCB levels.
To facilitate the changeout of the transformers a couple of pole required replacement due to age

and to provide proper clearances..
Scope: Poles replaced and new transformers installed.

REGULATORY

2007 Project: Browns Farm -Completion 2005 to 2011

Cost: $98,927 1840-$98,927

Need: The Town of Orangeville was performing a complete civil engineering upgrade in this
area. OHL felt it was prudent to take advantage of the excavation in preparation of future 27.6
kV conversion in this area.
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Scope: Invoicing of contracted work completed in 2005 and 2006 for installation of new

ductwork, road crossing duct banks.

2007 Project: Load Transfers

Cost: $55,669 1830-$10,824 1835-$10,003 1840-$2,588
1845-$6,500 1850-$21,087 1855-$4,667

Need: To eliminate the load transfers from Hydro One per Section 6.5.3 the Distribution System
code for the effective date of January 31, 2009.

Scope: The instalation of poles, conductors and transformers and service to the customers. One
of the installation involved contractor costs to install conduit and underground cable to complete

load transfer conversion. There were three locations involved in this process.

Metering

Cost: $94,460 1860-$94,460

In 2006, it came to our attention that the metering inventory in the amount of $94,460 was still
being recorded in the inventory account of 1330 and was not in accordance with the OEB
Accounting Procedures handbook. A journa entry was performed to record this amount into
capital account 1860 in 2007.

GENERAL PLANT

2007 Project: Storage Facility

Cost: $157,383 1905-$157,383

Need: We required a storage building to store our transformers and wire and other line material
to deal with security, storage issues and problems with parking lot drainage.
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Scope: We obtained quotes from 2 sources to build a 5000 square foot building and prepare area
to house the structure. OHL proceeded with the contract from the lowest bid.

2008 Capital Expenditures:

2008 Capital Expenditures

In Service Account Account Account Account

Category Date Project Description Total Project | Account 1806 1820 Account 1830 [ Account 1835 [ Account 1840 | Account 1845 | Account 1850 1855 1860 1995
Cust Demand 2008  |C03-Roto Mill 51,301 - - - 17,438 33,863 -
Cust Demand 2008 |Edgewood Valley 228,773 - 135,094 35,742 32,753 25,184
Cust Demand 2008 6 Misc New Services 103,595 - 27,167 76,427 -
Cust Demand 2008  |BO6-Riddell Rd Pole Line 1,148 - 1,148 - - -
Renewal 2008 [Townline Rebuild 175,060 58,682 81,922 - 29,686 4,770
Renewal 2009 |Bredin Pkwy Conversion 351,389 - 172,883 29,623 148,883 -
Renewal 2008  |BO8-Cardwell St. Conversion 35,597 3,063 11,513 - 21,021
Renewal 2008 First St Transformer 10,849 - - 10,849
Renewal 2008 Misc Pole Replacement 20,483 7,003 (2,080) - - 15,560
Renewal 2008 Misc Underground Projects 5,191 - - 89 1,225 3,877
Renewal 2008 Misc Transformer Replacements 8,008 - - - 8,008 - -
Renewal 2008 Grand Valley-Pole Replacement 76,189 - 20,905 33,713 19,909 1,481 182
Substation 2008 |Substation Betterments 12,969 12,969 - - - - - - -
Substation 2008 [DS 1 Removal 84,275 - 11,968 21,710 9,470 8,592 32,536
Rﬁulatory 2008 |B09-Blind Line Pole Relocation 24,571 10,561 12,314 1,696 -
|Regulatory 2008 |Load Transfer 4,712 331 1,409 - 2,972
Inventory 2008 |Transformer Inventory 150,485 - - 150,485 -
Metering 2008 _[Meter Installation 35,548 - - 35,548

2008 _ [Total Contributed Capital (254,245) (254,245)
Total 1,125,900 12,969 112,513 161,649 317,537 121,483 586,829 31,435 35,731 (254,245)

In Service Account Account Account Account
Category Date Project Description Total Project | Account 1905 1915 Account 1920 [ Account 1925 [ Account 1930 | Account 1935 | Account 1940 1945 1955 1960
Facilities 2008  |Resurface Parking Lot 95,379 95,379
Facilities 2008  |Misc Building Improvements 14,111 14,111 -
Hardware 2008  |Misc Computer Hardware 8,778 - 8,778 -
Software 2008 New CIS Initial Payment 50,753 - - 50,753
Equipment 2008 |Office Equipment 2,632 2,632 - - -
Equipment 2008  |Replace Stores Equipment 1,188 - - - 1,188 -
Equipment 2008  |Replace Major Tools 4,235 - - 4,235 -
Equipment 2008  |Replace Misc Equipment 11,876 - - - 11,876
Misc 2008 [Grand Valley Adjustments (278) - - (278) -
Total 188,673 109,490 2,632 8,778 50,753 910 4,235 11,876
Total Capital Expenditures 1,314,574

CUSTOMER DEMAND

2008 Project: Roto Mill

Cost: $51,301

1845-$17,438

1850-$33,863

Need: Orangeville Hydro is obligated under the DSC to connect new customer services that are
funded through contributed capital.
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Scope: A new industria service required OHL to install a new pole and conductor for a road
crossing. A three phase transformer and primary cable was also installed to provide service.

Contributed capital as per OHL’s Conditions of service was received for this project.

2008 Project: Edgewood Valley

Cost: $228,773 1840-$135,094 1845-$35,742 1850-$32,753
1855-25,184

Need: Orangeville Hydro is obligated under the DSC to connect new customer services that are
funded through contributed capital.

Scope: Connected and recorded the distribution and transformation plant installed by the
developer for a new subdivision development in the north-west quadrant of Town. An economic

evaluation was performed and contributed capital was received for this project.

RENEWAL

2008 Project: Townline Rebuild

Cost: $175,060 1830-$58,682 1835-$81,922 1850-$29,686
1855-$4,770

Need: Upon inspection it was determined poles along this road required replacing because of
age, deterioration and near end of life condition. Staying consistent to OHL policy and with
expected new growth to this area, it was prudent when rebuilding that poles of sufficient height
wereinstalled.

Scope: Approximately 22 poles replaced and a new 27.6 circuit was installed to alow for future
conversioninthisarea. Existing transformers were replaced due to age and to convert this area.
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2008 Project: Bredin Parkway Conversion-Completion 2009

Cost: $351,389 1840-$172,883 1845-$29,623 1850-$148,883

Need: The existing subdivision was installed over 30 years ago and due to a number of faults to
the area, the cable and transformers were approaching end of life condition. Calloutsin this area
uncovered poor installation methods of the contractor at the time. Risk of possible serious safety

concerns were evident with the cable being installed at an insufficient depth.

Scope: A contractor used trenching methods and directional boring to install duct work to allow
for the future installation of primary cable for this subdivision. New transformers, vaults and
PME switching units were also installed to replace the existing plant.

2008 Project: Cardwell St Conversion

Cost: $35,597 1830-$3,063 1835-$11,513 1850-$21,021

Need: Inspection of this area identified a pole that required replacement due to age and
deterioration. Both the 4 kV and 27.6 kV circuits were present on this pole and from previous

work in this area OHL felt it prudent to complete the conversion at this time.

Scope: Removal and replacement with new pole, conductor changeover and new transformers
installed.

2008 Project: Grand Valley Transformer/Pole Replacements

Cost: $76,819 1830-$20,905 1835-$33,713 1850-$19,909
1855-$1,481 1860-$182

Need: OHL conducted oil sampling of al transformers in Grand Valley to test for PCB content
in 2006. Thisindicated a need to replace few transformers due to the unacceptable PCB levels.
To facilitate the changeout of the transformers, poles required replacement due to age and to

provide proper clearances.
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Scope: This project consisted of replacing 6 poles in certain identified areas in the Village of
Grand Valley. The transformers replaced as they were identified over the 50 ppm PCB levels of
acceptable levels.

2008 Project: DS 1 Removal

Cost: $84,275 1830-11,968 1835-$21,710 1840-$9,470
1845-$8,592 1850-$32,536

Need: Conversion plan to eliminate this substation that is over 55 years old. Our DS #1
substation consists of 3-1 MVA transformers that have a manufacture date of 1954. Testing has
been completed each year and various results indicated that these transformers are starting to
deteriorate and approaching a near end of life condition. Due new development in our
downtown core a 27.6 kV circuit was installed a number of years ago. It was determined by
OHL that it would be more prudent to continue with the conversion in this area rather than
completing expensive upgrades to the old 4 kV station. This station will be out of service in
2009 and scheduled to be removed by 2010.

Scope: In this segment of the project we converted parts of Green, Wellington, East Broadway
and William Streets that are fed from that distribution station. Thiswork consisted of identifying
poles that required replacing due to age, deterioration and improper clearances. Replacement of
transformers and primary cable at were replaced due to the improper voltages to allow for the

conversion from 4 kV to 27.6 kV.

Transformer Inventory

The transformer inventory decreased due to all the transformers that were delivered in 2007 were
installed during 2008.
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GENERAL PLANT

2008 Project: Resurface Driveway/Parking Area Completion 2009

Cost: $95,379 1905-$95,379

Need: After the installation of the storage building was completed the parking required
attention. The existing parking lot was crumbling from poor drainage and made it unsafe.
Improvements to the entrance were required for the truck traffic for safety reasons. OHL

requested 3 quotes and the lowest bid was rewarded.

Scope: The driveway required widening so that the trucks could maneuver. The parking area
was shored up on the sides to give better drainage. The work commenced in late fall and with
this phase only the first layer of asphalt was applied as it was suggested by the contractor to let
settlement occur to alow for any repairs before applying finished coat of asphalt.

2008 Project: Harris CIS System Completion 2009

Cost: $50,753 1925-$50,753

Need: Our current customer information system vendor has been sold and there will no longer
be support for the Ontario Deregulated Environment by the new software vendor owner. Harris
Northstar CIS is the replacement of Advanced CIS Infinity. OHL participated in an RFP with a
group of LDC’ sthat were in the same situation, named CODAC. The vendors conducted session
from demonstrating functionality and prices were given based on the group of LDCs. OHL
considered many options and decided the UCS solution along with 3 other LDCs as the best cost
effective system. A copy of the recommendation to our Board of Directors is attached as
Appendix A under Exhibit 2, Tab , Schedule. The system is to be implemented in the Fall of
20009.

Scope: Initial payment toward the system.
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ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION:

Table 1 - Accumulated Depreciation

Description 2006 Board | 2006 Actual| Variance from | 2007 Actual | Variance from | 2008 Actual | Variance from | 2009 Bridge | Variance from 2010 Test ($) Variance.from
Approved ($) S) 2006 Board (9) 2006 Actual (%) 2007 Actual S) 2008 Actual 2009 Bridge
1805-Land
1806-Land Rights 3,306 5899.23 2,593 7251.89 1,353 8604.55 1,353 9957.21 1,353 11,310 1,353
1808-Buildings and Fixtures 15,296 15,296 15,296 15,296 15,296 15,296
1905-Land
1906-Land Rights 4,938 4,938 4,938 4,938 4,938 4,938
1810-Leasehold Improvements 5,256 5,256 0 (5,256)
Sub-Total-Land and Buildings 28,797 31,390 2,593 27,486 (3,904) 28,839 1,353 30,191 1,353 31,544 1,353
1820-Distribution Station Equipment - Normal] 438,968 496,427 57459 | | 523378 | 26951 | [ 547,524 2446 | [ 572,637 25113 | [ 599,800 27,172
Sub-Total-DS 438,968 496,427 57,459 523,378 26,951 547,524 24,146 572,637 25,113 599,809 27,172
1830-Poles, Towers and Fixtures 2,019,780 | 2,357,622 [ 337,842 2,498,570 140,947 2,639,343 140,774 2,786,094 146,750 2,933,683 | 147,589
1835-Overhead Conductors and Devices 1,282,150 | 1,551,895 [ 269,745 1,667,893 115,998 1,785,256 117,364 1,910,605 125,349 2,041,062 | 130457
1840-Underground Conduit 1,045,991 | 1,302,541 [ 256,550 1,418,320 115,779 1,540,449 122,129 1,673,901 133,452 1,812,024 | 138123
1845-Underground Conductors and Devices | 1,202,052 | 1,512,383 | 310,331 1,648,594 136,211 1,786,816 138,222 1,934,970 148,153 2,000,083 | 155113
Sub-Total-Poles and Wires 5,549,973 6724441 1,174,468 7,233,376 508,935 7,751,865 518,489 8,305,570 553,705 8,876,852 571,282
1850-Line Transformers 2,350,823 | 2,941,715 | 590,892 | [ 3,206,206 264,491 | [ 3482433 276,227 | [ 3,796,916 314,483 | [ 4125383 | 328468
Sub-Total-Line Transformers 2,350,823 2,941,715 590,892 3,206,206 264,491 3,482,433 276,227 3,796,916 314,483 4125383 328468
1855-Services 949,234 | 1170542 | 221,308 1,263,817 93,275 1,357,492 93,675 1,449,624 92,132 1,543,967 94,343
1860-Meters 731,535 870,052 138,517 930,147 60,095 990,957 60,810 1,053,136 62,179 1,117,135 63,999
Sub-Total-Services and Meters 1,680,768  2,040594 359,825 2,193,965 153,371 2,348,449 154,484 2,502,760 154,311 2,661,102 158,342
1908-Buildings and Fixtures [ 66,136 667,995 | 101858 | [ 712,284 44200 || 756,720 4s44s | [ 803,689 4691 | [ 850,750 47,061
Sub-Total-General Plant 566,136 667,995 101,858 712,284 44,290 756,729 44,444 803,689 46,961 850,750 47,061
1920-Computer Equipment - Hardware 189,690 167,274 (22,416) 179,642 12,368 162,348 (17,294) 180,964 18,616 205,360 24,396
1925-Computer Software 171,339 245,606 74,266 286,953 41,348 330,925 43972 412,924 81,999 506,801 93,877
Sub-Total-IT Assets 361,029 412,879 51,850 466,595 53,716 493,273 26,678 593,888 100,615 712,161 118,273
1915-Office Furniture and Equipment 122,583 119,314 (3,268) 128,922 9,607 134,141 5,219 143,437 9,295 153,982 10,545
1930-Transportation Equipment 610,286 592,486 (17,800) 665,533 73,047 733,921 68,388 803,026 69,105 876,194 73,168
1935-Stores Equipment 22,863 23,149 287 25,067 1,917 22,668 (2,398) 24,347 1,678 26,025 1,678
1940-Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment 145,982 117,042 (28,940) 125,416 8,375 131,401 5,985 135,828 4,427 140,505 4,677
1945-Measurement and Testing Equipment 5,635 9,115 3,480 10,647 1,532 12,179 1,532 13,537 1,358 14,946 1,408
1955-Communication Equipment 14,182 12,795 (1,387) 13,803 1,007 14,810 1,007 15,818 1,007 16,825 1,007
1960-Miscellaneous Equipment 3,457 1,682 (1,775) 2,479 797 2,264 (216) 5,697 3,434 9,131 3,434
Sub-Total-Equipment 924,989 875,585 (49,404) 971,867 96,282 1,051,384 79,517 1,141,690 90,306 1,237,608 95,918
1970-Load Management Controls - Customer 1,100 1,100
1980-System Supervisory Equipment 500 500
1995-Contributions and Grants - Credit (247,105) | (a60,985) | (213,880) (574,272) | (113,287) (692,644) | (118372) (834,655) | (142,011) (982,422) | (147,768)
Sub-Total-Other Distribution Assets (238,245)  (451,636)  (213,391) (564,771)  (113,135) (692,644)  (127,872) (834,655)  (142,011) (980,822)  (146,168)

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION TOTAL 11,663,237 13,739,390 2,076,152 14,770,385 1,030,995 15,767,852 997,467 16,912,687 1,144,835 18,114,388 1,201,701
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VARIANCE ANALYSIS ON ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION:

Changes in accumulated depreciation are directly affected by changes in fixed assets due to
additions, the removal of fully depreciated assets from the grouped asset classes, and the
disposition of identifiable assets. The 2006 Board Approved closing balance for accumulated
depreciation is based on OHL’s 2004 year end account balances, plus Tier 1 capital adjustments
approved in OHL’s 2006 EDR Application. As such, the variance between 2006 Board
Approved and 2006 Actual represents two years of depreciation changes, and in order to arrive at

the annual impact, the variance must be divided by two.

From 2006 Actua to the 2010 Test Year the above table shows that the change in accumulated
depreciation, which has not changed materially from year to year. The depreciation expense in
the year for each of the above accounts is different due to the assets that are recorded as an
overhead expense. The change in accumulated depreciation is a result of capital expenditures
over a four year period. Since a detailed analysis of capital expenditures has been provided in
this Exhibit, no further explanation of the changes in accumulated depreciation accounts is

required.
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CAPITAL BUDGET:
Introduction

OHL has been, and continues to be, focused on maintaining the adequacy, reliability, and quality
of service to its distribution customers through effective capital spending. The capital spending
for the 2009 Bridge Y ear and the 2010 Test year is broken down by account and by project in
Exhibit 2, Tab 3, Schedule 2. As projects can be charged to different OEB capital accounts,
additional accounts have been identified where required. Below is an analysis of OHL’s capital
spending from 2005 to 2006.

e Distribution General Plant Total C:f\pital Increase/ % Increase/
Plant Expenditures Decrease Decrease

2005 726,236 97,859 824,095

2006 844,540 444,129 1,288,669 464,574 56%
2007 794,935 292,887 1,087,822 (200,847) -16%
2008 1,125,900 188,673 1,314,574 226,752 21%
2009 1,292,828 410,999 1,703,826 389,253 30%
2010 52,404 65,000 1,934,937 231,111 14%

In 2006, the main driver of the increase of 56% in capital expenditures was due to the double
bucket truck purchase amounting to $316,548 along with the increase in the transformer

inventory for purchases for new service installations in 2007.

In 2007, the main driver of the decrease of -16% was largely due to the new commercid
development of the west side of Town where al work performed was contributed capital

projects.
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In 2008, the main driver of the increase of 21% were projects that related less to contributed
capital and the Bredin Parkway project amounting to $351,389 that could not be delayed further
due to the safety risk.

In 2009, the main driver of the 30% increase over 2008 is work relating to projects where the
Town received infrastructure funding from the government such as Hansen Blvd reconstruction
costing $289,343. The new CIS system project that could not be deferred amounting to 158,050

and the purchase of anew single bucket truck for $130,000 also contributed to the increase.

In 2010, the main driver of the 14% increase over 2009 is need to upgrade the wholesale meter
CT at acost of $100,000, the installation of feeder extensions for renewable generation projects
amounting to $136,000, an optimization study to assist with asset management and the remote

sensors that will give OHL the ability to control customer’s loads.
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c In. Proiect Descrioti Total Proi Account | Account | Account [ Account | Account | Account | Account | Account | Account | Account
b SE;"t':e R otalProject |~ yg06 | 1820 | 1830 | 1835 | 1840 | 1885 | 1850 | 1855 | 1860 1995

Cust Demand 2009 |Orangeville Highlands 308,087 - - -| 114,167 59,520 60,000 74,400 -

Cust Demand 2009 [Broadway Grande 55,920 - - - - - 55,920 - -

Cust Demand 2009 |Montgomery Village-Phase H 108,787 - - - 41,787 14,320 35,100 17,580 -

Cust Demand 2009 |Hydro One Rebuild 162,522 - 69,276 58,782 - 3,762 30,702 - -

Cust Demand 2009 |5 Misc New Services 175,349 - - - - 28,362 133,962 - 13,025

Renewal 2009 |Second Street Conversion 71,848 - 8,602 19,363 6,500 5,492 29,285 - 2,605

Renewal 2009 |Rolling Hills Refurbishment 92,876 - - - 14,672 16,610 61,593 - -

Renewal 2009 |Faulkner Conversion 63,084 - - - 15,077 16,870 31,137 - -

Renewal 2009 |Bredin Pkwy Conversion 129,221 - - - 23,172 66,837 39,212 - -

Renewal 2009 [Ponsford & Emma 32,622 2,526 15,252 - - 4,918 9,926 -

Renewal 2009 |Misc Pole Replacement 17,096 - 10,730 4,066 - - - 2,300 -

Renewal 2009 |4 Robb Blvd 22,751 - - - 4,407 5,672 12,672 - -

Substation 2009 [DS#1 Removal 110,446 - 22,387 18,807 - 15,402 53,850 - -

Substation 2009 |Re-Gravel 4 Substations 7,382 7,382 - - - - - - -

Regulatory 2009 |Centennial and C Line 40,684 - 5,058 18,102 885 7,674 8,965 - -

Regulatory 2010 |William St 30,604 - 21,845 5,095 - - - 3,665 -

Regulatory 2010 [Hansen Street Reconstruction 289,343 6,485 9,470 49,858 130,089 93,441 - -

Regulatory 2009 |Riddell Rd Improvements 32,766 - - - 32,766 - - - -
Contributed Capital (458,562) (458,562)

Total 1,292,828 7,382 | 146,908 | 148,936| 303,293 | 370,611| 650,758 | 107,871 15,630 | (458,562)

it Serl\r/]ice Project Description TotalPolect Account | Account | Account [ Account | Account | Account | Account | Account | Account [ Account

Date 1905 1915 1920 1925 1930 1935 1940 1945 1955 1960

Facilities 2009 |General Plant 17,000 17,000

Hardware 2009 |Misc Computer Hardware 22,100 22,100

Software 2009 |New CIS (Northstar) 158,050 158,050

Software 2009 |File Nexus 43,969 43,969

Software 2009 |Misc Computer Software 14,125 14,125

Vehicles 2009 |Single Bucket Truck Replacemen 130,000 130,000

Tools & Equip 2009 |Major Tool Replacement 11,000 5,000 5,000 1,000

Tools & Equip 2009 [Misc Equipment 14,755 14,755

Total 410,999 17,000 - 22,100 | 216,144 | 130,000 5,000 5,000 1,000 - 14,755
Total Capital Expenditures 1,703,827

CUSTOMER DEMAND

2009 Project: Orangeville Highlands

Cost: $308,087 1840-$114,167 1845-$59,520 1850-$60,000

1855-$74,400
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Need: Orangeville Hydro is obligated under the DSC to connect new customer services that are
funded through contributed capital.

Scope: An estimate in capital costs has been received for this subdivision and the subdivision is
scheduled to be connected in 2009. An economic evaluation was performed using the estimates
and contributed capital will be received for this project.

2009 Project: Broadway Grande

Cost: $55,920 1850-$55,920

Need: Orangeville Hydro is obligated under the DSC to connect new customer services that are
funded through contributed capital.

Scope: An estimate in capital costs has been received for this subdivision and the subdivision is
scheduled to be connected in 2009.  An economic evaluation was performed using the estimates

and contributed capital will be received for this project.

2009 Project: Montgomery Village 2, Phase H

Cost: $108,787 1840-$41,787 1845-$14,320 1850-$35,100
1855-$17,580

Need: Orangeville Hydro is obligated under the DSC to connect new customer services that are
funded through contributed capital.

Scope: An estimate in capital costs has been received for this subdivision and the subdivision is
scheduled to be connected in 2009.  An economic evaluation was performed using the estimates

and contributed capital will be received for this project.

2009 Project: Hydro One Rebuild

Cost: $162,522 1830-$69,276 1835-$58,782 1845-$3,762
1850-$30,702
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Need: Hydro One requested OHL to rebuild existing line along Water and Emma Streets in the
Village of Grand Valley to provide sufficient clearance for a new 44 kV and a new 7200 kV
circuit as per the joint use agreement. OHL will transfer their existing 7200 kV circuit to the

new polesaswell.

Scope: Installation of approximately 20 poles to replace the existing pole line. The transfer of
the existing circuit, transformers and services will also be completed. Contributed capital will be

calculated per the joint-use agreement with Hydro One.
RENEWAL

2009 Project: Second St Conversion

Cost: $71,848 1830-$8,602 1835-$19,363 1840-$6,500 1845-$5,492
1850-$29,285 1860-$2,605

Need: The maority of Second Street has been rebuilt and converted in the early 2000s'. This
project is final segment of the conversion. A joint venture with OHL and the customer has been
initiated to upgrade their service that is no longer ESA standard. The existing transformer at the
customer’s location is located inside the building which is a safety issue. Thiswill now allow us

to finish the conversion.

Scope: Project consists of two parts, installation of new primary u/g cable and transformer at
building and rebuild and removal of old 4kv on Second St. and in rear lane of Second Ave. The
old poles and 4kv transformers are approximately 40 years of age. Replacements will be
converted to 27.6kv.

2009 Project: Rolling Hills Refurbishment

Cost: $92,876 1840-$14,672 1845-$16,610 1850-$61,593

Need: In the mid-1990's there were two services installed on a temporary basis that required

future PME switching units. This project has been delayed because the service to a significant
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number of customers will be affected by an outage. A K-Bar unit was installed on one of the

services and the second primary cable was coiled in atransformer vault.

Scope: Install new P.M.E units and terminate existing U/G primary cable to complete loop feed
in 27.6kv system on Rolling Hills area. Also provides backup for the service to Headwaters
Hospital. The P.M.E. unit will also provide fusing for the new small plaza scheduled for
development on Rolling Hills Drive. Contributed capital will be received for a portion of the

PME unit that will supply anew service for a plaza devel opment.

2009 Project: Faulkner Street Conversion

Cost: $63,084 1840-$15,077 1845-$16,870 1850-$31,137

Need: OHL performed estimated load calculations for the proposed new Lord Dufferin Centre
retirement complex and it was determined that a development of this size we would be better
served off our 27.6 kV plant. We do not want to put the load of the development on our old 4 kV
system.

Scope: We will trench and install new primary cable and a P.M.E. switching unit at this
property to feed a future development and remove the 4Kv according to our plan. An existing
P.M.E. on Faulkner and Zina will be used to provide a feed off the 27.6 kV system. Contributed
capital will be received for the portion of the PME that the new service will be using.

2009 Project: Bredin Parkway Conversion Completion 2008-2009

Cost: $129,221 1840-$23,172 1845-$66,837 1850-$39,212

Need: A segment of this project was commenced in 2008. The existing subdivision was installed
approximately 30 years ago and due to a number of faults to the area, the cable and transformers
were approaching near end of life condition. Callouts in this area uncovered poor installation
methods of the contractor at the time. Risk of possible serious safety concerns were evident with
the cable being installed at an insufficient depth.
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Scope: A contractor completed the remainder of the trenching and directional boring to install
duct work to allow for the future installation of primary cable for this subdivision. New

transformers and vaults were also installed to replace the existing plant.

2009 Project: Ponsford & Emma

Cost: $32,622 1830-$2,526 1835-$15,252 1850-$4,918 1855-$9,926

Need: Hydro One completed an upgrade of their pole lines aong Ponsford and Emma Streets in
the Village of Grand Valley. As per the joint use agreement OHL was required to transfer the
existing circuit to the new poles.

Scope: The transfer of the existing circuit, transformers and services was a so compl eted.

SUBSTATION

2009 Project: DS 1 Removal

Cost: $110,446 1830-22,387 1835-$18,807 1845-$15,402
1850-$53,850

Need: Conversion plan to eliminate this substation that is over 55 years old. Our DS #1
substation consists of 3-1 MVA transformers that have a manufacture date of 1954. Testing has
been completed each year and various results indicated that these transformers are starting to
deteriorate and approaching a near end of life condition. Asaresult of new development in our
downtown core a 27.6 kV circuit was installed a number of years ago. It was determined by
OHL that it would be more prudent to continue with the conversion in this area rather than
completing expensive upgrades to the old 4 kV station. We are aiming to have this station
removed by 2010.

Scope: In this segment of the project we converted parts of Armstrong and Mill Streets that are
fed from that distribution station. This work consisted of identifying poles that required

replacing due to age, deterioration and improper clearances. Replacement of transformers and
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primary cable at were replaced due to the improper voltages to alow for the conversion from 4
kV to 27.6 kV.

REGULATORY

2009 Project: Centennial And C Line

Cost: $40,684 1830-$5,058 1835-$18,102 1840-$885
1845-$7,674 1850-$8,965

Need: Orangeville Hydro was requested by the Town of Orangeville to relocate a pole to alow

for widening the intersection and new sidewalk installation.

Scope: An existing service on Centennial Road was previoudy fed off a Hydro One pole on C
Line. Trenching and new primary underground cable was installed so the service could be
converted from the 4 kV to the 27.6 kV system on an OHL pole. A new three phase transformer
is required. As this project is municipally driven, OHL will receive 50% contributed capital

towards labour and trucking.

2009 Project: William St

Cost: $30,604 1830-$21,845 1835-$5,095 1855-$3,665

Need: Orangeville Hydro was requested by the Town of Orangeville due to reconstruction of the
civil infrastructure to allow for widening the street and new sidewalk installation.

Scope: Installation of 8 new poles due age and deterioration and transferring of all secondary

conductor and services.

2009 Hansen Street Reconstruction

Cost: $289,343 1830-$6,485 1835-$9,470 1840-$49,858
1845-$130,089 1850-$93,441
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Need: With the reconstruction of the road work on Hansen Blvd, we are converting this area to
underground due to a prior arrangement with the town, as the overhead circuit was a temporary
arrangement when installed. The agreement with the Town was 20 years ago to build the

overhead line until the reconstruction of this road.

Scope: The work will include the removal of the overhead circuit and poles on Hansen Blvd ,
relocation of a pole located at First St and Hansen Blvd, as well as the installation of three new
PME's on Hansen Blvd and the installation of 1000 MCM express cable from First St to Amelia

2009 Riddell St Infrastructure Improvements

Cost: $32,766 1840-$32,766

Need: With the infrastructure improvements, curbing and sidewalks on Riddell, OHL used this
opportunity to have the contractor install ductwork from Alder to a PME unit on Riddell. This
was necessary to complete a loop feed for reliability in this area that was previously removed
when a pole line was removed during construction of the Alder Street sports complex.

Scope: Theinstallation of ductwork.

GENERAL PLANT

2009 Project: Harris CIS System-Completion 2009

Cost: $158,050 1925-$158,050

Need: Our current customer information system vendor has been sold and there will no longer
be support for the Ontario Deregulated Environment by the new software vendor owner. Harris
Northstar CIS is the replacement of Advanced CIS Infinity. OHL participated in an RFP with a
group of LDC’ sthat were in the same situation, named CODAC. The vendors conducted session
from demonstrating functionality and prices were given based on the group of LDCs. OHL
considered many options and decided the Utility Collaborative Services (UCS) solution along
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with 3 other LDCs as the best cost effective system.  Please see the presentation made to our

Board of Directorsin Appendix A. The system is to be implemented in the Fall of 2009.

Scope: Remainder of payment. Training and set up sessions to be ready for conversion in the
Fall 20009.

2009 Project: File Nexus System

Cost: $43,969 1925-$43,969

Need: This project as part of our association with the UCS group will allow us to reduce the
amount of paper print out of journas and reports, thus reducing the cost of paper, storage,
employee time handling paper, etc.

Scope: Working with UCS to scan invoices, engineering drawings etc. that will assist staff to

work more efficiently and eliminate the need for large storage areas.

2009 Project: Vehicle Replacement

Cost: $130,000 1930-$130,000

Need: OHL was experiencing recurring and higher maintenance costs on the existing single
bucket truck 1996 model. OHLSs replacement schedule is 12 years for large vehicles. OHL
received 3 different supplier quotes that were relatively close and chose the model a a

comparable price that best suited our operations.
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In Service Account Account Account Account Account Account Account Account Account Account
Category Date Project Description Total Project 1605 1820 1830 1835 1840 1845 1850 1855 1860 1995
Cust Demand 2010 [Edgewood Valley 52,277 - - 21,544 7,981 13,440 9,312 -
Cust Demand 2010 [Broadway Grande 239,029 - - 63,120 33,157 101,593 41,160 -
Cust Demand 2010 [Mono Development Ph 4 211,889 - - 50,203 26,146 102,858 32,682 -
Cust Demand 2010 |4 Misc New Services 114,676 - - - 23,290 82,690 - 8,695
Renewal 2010 [Orangeville Mall Conversion 90,462 8,318 6,060 10,498 11,238 54,350 - -
Renewal 2010 |Browns Farm Conversion 318,895 - - 46,646 67,251 204,999 - -
Renewal 2010 |CLine Conversion 80,999 - - 9,709 17,468 53,822 - -
Renewal 2010 [Misc Pole Replacement 24,990 9,815 15,175 - - - -
Renewal 2010 _[King St Rebuilds 26,780 11,893 6,135 - - 8,753 -
Renewal 2010 |Water Street Removal 7200 kV 42,247 - 10,503 10,693 11,388 9,664 - -
Renewal 2010 [Broadway Removal Old Circuit 84,634 - 3,635 9,709 17,468 53,822 - -
Renewal 2010 [Remove Old 4 kV Rear Lot 34,783 - - 6,813 14,735 13,235 - -
Renewal 2010 [Centennial Road Removals 40,619 11,914 28,705 - - - - -
Regulatory 2010 [Shirley St., Marion St 15,349 - 3,371 4,610 7,367 - - -
Reliability 2010 [Fault Indicators Replacement 55,697 - 55,697 - - -
Substation 2010 [DS#1 Removal Project 11,127 11,127
Metering 2010 [Wholesale Meter M5 & M26 100,000 100,000
Metering 2010 [>50 Class Meter Upgrades 57,276 57,276
Reliability 2010 [Remote Sensors 50,601 50,601
Green Energy Act 2010 [Large Renewable Generation-Other 136,202 50,601 85,601
Green Energy Act 2010 |[MicroFIT Enablement 52,404 27,404 25,000
Reliability 2010 [Optimization Study 62,253 12,451 24,901 24,901
2010 [Total Contributed Capital (287,833) (287,833)
Total 1,615,357 - 123,578 41,939 255,384 233,544 347,990 699,225 110,559 90,971 (287,833)
In Service Account Account Account Account
Category Date Project Description Total Project 1905 1915 Account 1920|Account 1925 Account 1930 Account 1935 | Account 1940 1945 1970 Account 1980
Facilities 2010 |Washroom Renovations 10,000 10,000
Equipment 2010 [Telephone System 25,000 25,000
Hardware 2010 |Computer Hardware 57,800 57,800
Software 2010 |Misc Computer Software 118,780 118,780
Vehicles 2010 [Replace Vehicles 65,000 65,000
Tools & Equip 2010 [Major Tool Replacement 6,000 5,000 1,000

CUSTOMER DEMAND

2010 Project: Edgewood Valley Phase 1B

Cost: $52,277 1840-$21,544 1845-$7,981 1850-$13,440
1855-$9,312

Need: Orangeville Hydro is obligated under the DSC to connect new customer services that are
funded through contributed capital.

Scope: An estimate of the capital costs for the distribution and transformation assets has been
received for this subdivision and the subdivision is scheduled to be connected in 2010. An
economic evaluation was performed using the estimates and contributed capital will be received
for this project.
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2010 Project: Broadway Grande

Cost: $239,029 1840-$63,120 1845-$33,157 1850-$101,593
1855-$41,160

Need: Orangeville Hydro is obligated under the DSC to connect new customer services that are
funded through contributed capital.

Scope: An estimate of the capital costs for the distribution and transformation assets has been
received for this subdivision and the subdivision is scheduled to be connected in 2010. An
economic evaluation was performed using the estimates and contributed capital will be received

for this project.

2010 Project: Mono Development Phase 4

Cost: $211,889 1840-$50,203 1845-$26,146 1850-$102,858
1855-$32,682

Need: Orangeville Hydro is obligated under the DSC to connect new customer services that are
funded through contributed capital.

Scope: An estimate of the capital costs for the distribution and transformation assets has been
received for this subdivision and the subdivision is scheduled to be connected in 2010. An
economic evaluation was performed using the estimates and contributed capital will be received

for this project.
RENEWAL

2010 Project: Orangeville Mall Conversion

Cost: $90,462 1830-$8,318 1835-$6,060 1840-$10,498
1845-$11,238 1850-$54,350
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Need: Orangeville Mall is one of OHL’s most significant customers and currently this location is
fed off the older 44 kV circuit with no loop feed potential in case of outages. For reliability this
customer would be better serviced off our 27.6 kV which is now available off Hansen Blvd that
is loop fed thus increasing reliability. We can then eliminate approximately 2 kilometers of old
44 kV circuit that only services this one customer. Many of these existing poles are at end of life

condition with porcelain insulators and would require replacing.

Scope: Removal of the old poles and 44 kV conductor. The installation of underground primary

cable and 2 three-phase transformers.

2010 Project: Browns Farm Conversion 2005 to 2011

Cost: $318,895 1840-$46,646 1845-$67,251 1850-204,999

Need: The Town of Orangeville was performing a complete civil engineering upgrade in this
area. OHL felt it was prudent to take advantage of the excavation in preparation of future 27.6
kV conversion in this area that started in 2005. This is another segment of the conversion project
which now will include cable and transformer replacement and expected to continue into 2011.
The old hydro infrastructure is now over 30 years of age and maintaining reliability is becoming

aconcern.
Scope: Theinstallation of new primary cable, 24 transformers and 2 PME switchgears.

2010 Project: C Line Conversion

Cost: $80,999 1840-9,709  1845-$17,468 1850-53,822

Need: Conversion of these services will allow for the removal of an old 4kv circuit on C-Line
north of Centennial Rd. The deterioration of the transformers and cable due to age and nearing
end of life condition was determined in our asset management inspections. To stay consistent

with our policy and asthe 27.6 kV circuit is present, al upgrades involve conversion.
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Scope: The upgrade of 3 primary services involving the replacement of primary cable and
transformers. Once the Browns Farm subdivision is converted as well as these services we will
be able to remove an old 4 kV circuit that is presently on Hydro One poles as per the joint use

agreement.

2010 Project: King Street Rebuild

Cost: $26,780 1830-$11,893 1835-$6,135 1850-$8,753

Need: During our distribution inspections of the area, it was determined that the poles needed to

be replaced due to age and improper clearances.
Scope: Replacement of 4 poles, transferring the existing 7200 kV circuit and transformers.

2010 Project: Water Street

Cost: $42,247 1835-$10,503 1840-$10,693 1845-$11,388
1850-$9,664

Need: During our distribution inspections of the area, it was determined that the existing pole
line needs replacement due to age and deterioration. As a new circuit was installed in Emma
Street in 2009, the overhead circuit is not longer required. To service existing customers OHL
decided to convert to underground to improve appearance and reliability.

Scope: The installation of underground primary cable and two single phase padmount

transformers.

2010 Project: Broadway Removal of Old Circiut

Cost: $84,634 1830-$3,635 1835-$9,709 1840-$17,468
1845-$53,822

Need: During our asset inspections, the existing pole line that is situated in the rear lots on the

south side of Broadway required to be replaced. OHL determined it would be more cost



10
11

12
13
14

15

16

17
18
19
20
21

22
23

24

Orangeville Hydro Limited
EB-2009-0272

Exhibit 2

Tab 3

Schedule 2

Page 13 of 18

Filed: August 28, 2009

effective to convert these 3 services and allow the removal of thisold pole line asit isimpossible
to access these poles. This will now allow the 4 kV circuit to be removed that also fed the

Browns farm area also forecasted to be converted in 2010.

Scope: Installation of primary underground cable and transformers to be fed off the existing 27.6
kV circuit from Broadway. The removal of the old poles and conductor from the rear lots.

2010 Project: Remove Old 4 kV Rear Lot

Cost: $34,783 1840-$6,813 1845-$14,735 1850-$13,235

Need: It is difficult to access the poles and existing circuit in this older area that was identified
during our asset inspection. It was determined that by removing the circuit we would be
increasing reliability and the overhead primary in the rear lots of this residential areais also a

safety concern.

Scope: Installation of underground primary cable and transformers will allow for the removal of
the old overhead primary circuit. This new service will be fed from the 27.6 kV system thus
converted from the 4kV.

2010 Project: Centennial Road

Cost: $40,619 1830-$11,914 1835-$28,705

Need: We have been gradually upgrading an existing pole line in an older industrial area due to
age, deterioration and inadequate clearances. Improper framing standards were used a number of
years ago when the 27.6 kV circuit was installed in this area. With the expected growth of new
commercia services in this area, OHL upgraded the line to provide adequate clearances for
safety and increased reliability.

Scope: The replacement of 3 poles and changeover of the conductor and converted transformer
to the 27.6 kV standard.
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RELIABILITY

2010 Project: Fault Indicators

Cost: $55,697 1835-$55,697

Need: OHL asset condition assessment determined that 10 fault indicators dire need of

replacement.

Scope: OHL will install 10 fault indicators.

METERING

2010 Project: Wholesale Meter CT/PT

Cost: $100,000

M5:

There is one Voltage Transformer that is not Measurement Canada approved and thisVT ison
the dispensation list. Hydro One will perform a site visit to plan a scope of work and cost
estimate will be prepared by Hydro One and forwarded within 3 months of the site visit. The
target in service date will be approximately 18 months from acceptance of the proposal and

Hydro One' s receipt of a purchase order. .

MACD: In order to protect Orangeville Hydro from possible sanctions from the IESO’s Market
Assessment & Compliance Division (MACD) Orangeville Hydro self-reported to MACD that
the M26 CTs and the M5 VT would not be replaced before the Dec 31/09 expiry of the
dispensation list. The reason for not meeting the deadline for replacement of the instrument
transformers was not due to lack of action on Orangeville Hydro part but due to a high demand
and alack of resources at Hydro One. As the instrument transformers are assets belonging to
Hydro One, Orangeville Hydro cannot act alone to carry out the replacement. When we received
confirmation that the M26 CTs were indeed approved we notified MACD of thisand MACD
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sent aletter acknowledging the change to the status of the M26. However, the self-report to
MACD pertaining to the M5 VT is still active.

2010 Project: >50 Class Meter Upgrades

Cost: $57,276 1860-$57,276

Need: OHL has budgeted this metering project to allow the larger general service that do not
have an interval meters the ability to manage their usage and to assist with their conservation
efforts. This movement to interval meters will also reduce meter reading costs as OHL is
installing Smart meters for residential and small general service customers in the Spring of 2010.
There are 104 meters remaining that are not capable of recording or communicating time of use
data. There will be economic savings in purchasing them at the same as the others asthereisa
minimum guantity order number of 96 meters for each meter type. OHL will also upgrade 2.5
element meter installations to 3 elements according to the directive issued by Measurement
Canada when the opportunity (such as a meter change) presents itself.

Scope: The purpose of the project isto change out al of the non interval type metersthat are
currently installed on sites where the customers load is greater than 50 Kilowatts (KW) and the

customer is being billed for demand changes.

GREEN ENERGY ACT
2010 Project: Remote Sensors

Cost: $ 50,601 1835-$50,601

Need: OHL requiresthe installation of remote sensors as the beginning steps of SCADA and
Smart Grid will provide better information as to system loading and power outages. This will
also control load and provide better data for conservation.

Scope: OHL will install 10 remote sensorsin this phase.

2010 Project: Large Renewable Connections

Cost: $ 136,202 1835-$50,601 1845-$85,601
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Need: OHL has been approached by five solar proponents that will be installing solar renewable
energy solutions. One proponent islooking at installing 500 kW systems at Walmart, Canadian
Tire and Home Depot

Scope: OHL will install feeder extensions for three installations totallingl.5 MW.  OHL has
calculated these installations based on EB-2009-0077 where it states, “the Board is proposing to
set the cap at $90,000/MW”

2010 Project: MicroFIT Enablement

Cost: $ 52,404 1855-$27,404 1860-$25,000

Need: Based on severa inquiriesto assist customers with their conservation efforts, OHL will
install services and metering

Scope: Theinstallation of services and metering estimated to be approximately 100 customers.
2010 Project: Optimization Study

Cost: $62,253 1820- $12,451 1835-$24,901 1860-$24,901

Need: OHL considers management of system losses in the planning and operation of our
distribution system. After completion of our asset condition assessment , OHL is striving to
move ahead with our Asset Management plan and recognizes the need for an optimization study
and analysis of our distribution system.

Scope: The purpose isto optimize the entire distribution system including all feeders and voltage
levels. Feeder analysis for phase balancing and capacitor optimization and configuration
optimization analysis to obtain the best switching arrangements. OHL has received one request
for quotation to take al required data and enter it into software and provide all related reports
and output files. Before proceeding OHL iswaiting to receive two more RFQs.

GENERAL PLANT

2010 Project: Computer Hardware
Cost: $57,800 1920-$57,800
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Need: Computer hardware is used by al departments of the utility and is key in customer
service, improving reliability and reducing costs. Orangeville Hydro Computer purchase and
deployment mandate: Upgrades are based on business software requirements. With the constant
upgrades to business specific software, Orangeville Hydro may maintain the standard computer
configuration required by software vendors. Upgrade to maintain customer service levels, in
order to maintain prompt response to customer inquiries and billing creation, it is often necessary
to increase processing level of hardware primarily used for customer service. Replace obsolete
equipment; as equipment ages it loses the ability to run required operating systems and standard
software applications. PC deployment is based on user specific requirements. CPUs areto be
deployed based solely on the business need. Deployment is dependent upon the level of
processing power each user requires to efficiently manage the business need, not based on user
perception of requirements or perceived obsolescence of equipment. The deployment scheme
assures Orangeville Hydro that assets are maintained for the maximum length of time and as
importantly, each computer deployment is based specifically on user needs. Benefits of new
equipment reduces the dependence on IT and support of older hardware, taking advantage of
new technologies, empowering employee productivity with right equipment to complete their
jobs efficiently, improved access to data and information, adhering to best practices and allowing
for growth.

Scope: Magjor projects included two new servers that will be purchased for approximately
$40,000 and replacement of our engineering plotter. The server that hosts our financial software
and database has reached its' life expectancy and performance is deteriorating. In order to house
and perform output for the newer version of software it is pertinent to business needs to have a
reliable server with appropriate processing power. The other server will be required for the
SCADA system that OHL isimplementing in 2010.

2010 Project: Computer Software
Cost: $118,780 1925-$118,780

Need: Computer software, whether operating system software or application software, are

programs written in machine-readable languages, that control the operations of hardware or that
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enable users to perform certain tasks on computers. The OS software controls the hardware and
manages its internal functions: controls input, output and storage, and handles its interaction with
application programs. Application software enables users to accomplish particular tasks. In this
day and age, the functioning of computer software istied closely into the hardware it resides on
and it isimportant that the specs of any CPU or server is appropriate for the software being
installed. Benefits: improved productivity from software enhancements, employee
empowerment, keeping up to date with industry standards, ease of integration to other
applications, reduced costs - common operating system, higher security, reduced dependence on
IT services, improved tools for web devel opment/design.

Scope: Magjor projects are replacing current mapping system with GIS/Engineering Software,
upgrading our financial software and project management. OHL will be upgrading our Great
Plains/Wennsoft to the most recent version and also be implementing a module on the Great
Plains for fixed asset management. OHL requires software updates to accommodate the FIT and
MicroFIT settlement and has budgeted $60,000 for this part of the project.

2010 Project: Purchase 1 Pick Up Truck and 1 Van
Cost: $65,000 1930-$65,000
Need: OHLSs replacement schedule that is 7 years for small vehicles before they become costly

to repair, uneconomic and unsafe to operate. The two trucks that require replacement are a 2003
pickup and a 2003 mini-van. OHL will obtain 3 different supplier quotes and select the best
suited vehicle based on price.
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CIS Recommendation July 22, 2008

Customer Service/Administration

Submitted to OHL Board of Directors by Ruth Tyrrell

CIS System Recommendation

With the recent decision regarding the merger between Orangeville Hydro and Westario | am now able to
move forward with a recommendation for the new CIS system for the utility.

As noted in my last report, the recommendation is to move forward with the North Star (Harris) system
under the Utility Collaborative Services Group (Midland, Centre Wellington and Parry Sound) along with
Collus Power and Wasaga Electric Distribution.

The UCS business model provides Orangeville Hydro with a unique opportunity to become part of an
environment which provides a stable operational foundation, and allows utilities to work together and
benefit from collective buying pools and agreed upon standards related to their daily activities.

What makes the UCS business model distinctive from other vendors is that the UCS customers are
actually the shareholders of the Company. By offering a technology solution in this manner, the “middle
man” is eliminated from the equation which results in cost savings that are passed directly back to each
owning utility. In addition to the financial benefits, the shareholders of the company are able to benefit
from best practice business processes that are shared among the group. Aggregated pricing in the initial
purchase of the software solution is a key feature of working with UCS; however, the hosting of the ASP
Service that is part of the initiative provides an even greater value as the technical management of the
system is part of the package offered by UCS.

Strateqy of UCS

Ontario utilities have realized when they work as a group, they are able to more cost effectively achieve
common goals, and this is evidenced by such successful working groups as Cornerstone Hydro Electric
Concepts (CHEC), the Niagara Erie Power Alliance (NEPA), and the Upper Canada Energy Alliance
(UCEA). As well as creating large buying pools to achieve preferential pricing where applicable, these
working groups bring a united voice to the industry.

In 20086, three utilities (Centre Wellington, Midland & Parry Sound) came together with the goal of creating
this type of environment, allowing utilities to work together and benefit from collective buying pools and
standards related to their daily activities. The first step in this process was to create a model which would
address the concerns that have gone unresolved in other ASP models in Ontario.

UCS Corporate Structure

Aggregate pricing models are achieved in UCS with the shareholder agreement providing long term
commitment and cancellation clauses (3 Year). These terms protect the aggregate pricing being received
by members. A Co-Op style service has proven to be a successful venture for another Harris Customer.
Wisconsin Public Power Inc. (WPPI) is a 46 Member cooperative working in a shared service model that
has benefited from group pricing for software and IT infrastructure. To meet the requirements of multiple
shareholding utilities, as well as the regulator, the following considerations have been captured with the
UCS Shareholder Agreement:

e No one distributor would have more than 49% ownership. Therefore no distributor would have the
requisite amount of control to be considered an affiliate, as defined in The Ontario Business
Corporations Act, of the Company.

e The Company will have one non-distributor shareholder, Util-Assist, which will act as the tie
breaker in the event that the Board of Directors is unable to come to agreement.

e Distributor e